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You will operate a PANCHEROS Restaurant featuring burritos, quesadillas, tacos, burrito bowls, salads,
rice, salsa, and other food and beverage products.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a single unit PANCHEROS franchise ranges from
$680752,500 to $1,387537,500. This includes the $32,000-t6-$3430,000 that must be paid to the franchisor
or affiliate.

If we grant you acguire area development rights, you must develop at least three Restaurants; and you will
sign our Area Development Agreement. Upon signing, you will pay us a development fee equal to $25,000
for the first franchise and $10,000 for each additional franchise you commit to develop. The total
investment necessary to begin operation of the first PANCHEROS Restaurant you will develop under an
Area Development Agreement for three Restaurants will range from $767,500 to $1,552,500. This
includes $45,000 that must be paid to franchisor or its affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must
receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payment to the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Rachel Garms, Franchise Development
& Real Estate Administrator, 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 at
rachelg@pancheros.com.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “4 Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
ang contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits C
and D.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit E includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Pancheros business in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a
Pancheros franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits C and D list current and
former franchisees. You can contact them to ask
about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising
Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to
your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Qut-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and area
development agreement (if applicable) requires you to resolve disputes with
the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in lowa. Out-
of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less
favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate,
or litigate with the franchisor in lowa than in your own state.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS APPLY ONLY TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED
BY THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT
BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

@ A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall
not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all
claims.

(© A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply
with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given
written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days,
to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) The term of the franchise is less than
five (5) years, and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from
continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade
name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six (6) months’ advance notice
of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
section does not require a renewal provision.

() A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.
This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration,
to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

(@) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:

(1 The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.
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(iii)  The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

(iv)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of
the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants
to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

Q) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign,
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of
less than $100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial
investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to
provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the
franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in
place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENFORCEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE FRANCHISE OFFERING.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1 Floor
525 W. Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this disclosure document, the term “we” means Panchero’s Franchise
Corporation, the franchisor. The term “you” means the person buying the franchise, the franchisee. If the
franchisee is a partnership, the term “you” includes each general partner. If the franchisee is a corporation,
limited liability company, or other business entity, the term “you” does not include the entity’s owners,
unless otherwise stated.

The Franchisor and Any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates

We are an lllinois corporation, formed on October 28, 1994, and do not have any parent or predecessors.
Our principal business address is 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241. We do business under
our corporate name and the trademark “PANCHEROS.” Our agents for service of process are listed in
Exhibit B to this disclosure document.

We have offered franchises for PANCHEROS Restaurants since January 1995. We have never offered
franchises in any other line of business. We have operated one or more restaurants similar to the Franchised
Restaurant since 2010. Additionally, our affiliate, Little Donkeys, Inc. (“LDI”) has operated one or more
restaurants similar to the Franchised Restaurant since 1992. LDI shares our principal business address. LDI
has never offered franchises in any line of business.

On February 22, 2021, a new affiliate, LDIP Inc., an Illinois corporation (“LDIP”), was created that shares
our principal address. On the same day, LDI, transferred certain assets to LDIP including the intellectual
property rights to the PANCHEROS Marks (as defined below and as further described in Item 13).
Notwithstanding the transfer of the IP assets to LDIP, LDI will continue to own and operate one or more
Panchero’s restaurants. LDIP has never offered franchises in any line of business.

The Franchise Offered

We grant franchises for the establishment, development and operation of a restaurant providing carry-out
and on-premises dining services featuring burritos, quesadillas, tacos, burrito bowls, salads, rice, salsa, and
other food and beverage products, all prepared according to specified recipes and procedures (“Franchised
Restaurant”). We also have developed a proprietary line of specially formulated spice packs, salsas,
marinades and other food products, and certain presentation, packaging and marketing standards and
techniques.

Each Franchised Restaurant operates according to our proprietary business format and system (“System”),
which includes a distinctive exterior and interior layout, design and color scheme; distinctive signage,
decorations, furnishings and materials; display cooking; special recipes, formulae, menus and food and
beverage designations; the PANCHEROS confidential operations manual (“Confidential Operations
Manual™); our proprietary food items; food and beverage storage, preparation and service procedures and
techniques; operating procedures for sanitation and maintenance; and methods and techniques for inventory
and cost controls, record keeping and reporting, purchasing, and sales promotion and advertising. We may
change the System periodically.

The Franchised Restaurant will operate under the “PANCHERQOS” service marks, and associated logos,
commercial symbols, indicia of origin, and other trade names, service marks and trademarks that we have
designated and may in the future designate as part of the System (“Marks”) which we license to you
according to the terms of our franchise agreement (see Exhibit C, “Franchise Agreement”).

We also offer qualified candidates the right to develop at least three PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurants
under an Area Development Agreement (Exhibit D). If we award you multi-unit development rights, you
will sign our Area Development Agreement and receive a designated territory (“Designated Territory™) in
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which to establish individual franchises under separate Franchise Agreements. If we grant you multi-unit
development rights pursuant to an Area Development Agreement, prior to developing each restaurant, you
will be required to sign our then-current form of Franchise Agreement, which may differ from the current
form of franchise agreement attached to this Disclosure Document. The Area Development Agreement
will include a development schedule (“Development Schedule”) that establishes the number of Franchised
Restaurants you must develop and the development timetable.

Market and Competition

The Franchised Restaurant will offer its services to the general public and will compete with other local
businesses as well as local, regional, and national restaurant chains. The Franchised Restaurant will also
face competition from other foodservice businesses offering freshly prepared items like burritos, bowils,
guesadillas, tacos, and other foods and beverages for on-premises consumption and carry-out. This market
is well-developed in some areas and developing in other areas.

Industry-Specific Requlation

The restaurant industry is heavily regulated. Many of the federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations
that apply to business generally, such as the federal and state anti-discrimination laws, federal wage and
hour laws, National Labor Relations Act, ADA Amendments Act of 2008, and the Occupational Safety and
Health Act, also apply to restaurants. However, other federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations
have particular applicability to restaurants.

In addition, the Menu Labeling Provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Health Care Act require
certain restaurants and retail food establishments to post caloric information on menus and menu boards
and to make available additional written nutrition information to consumers upon request. State and local
governments also may have their own regulations.

The Federal Clean Air Act and various implementing state laws require certain state and local areas to meet
national air quality standards limiting emissions of ozone, carbon monoxide, and particulate matters,
including caps on omissions from commercial food preparation. Some areas have also adopted or are
considering proposals that would regulate indoor air quality.

The payment card industry (“PCI”) Data Security Standard is the current standard of security requirements
for all merchants or service providers that store, process, or transmit cardholder data. You are responsible
for PCI Data Security Standard compliance as well as any federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and
ordinances related to privacy matters, including data and personally identifiable information.

A number of states and local jurisdictions have enacted laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances which may
apply to the operation of your Franchised Restaurant, including those which (1) establish general standards,
specifications and requirements for the construction, design and maintenance of the Franchised Restaurant
premises; (2) regulate matters affecting (i) the health, safety, and welfare of your customers, such as general
health and sanitation requirements for Restaurants, (ii) employee practices concerning the storage, handling,
cooking, and preparation of food, (iii) restrictions on smoking, and (iv) availability of and requirements for
public accommodations, including restrooms; (3) set standards pertaining to employee health and safety;
(4) set standards and requirements for fire safety and general emergency preparedness; (5) govern the use
of vending machines; and (6) regulate the proper use, storage, and disposal of waste, insecticides, and other
hazardous materials.

You must comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the establishment and operation of the
Franchised Restaurant. You should examine these laws before purchasing a franchise from us.
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ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

President/Treasurer and Director: Rodney L. Anderson

Mr. Anderson has served as our President and Treasurer, and has been one of our Directors, since May
1996. He also has served as LDI’s President and Treasurer since its inception in January 1992.

Vice President of Company Operations & Training: Lori Cominsky

Mrs. Cominsky has served as VP of Company Operations & Training since January 2024 and is based out
of our Coralville, lowa office. From April 2021 to October 2023, Mrs. Cominsky served as Vice President
of Operations and Training with Craveworthy Brands in Elgin, Illinois. From July 2017 to December 2020,
she served as Vice President of Operations at Protein Bar & Kitchen in Chicago, lllinois. Prior to that, Mrs.
Cominsky was the Director of Operations Services and New Restaurant Openings with Roti Mediterranean
Grill in Chicago, Illinois from July of 2009 through August of 2017.

Vice President of Franchise Operations: Saul Muniz

Mr. Muniz has served as the Vice President of Franchise Operations since November 2023. From December
2021 to November 2023, he served as Director of Franchise Operations in addition to various roles. From
September of 2021 through December of 2021, Mr. Muniz left Pancheros briefly to do a New Construction
and Development internship for Legacy GreenBuilders and Developers in Solon, lowa. Prior to joining
Pancheros, he worked at Chipotle Mexican Grill from March of 1999 to April 2020 where he went
from Shift Leader to Director of Operations in the Rocky Mountain and Central Midwest Regions.

Director of Franchise Development: Joseph Gale

Mr. Gale will serve as our Director of Franchise Development beginning on May 1, 2021. From 2012
through March 2021, Mr. Gale was a Senior Sales Executive at Coca-Cola Food Service.

Director of Real Estate: Nanette P. Beiner

Ms. Beiner has served as Director of Real Estate since September 2018. From September 2015 to August
2018, Ms. Beiner served as Director of Real Estate for Coffee and Bagel Brands, Inc. From October 2006
to August 2015, Ms. Beiner served as our Director of Real Estate.

Director of Design and Construction: Shannon Krauss

Mrs. Krauss has served as our Director of Design and Construction since August 2008.
Director of Marketing: Emma Reed

Ms. Reed began serving as our Director of Marketing in July of 2021. Prior to assuming the Director of
Marketing role in July of 2021, she served as our Marketing Manager since April of 2018. Between June
of 2016 and April 2018, she worked on our Burrito Relations team.

Director of Digital Marketing: Alexis Puebla

Ms. Puebla has served as our Director of Digital Marketing since July 2021. Prior to that, Ms. Puebla served
in various marketing roles at Panchero’s from February 2019 to July 2021. Prior to joining Panchero’s, Ms.
Puebla served as a Brand Strategist for Entrepreneurial Technologies from March 2018 to February 2019.
Before that, she served as a Content Marketing Strategist at Meredith Corporation from October 2017 to
March 2018. Before that, she served as a Marketing Manager for OrderUp from May 2016 to October 2017.
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Franchise Development & Real Estate Administrator: Rachel Garms

Mrs. Garms has served as our Franchise Development & Real Estate Administrator since September 2019.
From April 2016 to August 2019, she worked as our Accounting / Real Estate Administrator. From October
2015 to January 2018, she did Accounting for Community Health Initiative, Haiti, a local non-profit.

ITEM3
LITIGATION

During the fiscal year 2024, Franchisor initiated one lawsuit against franchisees as follows:

Enforcement of Post-Termination Obligations

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation v. Virji, LLC, et al., 1:24-cv-04087 (United States District Court for the
Northern District of Illinois); Filing date: May 17, 2024.

Concluded Litigation

Navraj Restaurant Group, LLC, Rajendra I. Patel, and Navneet Patel v. Panchero’s Franchise Corporation
and Rodney L. Anderson, Case No. 18 114 Y 00947 13, American Arbitration Association, Cook County,
Ilinois. After we terminated the relationship with our development agent, Navraj Restaurant Group, LLC
(“NRG”), on August 15, 2013, NRG and its principals, filed a demand for arbitration, alleging that we and
our CEO, Rodney Anderson, violated various provisions of the NJFPA, the NJ Consumer Fraud Act, and
the lowa Business Opportunity Promotions Act, that we wrongfully terminated the development agent
agreement, and that we tortiously interfered with NRG’s prospective economic advantage. Plaintiffs sought
$5,000,000 in damages and recovery of attorneys’ fees (which by the date of the hearing, exceeded
$700,000). On March 6, 2015, the arbitrator dismissed all claims against Rodney Anderson, individually,
and awarded plaintiffs $344,480.07. On May 27, 2015, we entered into a settlement agreement, under which
the parties agreed to vacate the arbitration award and we agreed to pay a total of $375,000, and the parties
exchanged mutual releases.

Other than these-two-actionsas disclosed above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM4
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BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM5
INITIAL FEES

Franchise Agreement

When you sign the Franchise Agreement, you must pay us an initial franchise fee.

Our standard initial franchise fee is $30,000. If you are developing Franchised Restaurants under an Area
Development Agreement (see below), the initial franchise fee is $25,000 for each Franchised Restaurant
developed under the Area Development Agreement. If you are an existing franchisee in good standing who
purchases a second or additional franchise, our current policy is to offer a discount so that the initial
franchise fee is $25,000 for each additional Franchised Restaurant.

The initial franchise fee is nonrefundable and, except for the discounted fees described above, is uniform
for all franchisees.

Area Development Agreement

If you enter into a multi-unit development agreement (“Area Development Agreement’), you must develop
at least three Franchised Restaurants. When you sign the Area Development Agreement, you also will sign
a Franchise Agreement for the first Franchised Restaurant to be developed under the Area Development
Agreement and you will pay the $25,000 reduced initial franchise fee for the first Franchised Restaurant,
as well as an Area Development Fee which will be equal to $10,000 for each Franchised Restaurant,
excluding the first, that you commit to develop under the Area Development Agreement. For example, if
you sign an Area Development Agreement that requires you to develop three Franchised Restaurants, your
Development Fee will be $20,000. The area development fee is nonrefundable.

When you sign the second and each subsequent Franchise Agreement under the Area Development
Agreement, we will credit $10,000 of your Area Development Fee toward the payment of the $25,000
initial franchise fee due under the Franchise Agreement, and you will pay us the $15,000 balance at that
time.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES

Franchise Agreement
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Type of Feel

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Royalty Fee®

5% of Gross Revenues

Weekly

See definition of Gross
Revenues.2

Advertising Fund
Contribution®®

Up to 3% of Gross
Revenues, currently 2%

Weekly

Currently 2% of Gross
Revenues.

Local Advertising
Requirement

At least 3% of Gross
Revenues

Weekly

Franchisee must spend a
minimum of 3% on local
advertising; Franchisor may
require Franchisee to pay some
or all of this amount to
Franchisor to be used by
Franchisor for local marketing
purposes on Franchisee’s behalf.
Franchisee shall be required to
spend any balance of its Local
Advertising Requirement not
collected by Franchisor on its
own.

Advertising
Cooperative

Your proportionate share
will be determined by
participating locations in
the advertising cooperative

Monthly

If you are required to participate
in an Advertising Cooperative,
the amount of your contribution
to cooperative advertising and
promotional programs in the
Advertising Coverage Area will
be credited toward your Local
Advertising Requirement.
Currently, there are no
advertising cooperatives.

Operational
expenditures,
upgrades and
modifications®

A reasonable per diem for
our services

At time of
upgrade or
modification

You must update your
Franchised Restaurant within the
reasonable time period we
request to meet our updated
standards, specifications, and
operating procedures. There are
no required capital expenditures
during first two years of
operations.
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Type of Feel Amount Due Date Remarks
We may assume management of
your Franchised Restaurant if
you abandon or fail to actively
Weekly after | operate the Franchised
A reasonable daily time of Restaurant, fail to comply with

Management Fee* management fee, currently, service and | any provision of the Franchise
$500 per day for up to 60 at the same | Agreement and do not timely
days, plus expenses time asthe | cure, or if the Franchise

Royalty Fees | Agreement expires or terminates
and we are deciding whether to
exercise our purchase option for
the Franchised Restaurant.

$100 for past due payments

and payments not honored

by your financial institution Applies to all amounts due to us,
(plus related bank charges), including Royalty Fees,

Late fees plus interest at the lower of As incurred | Advertising Fund Contributions,
1.5% per month or the and amounts due for purchases
highest commercial contract from us or our affiliates.
interest rate under
applicable law

Supplier/supplies Reason_able cgst of | . Time of Applli_es to new_sappliers (r)]r

approval® inspection and actual cost o inspection supplies you wish to purchase
test that we have not approved.

We have the right to enforce
Advisory . . payments, and amounts may
Council? Council assessments When levied vary. Currently, there is no
Advisory Council.

Operation of the Weekly after

Franchised time of Prevents harmful interruption or

Restaurant in case $400 per day, plus expenses serviceand | depreciation of Franchised

of your absence, ’ atthe same | Restaurant in case of your

incapacity or time as the | absence, incapacitation, or death

death Royalty Fees
You must reimburse our 30 days after !f you fail to maintain rgquwed
Insurance o insurance, we may obtain
costs billing .
insurance for you.
Reimbursem

ent of our You must reimburse us for our
Transfer Fee — for .
convenience Our actual expenses expensesis | actual expenses for a transfer of

due upon convenience.

demand
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in attending these programs

Type of Feel Amount Due Date Remarks
1/2 of fee is
due upon
your request
Transfer Fee —of | $2,500, plus reimbursement of our
minority interest of our actual expenses approval;
remainder
due at time
of transfer
1/2 of fee is You must pay us a $10,0(_)O _
d transfer fee if you are assigning
ue upon . . ’
our request | YOUr interest in the Franchise
Transfer Fee — y of oﬂr Agreement, transferring all or
assignment of $10,000 anoroval: substantially all of the assets of
interest bprove’, the Franchised Restaurant, or
remainder our owners are transferring a
due at time | Y P . g
controlling interest in the
of transfer . .
franchisee entity.
You must obtain our approval
prior to relocating your business.
You must pay us a Relocation
Ubon Fee, which will be due at the time
re_u%to you request our approval and is
Relocation Fee $12,500 ?qm owed regardless of whether we
transfer approve, deny or condition the
{ranster. relocation in our sole discretion.
You will be solely responsible for
all relocation costs and expenses.
. Cost of ,audit plus interest 30 days after Payable only if audit shows that
Audit on underoavment billin you understated Gross Revenues
pay g by at least 2%.
Additional Time of You pay for _training_if you
.. - | $300 per day plus expenses . request it or if you hire a new
manager training service .
designated manager.
If this is your first Franchised
Restaurant, we provide 10 days
Additional Time of of assistance at the beginning of
. 8 $300 per day plus expenses . .
assistance assistance operations at our cost.
Additional training is at your
cost.
Attendance will not be required
- You must pay your and . .
Continuing our emplovees’ eXpenses Time of more than once a year and will
education® Y ploy P program not last more than four business

days.
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Type of Feel Amount Due Date Remarks
_ You must pay your and _ Attendance will not be requw_ed
Special , Time of more than once a year and will
T your employees’ expenses -
meetings ’ - program not last more than 4 business
in attending these programs
days.
Due if we must re-inspect
Re-Inspection Fee IC;l;r g(lfirg)_r? lljzggp E:Flj?r_entl As incurred Franchised Restaurant to make
P $2 800 ' Y, sure you cured operating or other
’ deficiency.
Due if you are required but fail
to submit any report,
information, certificate,
document, or any other type of
L submission required by the due
?gemlnlstratlve ggglzfrng%’emoo per Ondemand | date. We may increase this fee
on notice to you to reflect an
amount we reasonably believe
estimates our administrative
costs to pursue any required
submission.
Cost of You must reimburse us for all
All costs, including . costs we incur to enforce your
Enforcement or , As incurred bligati der th hi
Defensell attorneys’ fees obligations un er the F_ranC Ise
Agreement if we prevail.
Upon You must defend suits at your
. . settlement or | own cost and hold us harmless
A All costs, including : . . .
Indemnification attornevs” fees conclusion | against suits involving damages
Y of claimor | resulting from your operation of
action Franchised Restaurant.
Enforcement $250 per enforcement effort Upon We may assess an administrative
ministrative i.e., written or verba ee to compensate us for our time.
Administrat tt bal P fee t te us for ourt
oo demand
Fee notification and follow up),
and $250 per week for each
week that the issue remains
unresolved
150% of the Royalty Fee
Holdover Period*? and Advertising Fund Weekly See Note 12.
contributions due in the
Franchise Agreement
Payable only if you prematurely
Liquidated Average Royalty Fees close the Franchised Restaurant
Damages calculated through the end Ondemand | or if we terminate the Franchise

of the term

Agreement on account of your
material breach.
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Type of Feel Amount Due Date Remarks

Payable only if we require your
Franchised Restaurant to utilize

Third-Party Upon the services of one or more of
Delivery Service | All costs and fees. IR our third-party food
14 invoice. X . .

Fees ordering/delivery services and
we pay the third-party fees for
you.

Notes:

Note 1: Except as otherwise noted in this Item 6, all fees are imposed and collected by, and payable to, us.
Unless otherwise noted, fees are not refundable and currently are uniformly imposed.

Note 2: “Gross Revenues” means all revenue derived from the operation of the Franchised Restaurant,
including sales revenue derived from off-premises sales, whether received in cash, in services in kind, from
barter and/or exchange, on credit (whether or not payment is received) or otherwise, less any sales tax or
other taxes collected from your customers if paid to the appropriate taxing authority. Gross Revenues also
does not include the amount of any documented refunds and credits given in accordance with our policies
and in good faith to customers (but only if the original amounts were included in Gross Revenues). Gross
Revenue is not reduced by the amount of any discounts on products or services sold to employees, family
members, or other businesses you own or control or by the amount paid to, collected by, or shared with
third-party food ordering and delivery systems with which we allow the Franchised Restaurant to do
business. All of those transactions must be entered into the POS System at the full, standard retail price for
purposes of calculating Gross Revenue. All barter and/or exchange transactions for which you furnish
services and/or products in exchange for goods or services to be provided to you by a vendor, supplier or
customer will, for the purpose of determining Gross Revenues, be valued at the full retail value of the goods
and/or services provided to you.

Note 3: We may periodically modify standards, specifications, and operating procedures for the operation
of the Franchised Restaurant, which may require you to invest additional capital in the Franchised
Restaurant and/or incur higher operating costs. The reasonable per diem amount we may charge you for
our services is subject to increase based on changes in our costs in providing these services.

Note 4: If you have not cured a default under the Franchise Agreement within the applicable cure period,
we may operate the Franchised Restaurant until we cure the default, using reasonable commercial efforts.
We or our designee may retain, and need not pay or account to you for, any Gross Revenues generated
while we (or our designee) operate the Restaurant.

Note 5: If you wish to sell or use any product which is not on our Approved Supplies List or purchase any
product from a supplier that is not on our Approved Suppliers List, you must notify us and, if requested,
submit samples and other information for inspection and testing. You or the proposed supplier must pay
the reasonable cost of the inspection and evaluation and the actual cost of the test. Our costs will vary from
supplier to supplier due to such factors as to who we assign to conduct the inspection, the time needed to
conclude the evaluation, and our costs (including all travel related costs).

Note 6: When there is more than one PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant in any given area, we may form
a PANCHEROS Regional Advisory Council (“Advisory Council”). You must participate in all
franchisor-approved Advisory Council programs for your particular area and pay all assessments levied by
the Advisory Council.
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Note 7: If you designate new or additional managers after the initial training program, we will provide
training to these managers at the then-current published rates. All designated managers must successfully
complete the training program provided at our headquarters or other location we designate. You are
responsible for all costs incurred by your employees in attending this training program.

Note 8: Should you request additional opening or pre-opening assistance, or if we deem additional
assistance necessary, you must reimburse us our expenses, including travel and lodging expenses for our
representatives, plus our then-current service fee published in the Confidential Operations Manual.

Note 9: You are responsible for all costs you and your employees incur in attending these programs,
including travel, lodging, meals and employees’ salaries, in attending continuing education and training
programs or seminars at a location we designate.

Note 10: You will periodically attend special meetings of all PANCHEROS franchisees to be conducted
at a location we designate. You are responsible for all costs you and your employees incur in attending
these meetings, including travel costs, room and board expenses, and employees’ salaries. Attendance at
the Panchero’s National Franchise Conference or conference designated by franchisor each calendar year
will be mandatory but will not last more than four business days. If we call more than one meeting in a
calendar year and you are unable to attend, we will conference you into the meeting via telephone or other
available means. However, costs of this conferencing will be split among all franchisees that were unable
to attend this meeting.

Note 11: The prevailing party in any legal proceedings is entitled to reimbursement of its costs, including
reasonable accounting, attorneys, expert, and related fees. In addition, if we incur costs or expenses due to
your failure to timely pay any amounts that you owe to us or to otherwise comply with the Franchise
Agreement, you must reimburse us the amount of all costs and expenses we incur, regardless of whether
formal legal proceedings are initiated.

Note 12: The Franchise Agreement contains a holdover provision which states if the Franchise Agreement
expires and you continue to operate the Franchised Restaurant after expiration, we may, at our option,
declare you to be holding over. At that time the terms of the Franchise Agreement will govern the
relationship between you and us and (a) either party may terminate the relationship at any time, for any
reason, or no reason by providing written notice, and (b) the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fund contribution
during any hold over period will be 150% of the applicable amounts due under the Franchise Agreement.

Note 13: Royalty Fees, Advertising Fund contributions, amounts due for purchases by you from us and
other amounts which you owe to us will be paid through an Electronic Depository Transfer Account
(“Electronic Depository Transfer Account”) described in the Confidential Operations Manual. Immediately
following the signing of the Franchise Agreement, you must set up an Electronic Depository Transfer
Account, and we will have access to this account to receive payments. Every Wednesday, you must make
deposits to the account sufficient to cover amounts owed to us as of the preceding Sunday for Royalty Fees,
Advertising Fund contributions, and other funds owed to us for the preceding week. Deposits for all other
owed amounts must be according to the procedures included in the Confidential Operations Manual.

Note 14: We reserve the right to require you to participate in one or more third-party food ordering and
delivery services with one or more suppliers who we have approved on behalf of the System (each, a
“System Designated Third-Party Delivery Service”). In the event that we contract with any System
Designated Third-Party Delivery Service directly, you shall be required to reimburse us for your pro-rata
share of any costs or fees we pay to the System Designated Third-Party Delivery; alternatively, in our sole
discretion, we reserve the right to require you to make payment to the System Designated Third-Party
Delivery Service directly on your own behalf. Upon request, we may also allow you to utilize other non-
system designated third-party food ordering or delivery services at your Franchised Restaurant. You may
not utilize any such non-system designated third-party services without first obtaining our written approval.
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Your engagement and utilization of any such non-system designated third-party must be in strict
compliance with the standards set forth in the Confidential Operations Manual. In the event that you engage
the services of any such non-system designated third-party services, any associated costs or fees charged in
connection therewith shall be at your sole cost and expense.

Area Development Agreement

Type of Fee? Amount Due Date Remarks
Before Payable only if you request an
Extension Fee $3,000 expiration of Y yiy g

option period

extension of a development period.

Then-current

Transfer Fee assignment fee, but A:[tr:nTi?e?f :gaglriéﬂtfg:l t?;:;?etr'me of the
at minimum $10,000 9 '
A All costs, including . You must reimburse us for all
Indemnification As incurred

attorneys’ fees

damages arising from your activities.

These fees are imposed and collected by and payable only to us. Fees are nonrefundable and currently are

imposed uniformly.

ITEM7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

TABLE 1.

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
SINGLE UNIT FRANCHISE

To Whom
bR .Of Amount i Eion B When Due Payment is to be
Expenditure Payment M
ade
. . Upon Signing
Imtllal Franchise $30,000 Lump Sum Franchise Us
Fee
Agreement
Real Estate/Rent Upon Sianina the
and Security $0-$30,000 As Arranged P gning Landlord
o Lease
Deposit
Utility Security i One Month Utility
Deposits® $0-$5,000 As Arranged Before Opening Companies
Following Landlord
Leasehold $378 450,000 - o !
Improvements® $750 900,000 As Arranged Opening; _May Appro_ved
Be Earlier Suppliers
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 12
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To Whom
Type .Of Amount ATt B When Due Payment is to be
Expenditure Payment
Made
Furniture
. ; $165,000 - Approved
letyres &5 $210,000 As Arranged As Arranged suppliers
Equipment
Initial
Merchandise $2,000 - $5,000 As Arranged Before Opening Hs,—App_r oved
Suppliers
Purchases
. . Approved
6 -
Initial Inventory $8,500 - $15,000 As Arranged Before Opening Suppliers
Insurance’ $3,500 - $17,000 As Arranged As Arranged Insurance Carrier
Transportation
Training® $5,000-$15,000 As Incurred As Incurred Lines, Hotels and
Restaurants
. . First four to six
Initial Marketing i Approved
Campaign® $30,000-$50,000 As Arranged él)Veeks_ of Suppliers
peration
. . Approved
10 -
Signage $10,000 - $38,000 Lump Sum Before Opening Suppliers
Point-of-Sale
System Approved
(“POS System”) $13,500-$18,000 As Arranged As Incurred sSp liers
and Back Office PP
Software
Approved
Office Equipment/ . Suppliers or, if
Suppliest* $3,000 - $7,000 As Arranged Before Opening none. You
Determine
:;gﬁ:ﬁglszand $1,000 - $7,500 As Arranged Before Opening | Local Authorities
E:;Sgsmnal $6,000 - $40,000 As Arranged As Incurred You Determine
Additional Funds .
(3 months)™ $25,000-$150,000 As Arranged As Incurred You Determine
-$680%752,500 -
TOTAL N
$1,387537,500
Notes:

Unless specified otherwise, you will incur the expenses described in the chart above in establishing the
Franchised Restaurant. The expenses estimated in this Item 7 do not contemplate any price impact that
may result from new or proposed government tariffs. Except for the real estate lease and utility deposits,
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which are imposed and collected by third parties, which may be refundable if permitted by the third party,
no expenditure in the table above is refundable. The figures shown above are for existing building only,
whereas the costs may vary substantially if you choose to construct a building for your Franchised
Restaurant. However, you are not required to construct a building.

Note 1: See Item 5 for more information about the initial franchise fee and available discounts.

Note 2: Franchised Restaurants typically occupy 2,000 to 2,500 square feet in an end-cap strip center
location with patio or drive thru/pick up window. You are responsible for renting or acquiring premises
suitable for the Franchised Restaurant. The figures in the chart assume that you will occupy the premises
according to a commercial lease, and that the rent commences on the date the Franchised Restaurant opens
for business. The low figure assumes no security deposit, and the high figure assumes a security deposit
equal to two months’ rent, however, you may incur higher security deposit expenses depending on your
financial circumstances. Rent, taxes, and insurance vary greatly by market and other circumstances.

Note 3: You may be required to pay deposits before the installation or start of service of telephone, gas,
electric and other utilities, as required by any utility company.

Note 4: Your build-out costs will depend upon the size and condition of the premises, the nature and extent
of leasehold improvements required, the local cost of contract work, the location of the Franchised
Restaurant and if the site can accommodate a second digital service line and or drive thru/pick up window
at your Franchised Restaurant. The estimates assume a standard build-out of the premises performed by
the lessor, including landlord-provided HVAC, supplemented by any amounts provided by you for
additional leasehold improvements made to the premises according to System specifications. Leasehold
improvements include plumbing, electrical wiring, carpentry and installation of furniture, fixtures, flooring
and equipment, but do not include building shell costs, exterior work to the building that may be required,
or any costs associated with exterior grease-trap, impact or hook-up fees. The high-end of the estimate
includes a second digital service line and/or drive thru pick up window at your Franchised Restaurant. The
figures in the chart represent your estimated costs, net of tenant improvement allowance, which typically
ranges from $0 to $30 per square foot.

Note 5: You must purchase various equipment and fixtures to operate the Franchised Restaurant, as
specified in the Confidential Operations Manual. You may purchase or lease approved brands and models
of fixtures from approved suppliers. The cost of furniture, fixtures and equipment will depend on financing
terms available, the size of the facility, brands purchased and other factors. The high-end of the estimate
assumes you have elected to offer the optional second digital service line at your Franchised Restaurant. If
you are purchasing an operating restaurant from our affiliate, you may not incur any extra expense for these
items. This estimate does not include vehicles for catering services because a new franchisee typically does
not offer catering services. If you elect to offer self-delivered catering services, you must purchase or lease
a vehicle.

Note 6: Your requirements for initial inventory are designated in the Confidential Operations Manual. You
must maintain an inventory of ingredients, food and beverage products and other products, materials, and
supplies that will permit you to operate the Franchised Restaurant at maximum capacity.

Note 7: You will obtain insurance coverage with the limits we require. The lower figure assumes 25%
down on a yearly premium amount.

Note 8: You are responsible for transportation and expenses of any persons attending the training program.
This amount depends on the distance you must travel and the type of accommodation you choose. The
estimate contemplates attendance by one person traveling to our headquarters or other location for
approximately two days for an initial orientation session and two persons traveling to a location that we
designate for approximately three weeks for on-the-job training.

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 14
Franchise Disclosure Document | 26242025



Note 9: You must spend at least $30,000 to $50 000 for an |n|t|al marketmg campalgn which WI|| be paid
to our approved suppliers. -
must register the business with onlme d|rector|es such as Google, at our dlrectlon (See Item 11 )

Note 10: Signage includes exterior signs that bear the Marks. Sighage costs may vary depending on the
type, size and location of the signs and local restrictions.

Note 11: You must lease or purchase various office equipment and supplies.

Note 12: This estimate includes food licenses but excludes any building permits you need to obtain. The
high figure is the maximum suggested expenditure for the license.

Note 13: This estimate includes architect and attorneys’ fees. Your fees will vary by market and your
decisions regarding the advisory services you obtain.

Note 14: This estimates the funds needed to cover your initial expenses for the first three months of
operation (other than the items identified separately in the table). It includes payroll costs for a manager
but not any draw or salary for you. However, this is only an estimate, and it is possible that you will need
additional working capital during your first three months of operation. In compiling these estimates, we
relied on our franchisees’ experience and our affiliate’s experience in operating PANCHEROS restaurants.

TABLE 2

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

METHOD TO WHOM
TYPE OF OF PAYMENT
EXPENDITURE AMOUNT PAYMENT | WHEN DUE ISTO BE
MADE

Area Development Fee | $20,000 Lump Sum At the Signing | Us
(Note 1) of the

[if you sign an Area Development

Development Agreement Agreement

for the minimum of three
Restaurants; $0 for the
first outlet, $10,000 each
for the second and third
outlet.]
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METHOD TO WHOM

TYPE OF OF PAYMENT

EXPENDITURE AMOUNT PAYMENT | WHEN DUE ISTO BE
MADE

Reduced Initial $25,000 At the Signing | Us

Franchise Fee for the of the

first Restaurant to be Development

developed under the Agreement

Development

Agreement

(Note 1)

Initial Investment for $650 $722,500 -|See Item 7|[See Item 7|Seeltem?7

your first Restaurant to | $1,357507,500 Chart  above | Chart above for | Chart above

be developed under the for Franchise | Franchise for Franchise

Development [The initial investment | Agreement Agreement Agreement

Agreement range disclosed in Table

(Note 2) 1 for the first Restaurant

Developer is obligated to
open under the Area
Development Agreement,
less the Initial Franchise
Fee which is reduced per

above.]
TOTAL $695767,500 -
(Notes 1 & 2) $1,402552,500

[Total Amount includes
the Development Fee for
for three Restaurants, as
well as the initial
franchise fee and the
Initial  Investment for
your first Restaurant.]

Notes.

Note 1. If you are granted the opportunity to enter into an Area Development Agreement, as disclosed in
Item 1, you and we will mutually agree on an area to be defined in the Area Development Agreement as
the “Development Area.” The Development Agreement will specify the number of PANCHEROS®
Restaurants you are required to open under the Development Agreement (the “Development Area
Restaurants™), with a minimum of three PANCHEROS® Restaurants. You will be required to sign your
first Franchise Agreement at the same time you sign the Area Development Agreement. Upon signing, you
will be required to pay an Initial Franchise Fee (discounted to $25,000 in accordance with Item 5) for your
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first PANCHEROS® Restaurant and an Area Development Fee, which will be equal to Ten Thousand
Dollars ($10,000) for each PANCHEROS ® Restaurant that you are obligated to develop (other than the
first Restaurant) pursuant to the Area Development Agreement. For example, if your Area Development
Agreement obligates you to open three PANCHEROS ® Restaurants, upon signing your first Franchise
Agreement and the Area Development Agreement, you will pay us an Initial Franchise Fee of Twenty-Five
Thousand Dollars ($25,000) and an Area Development Fee of Twenty-Thousand Dollars ($20,000;
calculated by multiplying $10,000 by each restaurant you commit to developing beyond the first). Prior
to developing each PANCHEROS ® Restaurant you are obligated to develop pursuant to your Area
Development Agreement, You (or your approved affiliate) will (a) sign our then-current Franchise
Agreement and (b) pay us an initial franchise fee of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), which we
will offset by $10,000 (the portion of the Area Development Fee you paid for this outlet), so you will only
be required to pay us Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) upon signing the second and each subsequent
Franchise Agreement. If you are unable to open the PANCHEROS © Restaurants you are obligated to open
under the Development Agreement, or if the Development Agreement is terminated for any reason, you
will not receive any refund of any portion of the Area Development Fee, the Initial Franchise Fee(s) or any
other fees paid to us.

Note 2. The Initial Investment estimate for the first PANCHEROS ® Restaurant to be developed under an
Area Development Agreement was derived from the Total Estimated Initial Investment range set forth
above in Table 1 less the Initial Franchise Fee from Table 1 as a reduced initial franchise fee is already
incorporated into Table 2. Table 2 includes the estimated initial investment range for the first PANCHEROS
® Restaurant you are obligated to open. You will incur initial investment expenses for each PANCHEROS
® Restaurant you are required to open and operate under the Area Development Agreement. These expenses
may increase over time.

Other than the initial fee described in Item 5 and the costs of your legal and business advisors, you will not
have any costs beginning business as an area developer. You will incur the costs estimated above for each
Restaurant you develop (at least three) during the term of the Area Development Agreement.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Approved Supplies and Suppliers

You must purchase certain proprietary ingredients and food products from designated or approved
suppliers, which may include us, our affiliate, and/or third-party suppliers. These items may include custom
bottled sauces, marinade sauces, splce mixes, salsas, pre-cut or pre- packaged meats and other varlous
proprietary items. ,
by-appheable-taw—\We have the rlqht to mtroduce addltlonal substltute new, or dlscontlnue any proprletarv
products in our sole discretion.

For-all-otherproducts-and-servicesFor all other products and services, we have the right to designate the

specific brand and/or manufacturer of those supplies, products and services, and to designate an exclusive
source, or sources, from whom you must purchase those supplies, which may be us, our affiliate, or a
designated third-party supplier. We reserve the right, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to require
you to use only an accountant, insurance broker, or real estate broker that we have approved.

We may, at any time in our sole discretion, designate additional Approved Suppliers (which may be us or
our affiliates) or remove any Approved Supplier from our approved list and we also have the right to
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designated new, modified or additional Approved Supplies or discontinued or disapprove any previously
required Approved Supplies.

Before you open your Restaurant, we will give you a list of approved manufacturers, suppliers and
distributors authorized for the Franchised Restaurant (“Approved Suppliers List”) and a list of approved
inventory, products, fixtures, furniture, equipment, signs, stationery, supplies, uniforms, retail merchandise
and other items or services necessary to establish and operate the Franchised Restaurant (“Approved
Supplies List”).

The Franchised Restaurant must at all times maintain an inventory of ingredients, food and beverage

products and other products, materials and supplies that will permit operation of the Franchised Restaurant
at maximum capacity.

Virtually all goods, services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, and inventory that you will use in connection
with the initial and ongoing operation of your Franchised Restaurant must be purchased according to our
specifications or from approved suppliers. Therefore, these purchases and leases are up to 100% of your
overall purchases and leases in establishing and then operating your Franchised Restaurant.

Any item used in the Franchised Restaurant that is not specifically required to be purchased according to

the Approved Suppliers List or the Approved Supplies List must conform to our established standards and
specifications. We will communicate these to you in our Confidential Operations Manual or otherwise in

writing.

We do not guarantee the availability of independent sources of supply for any particular item, product
or service required to established or operate your Franchised Restaurant. We do not provide material
benefits to you (including renewal rights or the right to additional franchises) based on whether you
purchase through the sources we designate or approve. As of this issuance date hereof, we have
negotiated pricing arrangements for the benefit of our franchisees with one supplier for certain
cleaning products; we reserve the right to discontinue or renegotiate this arrangement or introduce
other negotiated agreements (including those that contain pricing terms) with other suppliers so in the
future.

Approval of Alternate Suppliers

If you would like to sell or use any product, material or supply or purchase any products from a supplier
not on either of these lists, you must notify us and may need to submit samples and other information to us
so that we can make an informed decision as to whether this product or supplier meets our standards. You
may be charged for the costs of our testing a product or supplier. (See Item 6.) We will notify you of our
approval or disapproval within a reasonable time (no more than 60 days) after we receive all requested
information and materials related to the product or supplier.

In approving a proposed supplier, we generally consider the supplier’s ability to purchase product in bulk,
guality of service, including sanitation, production and delivery capability, proximity to Franchised

Restaurants in order to make timely deliveries of product, and dependability. If you request a supplier, we
will make our criteria available to you.

tratning-program-—We may limit the number of approved suppliers with whom you may deal, designate
sources that you must use, and/or refuse any of your requests to approve an alternate supplier for any reason,
including that we have already designated an exclusive source (which might be us or our affiliate) for the
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particular item or service if we believe that doing so is in the best interests of the PANCHEROS network.
None of our officers hold an interest in any of our suppliers.

Revenue from Franchisee Purchases

Our soft drink vendor currently makes a payment directly to the Advertising Fund for every gallon of
fountain syrup purchased by the franchise system. Under that arrangement, our soft drink vendor paid $
$192,481.8810188,983.13t0 the Advertising Fund in 20242623. Our soft drink vendor also currently makes

payments directly to franchisees (for franchised restaurants) and our affiliates (for affiliate-owned

restaurants) based on gallons pumped at $2.25 per gallon pumped, discounts certain other beverages
purchased by the system and provrdes a lump sum payment for Restaurant grand openrng marketlng

idered In addltlon another approved suppller—

A ol provides a payment

dlrectlv to us for 5% on the basis of system-wide annual net sale increases as well on the basis of quarterly
net sales of certain product categories. This same vendor also provides a one-time account credit to each
new restaurant (whether franchised or affiliated-owned) for the value of its opening order and provides

$5,000 sponsorship to us to offset the costs of our eest-we-derive-ne-additional-revenue-from-yourpurehases
efthese-Hems—Hr-annual system conference (if one is held).

In 2024, we derived $36,431.152023,-we-did-net-derive-any-revenue as a result of franchisee purchases
from Approved Suppliers—You-must-purchase-pre-approved-t-shirts,pole-shirts-, which accounted for

.357% of our total revenue of $10,194,108 as reflected in our most recent audited financial statements.
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and our aff|I|ates reserve the rlqht to derlve addltlonal revenue and hats—#em—eer—appreved—dm#erm

notedeeoatebeneﬂts (in addltlon to that WhICh is described in thls n%mHmme
future—derive—revenueltem 8) from the direct lease or sale of goods and services to you and other

franchisees.

Insurance

You must obtain and maintain, at your own expense, the insurance coverage that we periodically require.
You must obtain your insurance from our designated provider, unless the laws of your state restrict us from
designating an insurance provider. All coverages apply per Franchised Restaurant that you operate.
Currently, you must have at least the following:

e Property Insurance with special form coverage on all improvements, betterments, and all business
property used in the Franchised Restaurant at 100% of replacement cost value, but no less than
$500,000. Flood and Earthquake coverage will be required in geographically prone areas.

° General Llablllty coverage for $1 000, OOO per occurrence and $2 OOO 000 aggregate—meledmgthe
3 : z h a— This policy must
mclude Products L|ab|I|ty coverage Wlth an aggregate of $2 000, 000 Damage to Rented Premises

of $300,000, and Personal Injury and Advertising Liability of $1,000,000.

e Business interruption coverage for actual loss sustained for 12 months or 50% of gross annual sales.

e Auto Liability for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles used in the Franchised Restaurant for
$1,000,000 combined single limit liability.

e Employment Practices Liability including third party claims for $1,000,000 and naming Panchero’s
Franchise Corporation as Co-Defendant coverage. Limit applies per policy.

e Workers’ Compensation with statutory limits, including Employer's Liability of
$500,000/$500,000/$500,000, Alternate Employer’s endorsement in our favor, and any other
insurance that may be required in the state in which the Franchised Restaurant operates. If the
Franchised Restaurant operates in a monopolistic state (i.e., Wyoming, North Dakota, West
Virginia, Washington, and Ohio), you must also obtain Stop Gap coverage on the Workers’
Compensation policy or General Liability policy. Minimum limits are as follows: no less than
$500,000 per accident for bodily injury by accident; $500,000 policy limit by disease; and $500,000
per employee for bodily injury by disease or higher coverage as required by law in your state.

e Umbrella Liability for $1,000,000 in excess of the General Liability, Auto Liability, Liquor
Liability, and Employer's Liability.

These are our minimum requirements only, and we have the right to modify these requirements at any time.
You should consult with your own insurance advisor to determine whether they are appropriate and
sufficient for your business and to protect your assets. Your landlord and/or state may require more
coverage or different types of coverage.
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All insurance policies must be written by a carrier who is licensed in the state in which the Franchised
Restaurant operates and with an A.M. Best rating of not less than A-VII. All insurance policies must be
primary and non-contributory to any insurance we might carry. All insurance policies must specifically
name us and our affiliates as an additional insured. All policies must also include a waiver of subrogation
in favor of us and our affiliates, and each company’s officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members,
agents, representatives, independent contractors, servants, and employees, and must include a statutory
notice of cancellation directed to both you and to us or the person we designate. Deductibles for all policies
must not be greater than $10,000.

You must provide us with a certificate of insurance complying with the stated requirements within 90 days
after signing the Franchise Agreement, upon signing a lease agreement for the Franchised Restaurant, or
on the date which you acquire an interest in the real property from which you will operate the Franchised
Restaurant, whichever event occurs first. You must also provide us with a certificate of insurance annually
and 10 days prior to any renewal with the endorsements as noted below. If you do not comply with the
insurance requirements, we reserve the right, but not the duty, to force place insurance on your behalf and
charge you the premium due along with any administration fee that might apply and which will be due
immediately to us.

ITEM9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this
disclosure document.

Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document Item
a. Site selection and 3.B.-D. of Franchise Agreement; 7,11, and 12
acquisition/lease 3. of Area Development Agreement
b. Pre-opening 3. D. and 3.F. of Franchise 5,7,and 8
purchase/leases Agreement
c. Site development and other | 3.F.-G. of Franchise Agreement; 7,8,and 11
pre-opening requirements 5. of Area Development Agreement
d. Initial and ongoing training | 5.A.-F. of Franchise Agreement; 6,7,and 11
5(a)(ii) and 5(c) of Area
Development Agreement
e. Opening 3.G. of Franchise Agreement 11
f.  Fees 4.A.-B.4H.,5.,9B.D., 10.G,, 5,6, and 7
11.0., 11.Q. and 16. of Franchise
Agreement;
3. and 8. of Area Development
Agreement
g. Compliance with standards | 7.A., of Franchise Agreement; 8and 11
and policies/operating 5. of Area Development Agreement
manual
h. Trademarks and 6. and 8. of Franchise Agreement; 13 and 14
proprietary information 6. of Area Development Agreement
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Obligation

Section in Agreement

Disclosure Document Item

i. Restrictions on
products/services offered

11. of Franchise Agreement

8 and 16

J- Warranty and customer
service requirements

11. of Franchise Agreement

Not Applicable

17. of Area Development
Agreement

k. Territorial development 1. and 3. of Area Development 12
and sales quotas Agreement
I. Ongoing product/service 11. of Franchise Agreement 8and 11
purchases
m. Maintenance, appearance, 3.F. and 11.D. of Franchise 6 and 17
and remodeling Agreement
requirements
n. Insurance 12. of Franchise Agreement 6,7,and 8
0. Advertising 9. of Franchise Agreement 6,7,and 11
p. Indemnification 19. of Franchise Agreement; 6
11. of Area Development
Agreement
g. Owner’s participation/ 11.E.-F. and 14.D. of Franchise 11 and 15
management/staffing Agreement
r. Records and reports 10. of Franchise Agreement 9and 11
s. Inspections and audits 10.G. and 11.0. of Franchise 6and 11
Agreement
t.  Transfer 16. of Franchise Agreement; 17
8. of Area Development Agreement
u. Renewal 2. of Franchise Agreement 17
v. Post-termination 15. of Franchise Agreement; 17
obligations 7. of Area Development Agreement
w. Non-competition 13. of Franchise Agreement; 17
covenants 9. of Area Development Agreement
x. Dispute resolution 26. of Franchise Agreement; 17

y. Licenses

11.1. of Franchise Agreement

Not Applicable

ITEM 10
FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease, or obligation.
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ITEM 11

FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS. AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, Panchero’s Franchise Corporation is not required to provide you with any
assistance.

Before you open the Franchised Restaurant, we will:

1.

Approve the lease for the Franchised Restaurant premises that meets our requirements. The lease
must contain the provisions we periodically specify, and you must execute a lease rider, a sample
of which is attached as Exhibit E to the Franchise Agreement. We anticipate your signing a lease
with a third-party lessor unless you acquire ownership of the real property that will house restaurant
operations. (Section 3.D. of Franchise Agreement.)

If this is your first Franchised Restaurant, provide an initial two-day orientation session to you or
your managing owner to introduce you to the PANCHERQOS brand. This session will occur no
later than eight weeks after you sign the Franchise Agreement. (Section 5.A. of Franchise
Agreement; Section 5(c) of Area Development Agreement.)

If this is your first Franchised Restaurant, train you or your designated manager and other personnel
you designate, no later than six weeks before your Franchised Restaurant opens for business, at an
on-the-job training program for approximately three business weeks, as described below. If you
are acquiring an additional Franchised Restaurant, we may, at our option, reduce the time and extent
of on-the-job training required. We do not charge for this training or service; however, all expenses
incurred by you, your employees’ costs in attending this program, including travel and room and
board expenses, and employees’ salaries will be your sole responsibility. All training occurs at our
headquarters or at a location that we designate. (Section 5.B. of Franchise Agreement.)

Provide you with an Approved Supplies List and Approved Suppliers List, and the minimum
standards and specifications you must satisfy in developing and operating the Franchised
Restaurant. The Approved Supplies List and Approved Suppliers List shall identify all supplies,
including, but not limited to, the equipment, fixtures, furniture, signage, and inventory that you
must use when developing and operating your Franchised Business. Except as otherwise set forth
in Item 8, we do not provide these supplies to you. We will provide you with this information
during the initial phase of our training program. (Section 11.C. of Franchise Agreement.)

If we do not require you to offer, but you wish to offer, catering services, review your request to
do so. If we require you to offer mandatory catering, or grant approval of your catering service
request, we will provide applicable guidelines and provide you with specifications for acceptable
brands and types of vehicles you will use for catering services. You must strictly comply with all
such specifications. (Section 11.H. of Franchise Agreement.)

During your operation of the Franchised Restaurant, we will:

1.

If this is your first Franchised Restaurant, for approximately 10 days around the time the Restaurant
opens for business, furnish to you at your Premises and at our expense one of our representatives
to facilitate the opening of your Franchised Restaurant. This is part of our initial training program
which you must successfully complete. We may provide additional training if requested by you at
our then-current fee. (Section 5.C. of Franchise Agreement.)

Loan you a copy of the Confidential Operations Manual, which may be, in our discretion, in a
physical or electronic format. The physical format currently contains 126 pages. The Table of
Contents of the Confidential Operations Manual is attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit
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10.

E. If an electronic format is provided, we may require you to access it via a secure password
protected site and you must comply with all of our policies and procedures regarding accessing the
Confidential Operations Manual electronically, as well as for downloading it and monitoring it
regularly for updates (all of which you will be required to comply with). (Section 7.A. of Franchise
Agreement.)

Review your advertising materials. You will submit to us for prior approval all promotional
materials and advertising that you intend to use, which may include radio and television advertising,
digital media, social media, specialty and novelty items, signs, containers, and boxes. We will use
good faith efforts to approve or disapprove your materials within 30 days from receiving them. You
may not use the materials until they are approved in writing, and we have the right to disapprove
materials that we have previously approved. (Section 9.A. of Franchise Agreement)

Establish guidelines for Grand Opening Advertising and publish these guidelines in the
Confidential Operations Manual. (Section 9.B. of Franchise Agreement.)

Administer the Advertising Fund. (Section 9.C. of Franchise Agreement.)

Update the Approved Supplies List and Approved Suppliers List, as we periodically deem
necessary. (Section 11.C. of Franchise Agreement.)

Modify the System, including adopting and using new or modified trade names, trademarks, service
marks or copyrighted materials, new menu items, new products, new equipment, new techniques,
new recipes or new presentations. (Section 7.B. of Franchise Agreement.)

Periodically advise or offer guidance to you on prices for the food and other products offered for
sale by the Franchised Restaurant that, in our judgment, constitute good business practice.
Alternatively, we may, to the extent the law allows, regulate your minimum, maximum, or other
prices for products and require you to participate in system-wide discount programs. (Sections 9.G.
and 11.J. of Franchise Agreement.)

Provide such ongoing consultation and advice as we deem appropriate, which may include
information about new service and product development, instruction concerning the operation and
management, advertising and marketing advice, and financial and accounting advice. (Section 5.G.
Franchise Agreement)

Provide specifications to you for the POS System you must use, which will include an integrated
credit card and gift card program supported by our approved processor. We may also specify other
computer hardware or software components in the future that you must purchase and use. We will
have full access to all of your data, systems and related information by direct access, whether in
person or by telephone/modem. (Sections 10.C.-F. Franchise Agreement)

Site Selection and Opening.

If we sign the Franchise Agreement even though you have not yet located the Franchised Restaurant’s site
(which often is the case), you must find and lease a suitable site within 180 days after signing the Franchise
Agreement. In that situation, we will identify a Site Selection Area in which you must look for the site.
You are entitled to a 90-day extension at no cost, which we will grant you upon request. However, we may
terminate the Franchise Agreement if you fail to find a site within this 180-day or 270-day (if an extension
is applicable) timeframe. If you are granted multi-unit development rights pursuant to an Area
Development Agreement, prior to developing any restaurant in the Designated Territory, you must first
submit the proposed site to us for approval, which we may grant or deny in our sole discretion and our then-
current site selection criteria will apply.
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Franchisees typically open their Franchised Restaurants within six to eight months after signing the
Franchise Agreement (assuming they had already selected a site when the Franchise Agreement was signed,
or found one shortly after signing the Franchise Agreement). We may, however, terminate the Franchise
Agreement if you fail to open your Franchised Restaurant by the agreed on “Target Opening Date,” which
will be no later than 250180 days, or 270 days if an extension is requested and granted, from the date you
take possession of the site of the Franchised Restaurant. Our prior approval of the site, which will be
granted at our sole discretion, is required. The factors we use to approve the location may include area
competition; area demographics; types of other retail and commercial businesses in the area that generate
a high volume of traffic; and daytime population.

Advertising

Our advertising program for the products and services offered by PANCHEROS restaurants currently
consists of advertising in certain local and/or regional markets and dissemination of promotional materials
at the restaurant level. Our advertising materials currently are created in-house and with the help of an
outside advertising agency. You may develop your own advertising and marketing materials, at your own
expense, subject to the requirements described below. We may elect to utilize various local, regional and/or
national media campaigns in the future which may, include radio, television, magazine, social media, digital
media and Internet advertising campaigns.

We must approve all of your promotional and marketing materials, as well as the proposed medium for
such promotional or marketing materials, before you may use them. To obtain approval, you must submit
to us samples of the proposed materials and notify us of the intended media. We will use good faith efforts
to approve or disapprove your materials within 30 days from the date we receive them. You may not use
the materials until they are approved in writing, and we have the right to disapprove materials that we have
previously approved.

Initial Marketing Campaign

You must comply with our initial marketing campaign requirements, which may include engaging our
designated advertising agency or other service providers, and making a required expenditure ranging from
$30,000 to $50,000. The initial marketing campaign will be conducted according to our guidelines and must
be completed within six months of opening.

Advertising Fund

In addition to your opening advertising campaign, you must contribute up to 3% of your Gross Revenues
to an Advertising Fund (“Fund”). Although we currently collect 2% of Gross Revenues as your contribution
to the Fund, we reserve the right to increase this amount to 3% of Gross Revenues in the future. Fund
contributions are paid in the same manner as the Royalty Fee.

We may use Fund monies to pay for creative development services (including creation and modification of
store design and trade dress, logos, menu design, graphics and vehicle wraps, and advertising and
promotional items, including the cost of photography services and design software); preparing and
procuring market studies, providing or obtaining marketing services (including, conducting customer
surveys, focus groups, and marketing and compliance-related mystery shops and customer interviews);
employing advertising and/or public relations agencies; developing, producing, distributing and placing
advertising (including, preparing and conducting media advertising campaigns in various media, local store
advertising and promotion in a particular area or market, or for the benefit of a particular restaurant or
restaurants concerning restaurant opening promotion or otherwise, conducting and administering in-store
promotions; preparing and executing direct mail advertising, and developing, producing and purchasing
point-of-sale advertising, menus and menu boards, and other sales aids and promotional items and
materials); new product development and development of product packaging; developing, updating and
hosting our web site (including development of locator programs) and/or an intranet or extranet system;
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obtaining sponsorships and endorsements; preparing and conducting sweepstakes and other promotions;
developing, administering, and distributing coupons, gift certificates, stored value card and loyalty card
programs, and customized promotions, and the cost of product associated with the redemption of free
coupons, gift certificates, stored value cards, loyalty cards and/or other customized promotions; developing
and administering other customer loyalty programs; providing and procuring public relations services;
conducting public relations activities; charitable donations; membership fees in international, national,
regional, and/or local trade or other associations or organizations. We also may use Fund monies to
reimburse ourselves for our costs of personnel and other administrative and overhead costs associated with
providing the services described in this paragraph.

We will administer the Fund. We will not use Fund monies for creating or placing any advertisement that
is principally a solicitation for new franchisees, but may include in all advertising prepared using Fund
monies (including Internet advertising) information concerning franchise opportunities, and a portion of
Fund monies may be used to create and maintain one or more pages on our web site devoted to advertising
franchise opportunities and identifying and screening inquiries and applications submitted by franchise
candidates. We are not obligated to spend any amount on advertising in the area where your Franchised
Restaurant is located or to ensure that your Franchised Restaurant will benefit directly from the Fund
monies. Any amounts contributed to the Fund that are not spent in the year they are collected will remain
in the Fund for use during the next year.

Although not contractually required to do so, we anticipate that each PANCHEROS Restaurant owned by
us or an affiliate of ours will contribute to the Fund on the same basis as our franchisees. Upon your
reasonable request, we will provide you an annual unaudited statement of Fund contributions and
expenditures. During our 20242023 fiscal year, the Advertising Fund spent 16-6612.30% on production,
54.9236.20% on media placement, 15.7618.30% on administrative expenses, and +8-72 33.20% on other
expenses including public relations and burrito relations (which consists of assisting franchisees with local
marketing efforts).

Local Advertising Requirement

In each calendar year during the term of the Franchise Agreement, we require you to spend at least
3% of Gross Revenues to promote the Franchised Restaurant in your market area (“Local
Advertising Requirement”). We may require you to spend the Local Advertising Requirement directly
or may require you to pay some or all of it to us to spend on your behalf. If we only require you to pay
some of your Local Advertising Requirement to us, you will be required to spend the balance of it directly.
For any portion of the Local Advertising Requirement that you are required to spend on your own, you will
be required to provide us with proof of your expenditures.

Advertising Council

No advertising council has been established for the franchise system.

Advertising Cooperative

From time to time, we may designate a local, regional or national Advertising Coverage Area (defined
below) in which there are at least two PANCHEROS Restaurant. Advertising Coverage Areas will be
established for the purpose of developing a cooperative local, regional or national advertising or
promotional program. You must participate in and contribute your share to cooperative advertising and
promotional programs in the Advertising Coverage Area, however, this amount will be credited toward
your local advertising expenditure amount. The cost of the program will be allocated among locations in
the Advertising Coverage Area and each location’s share will be in proportion to its sales during the
preceding 12-month period. All restaurants in the Advertising Coverage Area will have one vote per
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location in any established cooperative program. “Advertising Coverage Area” means the area covered by
the particular advertising medium (television, radio or other medium) as recognized in the industry. As of
the date of this disclosure document, there are no advertising cooperatives in existence.

Training

If this is your first Franchised Restaurant, we will provide a two-day orientation session for you (or your
managing owner), which you must attend, to introduce you to the PANCHEROS brand no later than eight
weeks after you sign the Franchise Agreement. We will provide this training to multiple-unit operators
only before they open the first unit. We do not charge for this training or service, which will take place at
our headquarters or at another location we designate; however, you are responsible for all expenses to
attend. If you are an Area Developer, you also must attend this orientation session. This training is in
addition to initial training that we require you to attend upon signing one or more Franchise Agreements
for a Franchised Restaurant.

If this is your first Franchised Restaurant, we will provide on-the-job training to you or your manager and
other personnel you designate which must be successfully completed no later than foursix weeks before
your Franchised Restaurant begins operations at a location we designate. On-the-job training lasts for
approximately three weeks. We will determine at our option whether to provide this training to multiple-
unit operators. If you previously were the manager of a PANCHEROS Restaurant, we may, at our option,
reduce the duration and extent of this on-the-job training. All training attendees must successfully complete
training to our satisfaction.

Classroom Training
TRAINING PROGRAM

Hours of Hours of On-
Subject The Job Location
Classroom L
Training
Day 1:
e Introduction and Overview
e History and Philosophy PANCHEROS
. . Headquarters
e Franchise Relations 8 0 currently at
e Marketing/Advertising Coralville. IA
e Financials '
Day 2:
e Site Selection PANCHEROS
e Design & Construction 8 0 Headquarters
e Operational Standards currently at
e Questions and Answers Coralville, 1A
[ ]
PANCHEROS
Total — Classroom Training 16 hours 0 Headquarters
currently at
Coralville, 1A
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Restaurant On-The-Job Training

TRAINING PROGRAM

Hours of Hours of
. On-The- .
Subject Classroom Job Location
Training .
Training
Week 1: The Basics
e FRONT LINE
o Positions
o Spoodles / Utensils
o Portion Sizes
o Food Quality
o Online Order Execution
e OPERATIONS
o [Food Safety
o Work Logs 0 40 Franchisor’s Selected
o Dining Room Training Restaurant
Management
o Guest Service
o Closing Procedures
e PREP
o Recipe Guide
Procedures
o Proper Labeling / Shelf
Lives
e Food Quality
Week 2: Mastering
e FRONT LINE
o Throughput
e OPERATIONS
o Cash Handling
e PREP .
o PAR el : 0 s
e ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS g
o Opening Tasks
o Inventory / COGS
o Truck Orders
o Schedule System
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 28

Franchise Disclosure Document | 26242025




Hours of
_ Hours of On-The- _
Subject Classroom Job Location
Training o
Training
Week 3: Managing
e FRONT LINE
o Aces in their Places
e OPERATIONS
o Visit Types
e PREP 0 40 Franchisor’s Selected
o Food Tasting Training Restaurant
e ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS
o Labor Management
o Burrito Relations
o Catering
Total Restaurant-on-the-Job Training 0 120 hours | Franchisor’s Selected
Training Restaurant

You (or your manager or designated person or persons in charge of operations) will be trained according to
the full training program described above. More or less time may be allocated to individual subjects
provided in the above table based on our assessments of you and/or your manager. We use manuals, charts,
menus, and other training aids during our prescribed training programs. We reserve the right to conduct
any or all of the initial training set forth above virtually via webinars or via virtual meeting technologies
(e.g. Google Meet, Zoom, GoToMeeting, Microsoft Teams).

The training staff includes Rodney Anderson, Lori Cominsky, Saul Muniz, LeAnn Meyer, and Johnathon
Rodatz.

Mr. Anderson has been associated with the PANCHEROS system since 1992 and has significant experience
in all aspects of operations. Mrs. Cominsky serves as Vice President of Company Operations & Training.
Mr. Muniz serves as Vice President of Franchise Operations. Ms. Meyer serves as Franchise Business
Consultant. Johnathon Rodatz serves as Training Manager.

Mrs. Cominsky has served as Vice President of Company Operations & Training since January 2024. Prior
to joining Panchero’s, she was Vice President of Operations and Training with Craveworthy Brands and
Vice President of Operations at Protein Bar & Kitchen. Mr. Muniz has over 20 years of experience in the
restaurant industry. Prior to joining Panchero’s, he worked with Chipotle working his way from Shift
Leader to Operations Director. He joined Panchero’s in April of 2020 as Director of Operations of company
operated restaurants. He has held various leadership and training roles at Panchero’s, and is now Vice
President of Franchise Operations

Ms. Meyer joined us in August, 2018 as Burrito Relations Manager in the Marketing Department. She
joined the Operations Department as a Franchise Business Coach in June 2020 while helping oversee
training of new General Managers and District Managers. She is now Franchise Business Consultant.

Johnathon Rodatz joined us in January 2024 as Training Manager. Prior to joining Panchero’s he worked
with Five Guys as Multi Unit Manager, Target as Store Director, and Starbucks as Training Store Manager.

If you designate new or additional managers after the initial training program, we will provide training to
these managers at the then-current published rates. All designated managers must successfully complete to
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our satisfaction the training program provided at our headquarters or other location we designate. You will
bear all costs incurred by your employees attending this training program.

We may require that previously-trained and experienced franchisees and their managers and/or employees
attend and successfully complete to our satisfaction any such continuing education and refresher training
programs or seminars to be conducted at a location we designate. Attendance at these continuing education
and refresher training programs or seminars will be at your sole expense (including any and all travel,
lodging, meals and wages/salary costs). Your attendance at any such continuing education and refresher
training programs or seminars will not be required at more than one program in any calendar year and will
not collectively exceed four business days in duration during any calendar year.

In addition to the continuing education and refresher training programs or seminars referenced above that
you may be required to participate in, you may also be required to periodically attend one or more special
meetings of all PANCHEROS franchisees as designated by the Franchisor. If we designate any such special
meeting as mandatory for you and/or certain other key employees (as we will determine in our sole
discretion), you and such key employees must attend. Attendance at the Panchero’s National Franchise
Conference (or other such conference as may designated by franchisor) each calendar year will be
mandatory but will not last more than four business days. If we call more than one special mandatory
meeting in a calendar year and you are unable to attend in person, we will conference you into the meeting
via telephone or other available means. All special meetings will be conducted at a time and location that
we designate in our sole discretion. You are responsible for all costs you and your employees incur in
attending these special meetings, including travel costs, room and board expenses, and employees’ salaries.
If you request to join any meeting other than the Panchero’s National Franchise Conference virtually, the
costs of this conferencing will be split among all franchisees who are unable to attend the meeting in person.

Computer System.

You must obtain and use the computer-based point-of-sale cash register system and designated back-office
solution software that we designate (“POS System”), together with other specified computer hardware and
software, in operating your Franchised Restaurant. You must use a third-party proprietary POS System
available from a proprietary manufacturer (the “Supplier”). This POS System tracks sales and labor data,
product mix, inventory, average ticket, and other information. The POS System and all hardware and
software components you use must conform to all specifications and standards we prescribe, including any
then current Payment Card Industry (PCI) or other security standards we specify for non-cash transactions.
Any updates or upgrades to the POS System during the franchise term is your responsibility. There are no
limits on the upgrades we may require. We have independent access to all information and data contained
in the POS System and there are no limitations on our right to access or use any or all information we collect
from your POS System. We estimate the POS System’s approximate cost to be $13,500 to $18,000, which
amount includes a built-in warranty and first year help desk support. You are also required to use our
designated back office solution software for a current rate of $2,750 -to $3,750 per year and to contract
with Supplier for ongoing support and maintenance of the POS System, for which you will incur an annual
cost between $ 4,500 to $6,000

ITEM 12
TERRITORY
Franchise Agreement

You will operate your Franchised Restaurant only at a site that you select and that we approved as meeting
our minimum site selection criteria. You may not relocate without our prior written approval. Whether or
not we will allow relocation depends on the circumstances at the time and what is in the Franchised
Restaurant’s and the System’s best interests (any relocation will be at your sole cost, plus reasonable costs
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and fees incurred by us in approving the new location). If we permit you to relocate the Franchised
Restaurant, you must comply with our then-current standards and specifications for the Franchised
Restaurant.

If we have not agreed on a site for the Franchised Restaurant before you sign the Franchise Agreement, you
must locate an acceptable site within the Site Selection Area identified in Exhibit A of the Franchise
Agreement. After we approve your site (whether the site identified before or after you sign your Franchise
Agreement), we may grant you a protected territory surrounding the Franchised Restaurant, which we call
your “Designated Area.” If we grant a Designated Area, it will be defined by zip code boundaries, county
boundaries, highways, physical landforms, or other boundaries we deem appropriate. There are no
minimum criteria for a Designated Area. The size and configuration of your Designated Area, if granted,
will depend upon population density, the character of the surrounding area, and other factors.

Your Designated Area is protected only to the extent that we will not operate or grant our affiliate or a third
party the right to operate a PANCHEROS Restaurant, the physical premises of which are located within
your Designated Area, but another PANCHEROS Restaurant’s Designated Area may overlap with your
Designated Area. We and our affiliates have the right, both within and outside of the Designated Area, to
offer and sell at wholesale, retail or through any other distribution system (which includes the Internet,
catalog sales, telemarketing or other direct marketing, supermarkets and other retail facilities) products and
services which comprise, or may in the future comprise, a part of the System. You have no rights of any
kind concerning these sales, and we need not compensate you for engaging in these activities. We and our
affiliates also have the right, both within and outside the Designated Area, to sell at both wholesale and
retail all products and services that do not comprise a part of the System and to establish food service units
operating under a format and trademarks and service marks distinct from the PANCHEROS System.

Carved out from protection in the Designated Area will be any venues that we consider “Closed Markets.”
A Closed Market is any facility that serves a captive market, including department stores, supermarkets,
shopping malls, amusement parks, airports, train stations, travel plazas, casinos, nightclubs, restaurants,
public facilities, college and school campuses, arenas, stadiums, ballparks, hospitals, office buildings,
convention centers, airlines (in-flight service), military bases, and any other mass gathering events or
locations, and facilities of any kind for which food and/or beverage service rights are contracted to a third
party or parties (including, but not limited to, designated road ways and facilities adjacent thereto), whether
inside or outside of the Designated Area. The term “shopping malls” includes any retail center (enclosed or
open), including “outlet malls,” with an aggregate gross leasable area in excess of 500,000 square feet.

Except for the territorial protection granted within the Designated Area you will not receive an exclusive
territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we or our affiliates own or
operate, and from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

You may engage only in the retail sale of menu items. You may not engage in the wholesale and/or
distribution of any product offered for sale through the Franchised Restaurant, except as we authorize.
Because you are selling freshly-prepared food products, it is not anticipated that you will sell these products
other than at the Restaurant or, with our approval, through catering services. There would be no basis upon
which you would use other channels of distribution like the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other
direct marketing. We would have to approve any proposed activities like these. Nevertheless, you are not
prohibited from advertising and marketing the Franchised Restaurant outside of the Designated Area.

Continuation of your limited territorial rights does not depend on your achieving a certain sales volume,
market penetration or other contingency. We may not alter the definition of your Designated Area during
the franchise term (although we may do so upon renewal). Except as described below under “Area
Development Agreement,” you have no options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional
franchises.
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Area Development Agreement

The territory under an Area Development Agreement (“Designated Territory”) will be defined by zip code
boundaries, county boundaries, highways, physical landforms, city or municipality boundaries and other
factors we deem appropriate. The specific nature of the Designated Territory will be defined by a map
attached to the Area Development Agreement before you sign it. We base the Designated Territory’s size
primarily on the number of Restaurants that you agree to develop, demographics, and site availability. We
will mutually agree on the number of Restaurants that you must develop to keep your development rights
(at least three) and the dates by which you must develop them. We will then mutually agree on a
Development Schedule before signing it. Prior to developing a Franchised Restaurant pursuant to an Area
Development Agreement, you must submit the proposed site to us for approval, which we may grant or
deny in our sole discretion and our then-current site selection criteria will apply. While the Area
Development Agreement is in effect, neither we nor our affiliates will establish, or allow other franchisees
to establish, PANCHEROS Restaurants the physical premises of which are located within the Designated
Territory. Neither we nor our affiliates are restricted from engaging in other activities in the Designated
Territory. You may not develop or operate PANCHEROS Restaurants outside the Designated Territory.
We may terminate the Area Development Agreement if you do not satisfy your development obligations
when required.

Except as described above, continuation of your territorial exclusivity in the Designated Territory does not
depend on your achieving a certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency, and we may
not alter your Designated Territory unless you are in default under the terms of your Area Development
Agreement, or otherwise, by mutual, written agreement.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

We grant you the right to operate a business using our System, which is identified by means of certain trade
names, service marks, trademarks, logos, emblems and indicia of origin (the “Marks”) as are designated
by us in writing for use in connection with the System. Our right to use and license others to use the Marks
is exercised pursuant to a License Agreement of unlimited duration dated February 22, 2021 (“License
Agreement”), whereby our affiliate, LDIP Inc. (“LDIP”), granted us the right to use, and license to you to
use for the term of your Franchise Agreement (including any extensions or renewals), the Marks.

The following trade names, trademarks, service marks, logotypes and other commercial symbols are
registered and maintained with the United States Patent and Trademark Office principal register:

Registration . .

Mark N - Registration Date
PANCHERO’S 2525220 January 1, 2002
BOB THE TOOL (standard 3766337 March 30, 2010
character)
BOB MY BURRITO (standard 3695490 October 13, 2009
character)
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Registration . .
Mark NI Registration Date
3695492 October 13, 2009
BOB MY BURRITO (stylized
design)
BURRITOFED (standard character) 4080993 January 3, 2012
BURRITO RELATIONS (standard 4268695 January 1, 2013
character)
v
1 4335985 May 14, 2013
Spatula (stylized design)
PANCHERO'S MEXICAN GRILL 4329233 April 30, 2013
(stylized design)
BURRITOS BETTER BUILT 4377298 July 30, 2013
(standard character)
PANCHEROS (standard character) 4335984 May 14, 2013
PANCHEROS (standard character) 4863133 December 1, 2015
GREENADE (standard character) 4863134 December 1, 2015
FLAVOLCANO (standard character) 4863135 December 1, 2015
BURRITOS WITH BENEFITS 4983651 June 21, 2016
(standard character)
TOFUSADA (standard character) 5074191 November 1, 2016
PANCHEROS (standard character) 5146509 February 21, 2017
QUESO FOR A CAUSE Word Mark 5414693 February 27, 2018
PANCHEROS Word Mark 5685942 February 26, 2019
BURRITOS WITH BENEFITS
Word Mark 5685944 February 26, 2019
TWO SPATULAS Logo
s*/ 5685945 February 26, 2019
?
BURRITOS WITH BENEFITS
Word Mark 5807442 July 16, 2019
WIFI BURRITO Logo 5830070 August 6, 2019
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 33

Franchise Disclosure Document | 26242025



Registration . .
Mark NI Registration Date
_—

=,

ﬁ
PANCHEROS MEXICAN GRILL 6,812,405 August 9, 2022
(Word mark)
MIX-MASTER BOB 98132916 August 152023
{(Word Mark)
QUESO-S0-S0 GOOD 98132928 August 15,2023
Oilgpd Mol
BUH-BYOURBETTER 98132931 August-15,-2023
(Word-Marlk)

All required affidavits and renewals for the registered Marks have been filed. There are no presently
effective material determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark
administrator of any state or any court, and no pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceedings
or material litigation, involving the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial
symbols in any state in which the Franchised Restaurant is to be located.

We are not aware of any superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect the use of these
trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols in any state in which the
Franchised Restaurant is to be located.

The License Agreement is for an unlimited term and may be terminated either by mutual agreement of
LDIP and us or may be terminated by LDIP if we have failed to correct, within 30 days after written notice
has been given to LDIP, a breach of any provision of the License Agreement. LDIP may terminate the
License Agreement immediately and without prior notice if we: (1) become insolvent; (2) make an
assignment for the benefit of creditors; (3) have a petition in bankruptcy filed for or against us; (4) are a
party to a merger, consolidation or conversion, where we are not deemed by law to be the surviving entity;
or (5) are the subject of a dissolution or a winding-up of our business.

There are no other agreements currently in effect which significantly limit our rights to use or license the
use of these trademarks, service marks, trade names, logo types or other commercial symbols in any manner
material to the franchise.

Your use of the Marks, and all goodwill established from their use, will inure to our benefit or to LDIP’s
benefit. You will not receive any interest in the Marks. You may not at any time contest the validity or
ownership of the Marks. You must notify us and/or LDIP within five days after you learn about an
infringement or challenge to your use of a Mark. We will take whatever action we think appropriate. We
are not required to defend you against a claim resulting from your use of the Marks. You must modify,
discontinue using and/or replace any Mark within a reasonable time upon receiving direction to do so from
us. We are not required to reimburse your direct expenses for changing any of the Franchised Restaurant’s
signs, your lost revenue due to any modified or discontinued Mark, or your expenses in promoting a
modified or substituted trademark or service mark.
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You may not use the Marks or any part or derivative of the Mark on the Internet, except as expressly
permitted in writing. This prohibition includes use of the Marks or any derivative of the Marks as part of
any URL or domain name, as well as their registration as part of any user name on any gaming website,
social networking website or mobile platform, or video streaming website or mobile platform (such as
META (FACEBOOK & INSTAGRAM), SNAPCHAT(SNAP), , LINKEDIN, X(TWITTER),TIKTOK or
YOUTUBE), whether or not such social media platform is used for commercial gain, or as part of any
unauthorized email address. You must give notices of trademark and service mark registration we specify
and obtain fictitious or assumed name registrations required under applicable law.

You may not use any merchandising, advertising or promotional practice which is unethical or may injure
our business, or the business of other PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurants, or to the goodwill associated
with the Marks. You must cease and desist using these practices immediately upon notification by us.

You must use the designation ®, ™, SM or other trademark registration notice where applicable or otherwise
indicate in your advertising that the names “PANCHEROS” and “PANCHEROS, plus the design” are our
trade names, trademarks, and service marks.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents or patent applications that are material to the franchise.

We and LDIP claim copyright protection in the Confidential Operations Manual (which contains trade
secrets), advertising and marketing materials, menus, and similar items used in operating PANCHERQOS
Restaurants. We and LDIP have not registered these copyrights with the United States Copyright Office
but need not do so at this time to protect them. You may use these items only as we specify while operating
your Restaurant (and must stop using them if we so direct you).

There currently are no effective adverse determinations of the United States Copyright Office, or any court
regarding the copyrighted materials. No agreement limits our right to use or allow others to use the
copyrighted materials. We do not actually know of any infringing uses of our copyrights that could
materially affect your use of copyrighted materials in any state. We are not obligated by the Franchise
Agreement, or otherwise, to protect any rights you have to use the copyrights. We have no actual knowledge
of any infringements that could materially affect the ownership, use, or licensing of the copyrights. You
may not use any of our copyrighted works on the Internet without our written permission. This includes
display of the copyrighted works on commercial websites, gaming websites, and social networking web
sites or mobile platforms (such as META (FACEBOOK & INSTAGRAM), SNAPCHAT (SNAP),
LINKEDIN, X (TWITTER), TIKTOK or YOUTUBE).

We and LDIP need not protect or defend copyrights, although they intend to do so if in the system’s best
interests. We and LDIP may control any action they choose to bring, even if you voluntarily bring the
matter to their attention. We and LDIP need not participate in your defense and/or indemnify you for
damages or expenses in a proceeding involving a copyright.

You will receive proprietary, confidential and trade secret information of our operations. You must maintain
the confidentiality of this information unless authorized in writing by us. You may divulge confidential
information only to employees who must know it to operate the Franchised Restaurant. All information,
knowledge and know-how which we designate as confidential will be deemed confidential, except
information which you can demonstrate lawfully came to your attention before our disclosure; or which, at
the time of disclosure by us to you, had lawfully become a part of the public domain through publication
or communication by others (without violating your obligations to us); or which, after disclosure to you by
us, lawfully becomes a part of the public domain through publication or communication by others (without
violating your obligations to us).
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Any employees having access to confidential information must sign confidentiality contracts. We will be
entitled to equitable remedies, including injunctive relief, in order to protect our confidential information,
Confidential Operations Manual and proprietary marks.

You must promptly notify us when you learn of an unauthorized use of the confidential information or
Confidential Operations Manual. We are not obligated to take any action against any unauthorized user of
the confidential information or Confidential Operations Manual but will respond to this information as we
deem appropriate. We are not obligated to indemnify you for losses brought by a third party concerning
your use of this information.

The Area Development Agreement does not grant you any right to use the Marks or to use any of our trade
secret and/or confidential information. The Area Development Agreement does not grant you any right to
any copyright or patent which we now own or may own in the future. Rights to the Marks, trade secrets,
confidential information, copyrights or patents are granted only under the Franchise Agreement to be signed
by you and us.

Developer will return to us all manuals and other confidential information described in Section 6 of the
Area Development Agreement that it receives from us in the course of operating the PANCHEROS
Franchised Restaurant when Developer leaves the PANCHEROS System.

You must not use, in advertising or any other form of promotion, the copyrighted materials, trademarks,
service marks or commercial symbols of PANCHERQOS without the appropriate notices which may be
required by law or us, including © or other copyright registration notice.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Franchise Agreement

You (or a managing owner) or a trained employee certified by us and acting as a full-time manager must at
all times directly supervise the Franchised Restaurant. Even if you employ a full-time manager, however,
you will remain obligated to supervise the operations of the Franchised Restaurant. You must keep us
informed of the identity(ies) of your manager(s). If you select a substitute or additional manager, you must
make sure this manager receives training from us.

One of the following people must devote full-time energy and best efforts to the management and operation
of the Franchised Restaurant: (1) you (if you are an individual); (2) any owners (if you are a legal entity);
(3) any general partner (if you are a partnership); or (4) your full-time manager (who need not have an
equity interest in you). Whoever manages the Franchised Restaurant must successfully complete our
training program.

Anyone with access to our confidential information or training program must agree to preserve
confidentiality and not to compete. Also, if you are an entity, we require that all of your owners, officers,
directors and managers (of a limited liability company) sign a personal guaranty in the form included in the
Franchise Agreement as Exhibit B. If any owner is itself an entity, each of their respective owners, officers,
directors, and managers must also sign the personal guaranty. If there are several levels of entity ownership,
each of your owners’ owners, officers, directors, and managers must sign a personal guaranty. This guaranty
obligation also applies to a Developer executing an Area Development Agreement, which guaranty is
included as Exhibit C to the Area Development Agreement.

Area Development Agreement

One of the following people must devote full-time energy and best efforts to the management and operation
of the restaurants developed under the Area Development Agreement: (1) you (if you are an individual);
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(2) any owner (if you are a legal entity); (3) any general partner (if you are a partnership); or (4) your full-
time manager (who need not have an equity interest in you).

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer and sell all items and services that we have approved or periodically require for
Franchised Restaurants. You may not offer or sell any products or services that we have not authorized.

Menu items and other food and beverage products may be prepared only by properly trained personnel
strictly according to our recipes, cooking techniques and processes. We always have the right to approve
or disapprove in advance all products and services that your Franchised Restaurant sells. We have the right
to add or modify authorized items and services that you must offer and may withdraw our approval of
previously authorized items and services. There are no limits on our rights to make these changes. We
may regulate your minimum, maximum, or other prices for the resale of products as permitted by law.

You must use only displays, trays, napkins, boxes, bags, wrapping paper, labels, forms and other paper and
plastic products imprinted with the Marks and colors. You may not install or maintain on the Premises any
digital boards, newspaper racks, video games, juke boxes, gaming machines, gum machines, games, rides,
vending machines or other similar devices without our written approval.

We may require you to cater prepared food products from the Franchised Restaurant in strict compliance
with any catering standards we establish. If the provision of catering services is optional and not required,
you must obtain written approval from us before undertaking this catering service.

We may require you to participate in one or more third-party food ordering and delivery services with one
or more suppliers who we have approved on behalf of the System (each, a “System Designated Third-Party
Delivery Service”). We may also allow you to utilize other non-system designated third-party food ordering
or delivery services at your Franchised Restaurant. You may not utilize any such non-system designated
third-party services without first obtaining our written approval. Your engagement and utilization of any
third-party delivery service must be in strict compliance with the standards set forth in the Confidential
Operations Manual.
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ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP
Franchise Agreement

Section in
Provision franchise or Summary
other agreement
a. Length of the franchise Section 2.A. 10 years from date on which the Franchised

term Restaurant opens to the public for business.
b. Renewal or extension Sections 2.B.-D. Two additional successive terms of five years each.
of the term

c. Requirements for
franchisee to renew or
extend

Sections 2.B.-D.

You are not in default under any terms of any
agreements with us; you have substantially complied
with all of the Franchise Agreement’s (or first
renewal franchise agreement, if applicable),
provisions during that entire agreement’s term; you
have brought the Franchised Restaurant into
compliance with our current standards; you remain
in possession or you secure substitute premises; you
meet our then-current qualifications; you have given
timely notice of renewal to us; you have satisfied all
monetary obligations owed to us, our affiliates, and
your suppliers; you have signed our then-current
form of franchise agreement (which may be
materially different that the form attached to this
disclosure document); you have met current training
requirements; and you and your guarantors have
signed an agreement containing general release
language. You must give us notice of your intent to
renew between nine and 15 months before the
Franchise Agreement, or the first renewal franchise
agreement (if applicable), expires. The Franchise
Agreement also contains a hold over provision
which states if the Franchise Agreement expires and
you continue to operate the Franchised Restaurant
after expiration, we may, at our option, declare you
to be holding over, and the Royalty Fee and
Advertising Fund contribution during any hold over
period will be 150% of the applicable fee due under
the Franchise Agreement.

d. Termination by
franchisee

Section 14.A.

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement if you
are in compliance and we materially breach the
Franchise Agreement and fail to cure within 30 days
after receiving your written notice.
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Provision

Section in
franchise or
other agreement

Summary

e. Termination by
franchisor without
cause

No provision

Not Applicable

f.  Termination by
franchisor with cause

Sections 14.B.-C.

Upon delivery of notice to you if you default under
the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

g. “Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Section 14.C.

You fail or refuse to make payments due us or to
comply with your initial marketing campaign
obligations and do not cure such defaults within 10
business days, or you otherwise fail to comply with
mandatory specifications in the Franchise
Agreement and do not cure within 30 days.

h. “Cause” defined — non-
curable defaults

Sections 14.B.-C.

Non-curable defaults: failure to find suitable
Premises or failure to open Restaurant; failure to
complete training; making a material
misrepresentation or omission in application for the
franchise; conviction or plea of no contest to a
felony or other crime or offense that can adversely
affect the reputation of you or the Franchised
Restaurant; misuse of the Confidential Operations
Manual; abandonment of business for two business
days in any 12-month period; failure to relocate;
surrender of control of business; submission of
reports understating Royalty Fees by more than 3%
for periods totaling three or more weeks more than
twice during the franchise term; submission of
reports late on two occasions in any 12-month
period; continued violation of any health, safety or
sanitation law or operation in a manner that presents
a health or safety hazard; failure to pass two or more
quality assurance inspections during any 12-month
period; your receipt of three or more notices of
default, regardless of whether cured, during any 12-
month period; your offer of any unauthorized
products or services from the Franchised Restaurant;
your bankruptcy; and your misuse of Marks.

i. Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination/non-
renewal

Article 15.

Obligations include: cease operating the Franchised
Restaurant; sell the Franchised Restaurant’s assets
and/or interest in premises to us if we exercise our
purchase option; assign or sublease premises to us
(or on our behalf) if we elect not to purchase the
Premises; stop using the Marks; stop identifying
yourself as a current or former franchisee of ours
(except if you continue to own and operate another
Franchised Restaurant); assign any assumed names
to us; de-identify the Premises from any confusingly
similar decoration, design or other imitation of a
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Provision

Section in
franchise or
other agreement

Summary

PANCHEROS Restaurant (including removing
decorations, fixtures and equipment that we
specify); pay all amounts owed to us and all
damages and costs incurred by us in enforcing the
termination provisions; pay lost future royalties to
us for remaining term if you terminate without cause
or we terminate for valid cause; return all manuals
and other confidential information to us; return all
signs to us; sell to us, at our option, all assets of the
Franchised Restaurant; notify telephone directories
(web-based and print) of your lost rights to listings;
transfer listing as we direct; and comply with the
covenants not to compete (see (r) below).

Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Section 16.A.

No restriction on our right to assign except that
assignee expressly assumes and agrees to perform
our obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

“Transfer” by
franchisee — defined

Sections 16.B.-D.

Includes transfer of assets, contract and all rights
under the contract, or change of ownership.

Franchisor approval of
transfer by franchisee

Section 16.D.

We have the right to approve all transfers by you but
will not unreasonably withhold approval.

Conditions for
franchisor approval of
transfer

Section 16.D.

For a transfer to a third party, you must request our
consent in writing; deliver copy of the proposed
transfer agreement; transferee must meet our
gualifications, successfully complete the training
program and sign the then-current form of Franchise
Agreement; refurbish the Premises at our request;
your landlord must allow you to assign or sublease
to transferee; we determine that purchase price and
payment terms will not adversely affect transferee’s
operation of Franchised Restaurant; you or your
owners subordinate all of transferee’s obligations to
you; you pay the transfer fee and all sums owed to
us or our affiliate; you and your owners and
guarantors sign a release.

n.

Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Section 16.G.

We have the right of first refusal to purchase your
Franchised Restaurant if you or your owners receive
and consider a formal, valid, written offer to
purchase.
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Provision

Section in
franchise or
other agreement

Summary

0. Franchisor’s option to
purchase franchisee’s
business

Section 15.1.

Upon termination or expiration of Franchise
Agreement, we have the right to purchase the
premises at fair market value and the Franchised
Restaurant assets at forced liquidation value
(excluding any value for leasehold improvements or
fixtures belonging to landlord under your lease,
franchise rights, goodwill associated with Marks or
franchise network, and assets not reasonably
necessary to the operation of the Restaurant) by
providing you notice within 30 days after expiration
or termination of the Franchise Agreement.

p. Death or disability of
franchisee

Sections 17.A.-B.

Your heirs, beneficiaries, devisees or legal
representative can apply to us to continue operation
of the Franchised Restaurant, or sell or otherwise
transfer interest in the Franchised Restaurant, within
90 days after death or incapacity. If they fail to do
so, the Franchise Agreement will terminate and we
will have the option to buy the Franchised
Restaurant.

g. Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

Section 13.C.

You must not divert or attempt to divert any
business or customer to a competitor or perform any
act which may harm the goodwill associated with
the Marks and the System; employ or seek to
employ without our consent any person then
employed, or who was employed within the
preceding one-year period, by us or another
franchisee of ours or otherwise cause that person to
leave his or her employ; or own, perform services
for, or otherwise have any interest in any restaurant
or other foodservice business (including a business
you currently operate) that serves (or franchises or
licenses businesses that serve) primarily Mexican-
style or Tex-Mexican-style food items.

r.  Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

Section 13.D.

You may not hire our or our affiliate’s employees;
own, maintain, advise, operate, engage in, be
employed by, make loans to, or have any interest in
or relationship or association with a business which
sells prepared food products or services the same as
or similar to any other product or service provided
through the System for two years after the Franchise
Agreement is terminated within the Designated
Area, or within a 10-mile radius of the Franchised -
Restaurant, or within a 10-mile radius of any other
business using the System.
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Provision

Section in
franchise or
other agreement

Summary

s. Moaodification of the
agreement

Articles 7. and 24.

The Franchise Agreement can be modified only by
written agreement between the parties. We can
modify or change the System through changes in the
Confidential Operations Manual.

t.  Integration/merger Article 24-(c). Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are
clause binding (subject to state law). Any representations
or promises made outside the disclosure document
and Franchise Agreement may not be enforceable.
Nothing in the Franchise Agreement or any other
related written agreement is intended to disclaim
representations made in the disclosure document.
u. Dispute resolution by No provision Not Applicable
arbitration or
mediation
v. Choice of forum Section 26.B. Any action will be brought in the appropriate state
or federal court in the county in which we maintain
our principal place of business (subject to state law).
w. Choice of law Section 26.A. lowa law applies (subject to state law), except that

disputes regarding the Marks will be governed by
the United States Trademark Act of 1946.

Area Development Agreement

Section in area
development or

franchisor without
cause

Provision other Summary
agreement
a. Length of Area Acrticle 4. The Area Development Agreement expires on the
Development earlier of the date in the Development Schedule by
Agreement term which you must execute the final Franchise
Agreement, on or the date of our acceptance and
signing of a Franchise Agreement for the last
Franchised Restaurant to be developed.
b. Renewal or extension No provision Not Applicable
of the term
c. Requirements for No provision Not Applicable
developer to renew or
extend
d. Termination by No provision The Area Development Agreement does not contain
developer a provision allowing you to terminate the Area
Development Agreement for any reason.
e. Termination by No provision Not Applicable; The mere termination of the Area

Development Agreement will not serve to
automatically terminate any fully executed, then-
current franchise agreements.

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation

Franchise Disclosure Document | 26242025

42




Provision

Section in area
development or
other
agreement

Summary

f.  Termination by
franchisor with cause

Sections 7(b)-(c)

We may terminate the Area Development
Agreement if you are in default. The mere
termination of the Area Development Agreement
will not serve to automatically terminate any fully
executed, then-current franchise agreements.

g. “Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Not Applicable

The Area Development Agreement does not provide
for defaults which can be cured. The mere
termination of the Area Development Agreement
will not serve to automatically terminate any fully
executed, then-current franchise agreements.

h. “Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Sections 7(b)-(c)

The Area Development Agreement will terminate
automatically if you are adjudicated bankrupt or are
otherwise involved in a bankruptcy proceeding; if a
final judgment remains unsatisfied of record for 30
days or longer (unless bond is filed); if execution is
levied against your business or property; if a
mortgage or lien foreclosure suit is instituted against
you and is not dismissed or in the process of being
dismissed within 30 days; if you have failed to
exercise options and enter into Franchise
Agreements with us according to your Development
Schedule; or you fail to comply with any other term
or condition of the Area Development Agreement,
make or attempt to make an unapproved transfer or
assignment of the Area Development Agreement, or
fail to comply with the terms and conditions of any
Franchise Agreement or other agreement between
you and us. The mere termination of the Area
Development Agreement will not serve to
automatically terminate any fully executed, then-
current franchise agreements.

i. Developer’s
obligations on
termination /
non-renewal

Section 7(d)

You will lose your options to establish an individual
Franchised Restaurant for which a Franchise
Agreement has not been signed by us. A default
under the Area Development Agreement will not be
considered a default under the Franchise Agreement,
unless specified otherwise. If you are in default of
the Area Development Agreement, but are not in
default under any one or all of your Franchise
Agreements, you may continue to operate the
existing Franchised Restaurant(s) under the terms of
their separate Franchise Agreements.
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Provision

Section in area
development or
other
agreement

Summary

Assignment of
contract by
franchisor

Section 8(a)

No restriction on our right to assign except that
assignee must be financially responsible and
economically capable of performing our obligations
under the Franchise Agreement, and assignee must
expressly assume and agree to perform these
obligations.

“Transfer” by
developer — defined

Section 8(d)

Includes transfer of assets and all rights under the
contract or change of ownership.

Franchisor approval
of transfer by
developer

Section 8(e)

We have the right to approve all transfers by you but
will not unreasonably withhold approval.

Conditions for
franchisor approval
of transfer

Sections 8(e),

8(9)-(i)

For a transfer to a third party, you must provide
notice, the transferee must meet our qualifications,
successfully complete the training program and sign
the current Area Development Agreement. You
must have opened and be operating at least one
Restaurant under the Area Development Agreement,
must be in full compliance under any agreement
between us, will pay all sums owed to us or our
affiliate, you and your owners and guarantors sign
an agreement containing general release language,
and you will pay our then-current transfer fee. The
Territory or Schedule in the Area Development
Agreement will not be amended when transferred.
You must give us 90 days’ written notice before any
sale or assignment of the Area Development
Agreement and 30 days’ written notice of any
received offer to buy your interest in the Area
Development Agreement.

Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to
acquire developer’s
business

Section 8(g)

We have the right of first refusal to purchase your
ownership interest or assets which are for sale and
for which you have received a good faith offer to
purchase.

Franchisor’s option
to purchase
developer’s business

Section 8(g)

We have 30 days from notice of the offer to
purchase your ownership interest or your assets on
the same terms as contained in the offer.

Death or disability of
developer

No provision

A transfer of shares upon the death of an owner of
the area developer (or a transfer of the agreement
upon your death if you are an individual) would be
treated the same as any other transfer.
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Section in area
development or

Provision other Summary
agreement

g. Non-competition Section 9(b) You must not divert or attempt to divert any
covenants during the business or customer to a competitor or perform any
term of the franchise act which may harm the goodwill associated with

the Marks and the System; employ or seek to
employ any person then employed by us or another
franchisee of our or otherwise cause that person to
leave his or her employ; or own or otherwise have
any interest in any competitive business (including a
business you currently operate) specializing in
selling prepared food products and related services
the same as or similar to any product or service
provided through the System.

r.  Non-competition Section 9(d) You must not own or operate a business which
covenants after the specializes in selling prepared food products and
franchise is related services the same as or similar to any other
terminated or expires product or service provided through the System for

two years after the Area Development Agreement is
terminated. You will also be bound by and comply
with the covenants in each Franchise Agreement
signed with us.

s. Modification of the Article 15. The Area Development Agreement can be modified
agreement only by written agreement between the parties.

t.  Integration/ Article 15. Only the terms of the Area Development Agreement
merger/clause are binding (subject to state law). Any

representations or promises made outside the
disclosure document and Area Development
Agreement may not be enforceable. Nothing in the
Area Development Agreement or any other related
written agreement is intended to disclaim
representations made in the disclosure document.

u. Dispute resolution by No provision Not Applicable
arbitration or
mediation

v. Choice of forum Section 17(b) Any action will be brought in the appropriate state

or federal court in the county in which we maintain
our principal place of business (subject to state law).

w. Choice of law

Section 17(a)

lowa law applies (subject to state law), except that
disputes regarding the Marks will be governed by
the United States Trademark Act of 1946.

ITEM 18
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PUBLIC FIGURES
We do not use any public figures to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular location or under particular circumstances.

20242023 Gross Sales Data

As of December 31,-20242023, there were 74372 Pancheros restaurants (47 franchised restaurants and 2625
affiliate-owned restaurants) in operation for the calendar year 20242023 as reflected in Table 1. As of
December 31,-20242023, there were 67 Pancheros restaurants (42 franchised restaurants and 25 affiliate-
owned restaurants) in operation for the three calendar years 20212022 to 20242023 as reflected in Table 2.

Table 1.
20242023 Gross Sales® of all 7372 restaurants
in operation for the full calendar year 20242023:

Total Average Median High Low
$
A2 | o111 400 goe 422263
Restaur $115 9’81 8’68 17 $1,5274,107:34610, | $1,400,919.26470, | $4,379,706.8678 | -10
ants E— 859.28@ 483.06@ 8,478.17 $333,88
411
47 5422 25
Franchi 570342 015208 $ 3_}9
sed on o no | $1,496,657747583, | $1,315;222.70411, | $4,379,#06:8678 '
Restaur | °/4:404.039.67 064.67¢) 228.350) 8,478.17 %—351@8
ants -
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2625 $756.48
Affiliate 0.23
-owned | $41,135.920.9757 | $1,582,150.81663, | $1,611.421.40%61 | $2,556,922.8195 $7§6 49
Restaur 7,828.50 113.14@ 0,910.24% 7,411.87 W’S—

ants -

Note 1:: These financial performance figures do not reflect royalty fees, advertising fund contributions,
operating expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from gross sales to obtain your net
income or profit. “Gross Sales” has the same meaning as Gross Revenues which is all revenue derived
from the operation of the Franchised Restaurant, including sales revenue derived from off-premises sales,
whether received in cash, in services in kind, from barter and/or exchange, on credit (whether or not
payment is received) or otherwise, less any sales tax or other taxes collected from your customers if paid
to the appropriate taxing authority. Gross Sales also does not include the amount of any documented
refunds and credits given in good faith to customers (but only if the original amounts were included in
Gross Sales). All barter and/or exchange transactions for which you furnish services and/or products in
exchange for goods or services to be provided to you by a vendor, supplier or customer will, for the purpose
of determining Gross Sales be valued at the full retail value of the goods and/or services provided to you.

Note 2: -33-({4516 (22%) franchised restaurants and +1-{1513 (18%) affiliate-owned restaurants met or
exceeded this average; 27-{3722 31%) franchised restaurants and +6-(14 (19%) affiliate-owned restaurants
met or exceeded this median.

Note 3: 32(6817 36%) franchised restaurants met or exceeded this average and 24 (51%) of franchised
restaurants met or exceeded this median.

Note 4: 11-{4212 (48%) affiliate-owned restaurants met or exceeded this average and 14-{5413(52%)
affiliate-owned restaurants met or exceeded this median.

Table 2.
20242023 Gross Sales® of all 67 restaurants in operation
for three full calendar years from 20212022 to 20242023

Total Average Median High Low
All 67 252 310
Restaur $110 '131 93 $1,567-485.93643,7 | $1,439.101-47545,8 | $4,379,706-86788, | $514,53
ants 47‘? 60.26© 53.27® 478.17 9.43
42
Franchis 5g 210
ed $68 554 108 $1,540,839.73632,2 | $1,332,335.58385,6 | $4,379,706.86788, $51'4 53
Restaur | = -~ 40.690 32.850 478.17 e
.89 — 9.43
ants
25 | $40.306,288 $756,48
Affiliate- o4 0.3
owned $41 577 898 $1,612.251.56663,1 | $1,637,043.37610,9 | $2,556,922.81957, $7§6 49
Restaur | =" 13.14®) 10.24®) 411.87 R
ants = 4.05
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Note 5: These financial performance figures do not reflect royalty fees, advertising fund contributions,
operating expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from gross sales to obtain your net
income or profit. “Gross Sales” has the same meaning as Gross Revenues which is all revenue derived
from the operation of the Franchised Restaurant, including sales revenue derived from off-premises sales,
whether received in cash, in services in kind, from barter and/or exchange, on credit (whether or not
payment is received) or otherwise, less any sales tax or other taxes collected from your customers if paid
to the appropriate taxing authority. Gross Sales also does not include the amount of any documented
refunds and credits given in good faith to customers (but only if the original amounts were included in
Gross Sales). All barter and/or exchange transactions for which you furnish services and/or products in
exchange for goods or services to be provided to you by a vendor, supplier or customer will, for the purpose
of determining Gross Sales be valued at the full retail value of the goods and/or services provided to you.

Note 6: 28-{4216 (24%) franchised restaurants and 10-{1512(18%) affiliate-owned restaurants met or
exceeded this average; 243620 (30%) franchised restaurants and 101514 (21%) affiliate-owned
restaurants met or exceeded this median.

Note 7: 28-{6716 (38%) franchised restaurants met or exceeded this average and 21 (50%) of franchised
restaurants met or exceeded this median.

Note 8: 12 (48%) affiliate-owned restaurants met or exceeded this average and 13-(52%) affiliate-owned
restaurants met or exceeded this median.

20242023 Food and Paper Costs?

2625 Affiliate-Owned PANCHEROS restaurants operating Full 12 Months

The following chart reflects the 20242023 food and paper costs for the 2625 affiliate-owned restaurants
that we operate, that were in operation for the full 12 months of 20242023, These 2625 restaurants use a
common back-office system and common food cost calculation procedures. There are no franchised
restaurants in this group.

Average Low High Median
Food 26.2469%? 23.7090% 29.-7631.50% 25:9526.60%
Paper 3.6944%® 3.2000% 4.403.90% 3.7040%

Note 1. The above costs do not include labor, rent, utilities, and other costs incurred by affiliate-owned
restaurants:, nor do they reflect any government-imposed tariffs that may impact the future costs of certain
products. Franchised restaurants may incur additional costs that affiliate-owned restaurants do not have,
including royalty payments, training expenses, and certain advertising fees.

Note 2. 1113 (or 4252%) of these 2625 restaurants met or exceeded this average.

Note 3. 14 (or 5856 %) of these 2625 restaurants met or exceeded this average.
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Some restaurants have sold these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance
that you will sell as much.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to you upon
reasonable request.

Except for the information presented above, we do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future
financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also
do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in
writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of
that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income,
you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Rodney Anderson, 2475 Coral Ct., Suite
B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (319) 545-6565, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state
regulatory state agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 20212022 to 20232024
Outlets at the Outlets at the

QLT e il Start of the Year | End of the Year NEE g

20222021 43 4347 04

Franchised 20222023 4347 4748 4+1

20232024 4748 4850 +12

20222021 2627 27 +10
Company- Owned 20222023 27 2726 —B-1
20232024 2726 26 —10

20222021 6970 7074 +14

Total Outlets 20222023 7074 74 +40

20232024 74 7476 02
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Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)

For Years 20212022 to 20232024
State Year Number of Transfers
20222021 0
MissouriFetal 2023 4
2024 0
Pennsylvania 2022 0
2023 0
2024 2
2022 0
Total 2023 4
2024 2
Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 20212022 to 20232024
Outlet geaesrch Outlet
sat Outlets Termina Non- Reacquire tigns i s at
State Year Start | Opene . Renewal d by End of
-tions . Other
of d S Franchisor the
Reason
Year s Year
20222021 02 0 0 0 0 0 02
ArizonraConnectic | 2023282 02 0 0 0 0 0 02
ut 2
20232024 | 02 0 0 0 0 0 02
2021 2 1] 0 0 0 0 2
Connecticut 2022 2 1] 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 1] 0 0 0 0 2
20222021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
. 2023202 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Florida —g
20232024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
20222021 01 10 0 0 0 0 1
linois 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
20212024 61 01 0 0 0 10 52
lowa 2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
2023 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
2024 5 1 0 0 0 0 6
20222021 0 01 0 0 0 0 01
01 10 0 0 0 0 1
Massachusetts —202;’%9% - -
20232024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Michigan 20222021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
g 20220023 | 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
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Ceased

Outlet Opera- Outlet
s at Outlets Termina Non- Reacquire tions - s at
State Year Start | Opene . Renewal d by End of
of d -tions S Franchisor Ol the
Reason
Year s Year
20232024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
20222021 8 01 -0 0 0 0 89
Minnesota 2022 = & 9 9 9 9 El
2023 —39 1 0 0 0 0 10
2024 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
20222021 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
. . 2023202 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
Missouri 7%
20232024 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
20222021 10 01 0 0 0 0 1011
2023282 | 1611 10 0 0 0 0 11
New Jersey —%
20232024 11 01 0 01 0 0 11
20222021 3 01 0 0 0 0 34
2022 3 1 0 0 0 0 4
North Dakota 2023 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
2024 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
20222021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Pennsylvania 20222023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20232024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20222021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
South Dakota 20232022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20232024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Texas 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 ]
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 ]
20222021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Wisconsin 2022 : 9 9 9 9 9 :
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
20222021 43 14 0 0 0 10 4347
Total 2022 43 4 0 0 0 0 47
2023 47 1 0 0 40 0 48
2024 48 3 0 1 0 0 50
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Status of Company-Owned Outlets

Table No. 4

For Years 20212022 to 20232024
Outlets Outlets
State Year at Start | Outlets | Reacquired Outlets Outlett(;s sl Outlets at End
of the Opened From Closed . of the Year
: Franchisee
Year Franchisee
20212022 12 10 0 0 0 2
Illinois 20232022 2 0 0 0 0 2
20232024 2 0 0 0 0 2
20212022 21 0 0 0 0 21
lowa 20232022 21 0 0 0 0 21
20232024 21 0 0 0 0 21
20212022 3 0 0 0 0 3
Michigan | 20232022 3 0 0 0 0 3
20232024 3 0 0 0 0 3
20212022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Wisconsin | 20232022 1 0 0 01 0 10
20232024 10 0 0 10 0 0
20212022 2627 10 0] 0 0 27
Total 20232022 27 0 0 01 0 2726
20232024 2726 0 0 10 0 26
Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2024
Franchise Agreements Projected New Czrrr?g)z(;:s?ol\\:\?r\:\é d
State Signed But Outlet Not Franchised Outlets In Outlets In the Next
Opened The Next Fiscal Year utle
Fiscal Year
lowa 2 1 0
Minnesota 0 0 8
NewJerseyMissouri 1 1 0
Total 3 2 0

Exhibit G is a list of the name of all PANCHEROS franchisees as of December 31, 20232024, and the
addresses and telephone numbers of each of their franchised restaurants. Exhibit G also contains a list of
the names, city and state, and current business telephone numbers (or, if unknown, the last known home
telephone numbers) of each franchisee who has had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or who
otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under our Franchise Agreement as of December
31, 20232024, or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of this disclosure document’s
issuance date. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
you leave the franchise system.

During the last three years, current and former franchisees have signed provisions restricting their ability
to speak openly about their experience with PANCHEROS Franchise Corporation. You may wish to speak
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with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate
with you. There is no trademark-specific franchisee organization associated with the PANCHEROS
franchise system.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this disclosure document and designated Exhibit E are audited financial statements dated
December 31, 20232024, December 31, 20222023 and December 31, 20212022,

Our fiscal year ends on December 31.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

The following agreements are exhibits:

Exhibit C — Franchise Agreement (with exhibits)

Exhibit D — Area Development Agreement (with exhibits)

Exhibit H — General Release Language

Exhibit | — State Addenda and Agreement Riders

Exhibit J — Pre-Closing Questionnaire (not applicable in California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana,
Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin)

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Attached as Exhibit K of this disclosure document is a list of the State Effective Dates for each registration
state. Attached as Exhibit L are duplicate Receipts to be signed by you. You should sign both copies of the
Receipt. Keep one for your records and return the other one to us.
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PANCHERQO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
STATE APPENDIX TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FOR THE STATE OF HAWAII

THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW OFTHE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE
APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION ORENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF
REGULATORY AGENCIES OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOROF REGULATORY
AGENCIES THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETEAND
NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL
ANY FRANCHISE INTHIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, ORSUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR
TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVEFRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING
FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYSPRIOR TO THE
PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR
SUBFRANCHISORWHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE OFFERING
CIRCULAR, TOGETHERWITH A COPY OFALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING
TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS ASUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL
PROVISIONSOF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT
SHOULD BE REFERRED TOFOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS,
RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTHTHE FRANCHISOR AND THE
FRANCHISEE.

FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
Item 17 is supplemented by the following:
Illinois law governs the franchise agreements.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise
agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is void. However,
a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Franchisee’s rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in Sections 19 and 20 of the
Ilinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition stipulation
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:
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No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise,

FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND
Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

@ Item 17(c) and Item 17(m) is amended to state that any release required as part of the
Agreement or as a condition of the sale, renewal, and/or assignment/transfer of the
franchise shall not apply to any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

(b) Item 17(v) is amended to state that any provision in the Franchise Agreement or Area
Development Agreement which requires litigation may be conducted in a forum other than
the State of Maryland will not limit any rights you may have under the § 14-216(c)(25) of
the Maryland Franchise Law to bring suit in the State of Maryland.

(c) Item 17 (h) is amended to state that the Franchise Agreement and Area Development
Agreement provide for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision might not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. § 101 et seq.).

(d) Item 17(w) is amended to state that except for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
and Disclosure Law, lowa law applies.

(e) Item 17 is amended to include the statement that any claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise,

FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA
The following is added to the risk factors on the Cover Page:

PURSUANT TO MINN. STAT. §880C.21 AND MINN. RULE PART 2860.400J, SECTIONS 1
AND 2 ABOVE WILL NOT IN ANY WAY ABROGATE OR REDUCE YOUR RIGHTS AS
PROVIDED FOR IN MINNESOTA STATUTES 1984, CHAPTER 80C, INCLUDING THE
RIGHT TO SUBMIT MATTERS TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURTS OF
MINNESOTA.

WE DO NOT OWN THE MARKS. HOWEVER, OUR AFFILIATE, LDIP., HAS LICENSED
THE USE OF THE MARKS TO US AS DISCLOSED IN ITEM 13 OF THIS FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
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Item 6 is supplemented by the following:

NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute 604.113, which puts a cap of $30 on service
charges.

The following sentence supplements and supersedes the last sentence of the ninth paragraph of Item 13:

Pursuant to Minnesota Stat. 880C.21, Subj. 1(g), we are required to protect any rights which you
have to use our proprietary marks.

Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec.
80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that (1) a franchisee be
given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the Agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably
withheld.

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be
conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or
Franchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota
Statutes 1984, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by the
laws of the jurisdiction.

Any release as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply to the extent
prohibited by applicable law with respect to claims arising under Minn. Rule 2860.4400D.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minnesota
Statutes, Section 181.991, which prohibits franchisors from restricting, restraining or prohibiting
in any way a franchisee from soliciting or hiring an employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor
or of the franchisor. Accordingly, any such restrictions, restraints or prohibitions set forth in this
Disclosure Document in_violation of Minnesota Statutes, Section 181.991 (including those
referenced in Item 17(qg) and 17(r) shall be void and of no effect.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise,

FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK
1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE
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DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE STATE ORPROVINCIAL AUTHORITY.
THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT
ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER,
THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL
UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS
FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT.

2. The following is to be added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in
Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or
comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business,
which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size,nature or financial
condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felonycharge
or, within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been
convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor chargeor has been the subject of a
civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement;
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust,
trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or
proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any
national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such personfrom membership in such
association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order
relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or
department, including, without limitation, actionsaffecting a license as a real estate broker or
sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements
for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions forfranchisor approval of
transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes ofaction
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this proviso that the
non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5) be satisfied.
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4. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Terminationby
franchisee”: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice offorum”,
and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law ofthe State of New York.

6. Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on
any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

Item 17(c) and Item 17(m) are amended to state that any release executed will not apply to the extent
prohibited by applicable law with respect to claims arising under the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

Item 17(r) is amended to state that any covenants not to compete such as those mentioned herein are
generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.

Item 17(v) is amended to state that except to the extent prohibited by North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

Item 17(w) is amended to state that except to the extent required by North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise,

FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
The following statement is added to Item 17(v) and Item 17(w):

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act (the “RIFIA”) provides that any
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside of Rhode
Island or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to claims
otherwise enforceable under the RIFIA.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:
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No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise,

FOR THE STATE OF VIRGINIA
The following statement is added to Item 17(h):

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor
to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any ground for default or termination stated in
the franchise agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the
Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise,

FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
Item 17 of the disclosure document is supplemented by the following:

For franchisees subject to the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Ch. 135, Stats., provisions in the Fair
Dealership Law supersede any inconsistent provisions of the Franchise Agreement or a related contract.

Item 22 is supplemented to add the following:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise,
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EXHIBIT A
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF STATE AGENCIES
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e O EPATTE ACERCIES

California

Department of Financial Protection & Innovation

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013
(866) 275-2677

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

Illinois

Office of Attorney General
500 S. Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

Indiana

Franchise Section

Securities Division

302 W. Washington St., Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

(317) 232-6681

Maryland

Office of Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, Maryland 21202
(410) 576-6360

Michigan

Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Attn: Franchise Section

525 W. Ottawa St.

G. Mennen Williams Building, First Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48909

(517) 373-7117

Minnesota

Department of Commerce

85 7" Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-3165
(651) 539-1600
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New York

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor
New York, New York 10005
(212) 416-8222

North Dakota

Franchise Examiner

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol — 5™ Floor Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

Rhode Island

Securities Division

Department of Business Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Building 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

South Dakota

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563

Virginia

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 Main Street, 9" Floor

Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

Washington

Administrator

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road S.W.

Tumwater, Washington 98501

Wisconsin

Franchise Administrator

Division of Securities

Department of Financial Institutions
345 West Washington Avenue
Madison, Wisconsin 53703

Exhibit A



EXHIBIT B
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
LIST OF AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
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LIST OF AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

California

Department of Financial Protection & Innovation
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, California 90013

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Ilinois

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706

Indiana

Indiana Secretary of State

302 W. Washington St., Room E-111
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Maryland

Maryland Securities Commissioner
Office of the Attorney General

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020

Michigan

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporations and Securities Bureau
670 Law Building

Lansing, Michigan 48913

Minnesota

Commissioner of Commerce

85 7™ Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-3165

New York

Secretary of State

99 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12231
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North Dakota

Securities Commissioner

State of North Dakota

600 East Boulevard Avenue, Fifth Floor
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505

Oregon

Division of Finance and
Corporate Securities

Labor and Industries Building

Salem, Oregon 97310

Rhode Island

Director of Department of Business Regulation
Securities Division

1511 Pontiac Avenue, Building 69-1

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

South Dakota

Director

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Virginia
Clerk of the State Corporation Commission

1300 East Main Street, First Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Washington

Director of the Department of Financial Institutions

Securities Division
150 Israel Road SW
Tumwater, Washington 98501

Wisconsin

Commissioner of Securities
Fourth Floor

345 West Washington Avenue
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
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MEX

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made this day of

| (“Effective Date”) by and between PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an III|n0|s
corporatlon having its principal place of business at 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241
(“Franchisor”), and , a(n)
(“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and its Affiliate (“Affiliate”) have developed and own a distinctive System
(“System™), identified by the Mark “PANCHERQOS”, relating to the establishment, development and
operation of restaurants (“Franchised Restaurants”) providing carry-out and on-premises dining services,
featuring burritos, quesadillas, tacos, salads, rice, salsa, and other food and beverage products, all prepared
in accordance with specified recipes and procedures (“Menu Items”). Franchisor and its Affiliate may
continuously develop a proprietary line of specially formulated spice packs, salsas, marinades and other
food products (“Trade Secret Food Products”) and related presentation, packaging and marketing
standards and techniques for all Menu Items and Trade Secret Food Products; and

WHEREAS, the distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without limitation, distinctive
exterior and interior layout, design and color scheme; exclusively designed signage, decorations,
furnishings and materials; display cooking; special recipes, formulae, menus and food and beverage
designations; the PANCHEROS Confidential Operations Manual (“Confidential Operations Manual®);
food and beverage storage, preparation and service procedures and techniques; operating procedures for
sanitation and maintenance; and methods and techniques for inventory and cost controls, record keeping
and reporting, purchasing, sales promotion and advertising; all of which may be changed, improved and
further developed by Franchisor from time to time; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor’s Affiliate, LDIP, has certain rights together with all the goodwill connected
thereto in and to the “PANCHERQOS” trade names, trademarks, service marks and associated logos,
commercial symbols, and such other trade names, trademarks, and service marks now designated (and may
hereinafter be designated by Franchisor in writing) as part of the System (“Marks”) and has licensed the
rights in the Marks to Franchisor with the right to sublicense to Franchisor’s franchisees; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor grants to qualified persons franchises to own and operate PANCHEROS
Franchised Restaurants and Franchisee desires to operate a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant using the
System and Marks and has applied for a franchise, which application has been approved by Franchisor in
reliance upon all of the representations made therein; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee understands and acknowledges the importance of Franchisor’s high and uniform
standards of quality, operations and customer service and the necessity of operating the PANCHERQOS
Franchised Restaurant in conformity with Franchisor’s standards and specifications.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the undertakings and commitments of each party to
the other set forth in this Agreement, hereby agree as follows:

1. GRANT

A Grant. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, Franchisor grants to Franchisee the
right to continuously operate a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant at the premises identified (or to be
identified) in Exhibit A (“Premises”), and to use the Marks in the operation and promotion of the Franchised
Restaurant. Franchisee undertakes the obligation and agrees to continuously operate the PANCHEROS
Franchised Restaurant at the Premises during the term hereof strictly in accordance with Franchisor’s
System and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

This Agreement specifically grants Franchisee no right, among others, to (1) sublicense the
System or Marks; (2) to co-brand with another concept; (3) to provide delivery services, or to deliver or
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ship products offered for sale by or through the Franchised Restaurant, regardless of the destination, without
Franchisor’s prior written consent; (4) to prepare or sell any product or item related to the Marks or the
Franchised Restaurant at any location other than the Premises (excluding approved catering services as
expressly provided for in this Agreement); or (5) to distribute products offered for sale by or through the
Franchised Restaurant through wholesale channels, that is, to third parties for resale, retail sale, or further
distribution by such third party, including such wholesale channels as supermarkets, convenience stores, or
other retailers.

B. Designated Area. This Agreement grants Franchisee a “Desighated Area” identified in
Exhibit A. Except for sales in “Closed Markets” (which are carved out from territorial protection as
described in Exhibit A), during the term of this Agreement and as long as Franchisee is not in default under
this Agreement, Franchisor will not own or operate, or grant anyone else the right to own or operate a
PANCHEROS restaurant at a location in the Designated Area. Franchisor reserves to itself all other rights.
In consideration of Franchisor’s grant of a Designated Area to Franchisee, Franchisee agrees to, at all times,
use its best efforts to promote and increase the sales and service of Menu Items and to effect the widest and
best possible distribution throughout the Designated Area, soliciting and servicing all potential customers
for PANCHEROS food products and services. Failure of Franchisee to devote its best efforts to adequately
represent its PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant in its Designated Area through its sales and service
efforts shall be deemed just cause for termination.

C. Reservation of Rights. Except for the restrictions described in Section 1.B., there is no
restriction Franchisor’s right to use and to license the use of the Marks. Franchisor may own and operate
and grant others the right to own and operate PANCHEROS restaurants, and may sell and license others
the right to sell products offered at the Franchised Restaurant and other products identified by the Marks
anywhere outside the Designated Area, regardless of proximity to or economic effect on the Franchised
Restaurant. Franchisor may also own and operate, and grant others the right to own and operate,
PANCHEROS restaurants, and may sell and license others the right to sell items and products identified by
the Marks in “Closed Markets” (as defined in Exhibit A) within the Designated Area. Franchisor may
also distribute products and services identified by the Marks, such as pre-packaged Menu Items or Trade
Secret Food Products, through alternative channels of distribution including grocery stores, supermarkets,
convenience stores, and via mail order, catalog sales and/or the Internet.

D. Right to Operate Businesses Under Different Marks. Nothing in this Agreement prohibits
or restricts Franchisor from (1) owning, acquiring, establishing, operating, or granting franchise rights for
one or more other businesses under a different trademark or service mark (i.e. a mark other than
PANCHEROS), whether or not the business is the same as or competitive with PANCHERQOS restaurants;
or (2) owning, operating, or franchising one or more businesses offering products or services other than the
Menu Items and Trade Secret Food Products under the PANCHEROS Marks or some derivative of the
Marks.

E. Discretionary Exception to System Uniformity. Franchisee acknowledges that because
complete and detailed uniformity under many varying conditions may not be possible or practical,
Franchisor specifically reserves the right and privilege, at its sole discretion and as it may deem in the best
interests of all concerned in any specific instance, to vary standards for any System franchisee based upon
the peculiarities of the particular site or circumstance, density of population, business potential, population
of trade area, existing business practices or any other condition which Franchisor deems to be of importance
to the successful operation of such franchisee’s business. Franchisee shall not be entitled to require
Franchisor to grant to Franchisee a like or similar variation hereunder.

2. TERM AND RENEWAL

A. Initial Term. Unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement begins on the Effective Date and expires ten (10) years from the date the Franchised Restaurant
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actually opens to the public for business, which may not be the Target Opening Date (the “Expiration
Date™).

B. Renewal Terms. Franchisee has the right to renew its franchise rights for two (2) additional
successive terms of five (5) years each if, at the end of each term, each of the following conditions has been
satisfied:

1. Franchisee has notified Franchisor, in writing, of its intent to renew at least nine (9) months,
but not more than fifteen (15) months, prior to the expiration of the then-current term;

2. Franchisee is not in default under the terms of this Agreement or any other agreement with
Franchisor;

3. Franchisee has complied and continues to comply with the materials terms and conditions
of this Agreement or any successor franchise agreement (as applicable) throughout the term;

4, Franchisee has the right to remain in possession of the Franchised Restaurant Premises, or
has secured a substitute premises that Franchisor has approved, in writing;

5. Franchisee has satisfied all obligations owed to Franchisor, its Affiliates and third party
suppliers;

6. Franchisee has timely met all payment obligations to Franchisor and its Affiliates and third

party suppliers throughout the term of this Agreement or, if applicable, the term of the first renewal
agreement;

7. The Franchised Restaurant has been renovated and refurbished so that it meets Franchisor’s
then-current image and trade dress standards, and all furniture, fixtures, equipment, signage, and software
has been replaced, updated and/or upgraded so that they meet Franchisor’s then-current standards and
specifications for those items;

8. Franchisee meets Franchisor’s then-current qualifications for new franchisees;

9. Franchisee has complied with Franchisor’s then-current training requirements;

10. Franchisee and each person who has guaranteed Franchisee’s obligations under this
Agreement signs a general release in the form Franchisor prescribes; and

11. Franchisee has executed upon renewal Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise
agreement.

C. Renewal Process. Within sixty (60) days after Franchisor receives Franchisee’s timely

notice of Franchisee’s intent to renew, Franchisor will provide written notice to Franchisee advising
whether or not the conditions for renewal have been satisfied. If corrective action can be taken to meet one
or more of the conditions, Franchisor will identify and provide a schedule for completing such action(s).
Franchisor also will provide to Franchisee the information necessary to complete renovations,
replacements, updates, and upgrades required to meet Franchisor’s then-current image and trade dress
standards and Franchisor’s then-current standards for furniture, fixtures, equipment, signage, and software,
and a schedule for completion.

D. Execution of Renewal Franchise Agreement. No later than sixty (60) days prior to
expiration of the current term, Franchisor will deliver to Franchisee its franchise disclosure document
containing a copy of its then-current franchise agreement. This is the form of franchise agreement that will
govern the successor term. It may be materially different than this Agreement, and may include, among
other things, different or higher fees. This form of agreement will be modified to reflect a five-year term.
Franchisor also will deliver to Franchisee a general release to be signed by Franchisee and each person who
has personally guaranteed Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement.
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No later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the current term, Franchisee must sign and
return to Franchisor (1) the executed franchise agreement and all personal guaranties required under the
franchise agreement, (2) the executed general release, (3) proof that Franchisee has the right to remain in
possession of the Franchised Restaurant premises for the successor term, and (4) proof of payment of any
amounts Franchisee owes to Franchisor, its Affiliates, and Franchisee’s trade creditors. No later than thirty
(30) days prior to the expiration of the current term, Franchisee also must comply with Franchisor’s then-
current training requirements, and shall have completed all renovations, replacements, updates, and
upgrades required to meet Franchisor’s then-current image and trade dress standards and Franchisor’s then-
current standards for furniture, fixtures, equipment, signage, and software.

The foregoing conditions and procedures apply to each five-year renewal term. Franchisor may
extend any of the foregoing deadlines in its sole discretion.

E. Holdover. If Franchisee continues to accept the benefits of this Agreement after the
expiration of the term but does not complete the requirements in Sections 2.B. through 2.D., then at
Franchisor’s sole option, this Agreement may be treated as (1) expired as of the Expiration Date and
Franchisee will be operating without a franchise or license to do so and in violation of Franchisor’s rights to
the Marks and System; or (2) continued on a month-to-month basis (a “Holdover Period”) and all
Franchisee’s obligations will remain in full force and effect during the Holdover Period as if the Agreement
had not expired; provided, however, that during any Holdover Period Franchisee will pay a Royalty Fee and
Advertising Fund contribution equal to 150% of the rates described in this Agreement. Each Holdover Period
expires at the end of each calendar month unless this Agreement is continued as provided in this Section 2.E.
The Holdover Period does not create any new franchise rights and upon expiration of the final Holdover
Period, Franchisee will be bound by all post-term obligations as provided in this Agreement.

3. RESTAURANT LOCATION

A. General. Franchisee will operate the Franchised Restaurant at the Premises identified in
Exhibit A, and will not relocate the Franchised Restaurant without the prior written approval of Franchisor
which may be withheld by Franchisor in its sole discretion.

B. Site Selection. Franchisee must identify and acquire a site, by executing either a lease or
purchase agreement, for the Franchised Restaurant within one hundred and eighty (180) days after
executing this Agreement (the “Control Date”). The site must be located within the Site Selection Area
(the “Site Selection Area™) identified in Exhibit A, must meet Franchisor’s then-current site selection
criteria, and must otherwise be mutually acceptable to Franchisee and Franchisor, where Franchisor may
withhold approval at its sole discretion. Franchisor may assist Franchisee in site selection, in its sole
discretion, which assistance may include making available to Franchisee the services of the Franchisor’s
designated marketing research firm. Franchisor may require that Franchisee use only a real estate broker
that Franchisor has designated or approved to assist Franchisee in locating a suitable site for the Franchised
Restaurant. Site selection is solely Franchisee’s responsibility. Once Franchisee has acquired the Premises
for the Franchised Restaurant, Franchisor and Franchisee will mutually agree upon a Designated Area and
Exhibit A will be supplemented accordingly. The parties acknowledge and agree that Franchisor’s
undertaking to provide site selection assistance does not constitute a promise or guaranty that any
site is available for occupancy or that a Franchised Restaurant operating at a suggested site will be
profitable. Franchisee is solely responsible for selecting a site and securing the Premises for the
Franchised Restaurant.

Franchisee understands and agrees that Franchisor’s approval of Franchisee’s proposed site,
granted in accordance with this Section 3.B., may be conditioned upon Franchisee’s agreement to perform,
or to cause to be performed, certain modifications to the proposed site (“Modifications™). Before the
Franchised Restaurant may begin operations, Franchisor must have approved the completed Modifications
in writing. The required Modifications, if any, are outlined in Exhibit A to this Agreement and are
incorporated herein by reference.
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C. Franchise Site Application. For each proposed site that Franchisee identifies, Franchisee
must deliver to Franchisor a completed franchise site application in a form Franchisor prescribes, including
such information about the site as Franchisor may reasonably request to perform its evaluation. This
information may include, among other things, a description of the proposed site, demographic and
psychographic characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of the neighborhood, competition from
other businesses in the area, the proximity to other businesses, the nature of other businesses in proximity
to the site, and other commercial characteristics (including the purchase price, rental obligations, and other
lease terms for the proposed site) and the size, appearance, other physical characteristics, a site plan of the
premises, and a letter of intent or such other document that, to Franchisor’s satisfaction, evidences your
favorable prospects in obtaining the proposed site location. Franchisor will approve or refuse to approve a
proposed site at its sole discretion, in writing, after Franchisor’s receipt of these documents and any
additional information as Franchisor may reasonably require. The parties acknowledge and agree that
Franchisor’s site approval is not an assurance that the Franchised Restaurant will achieve a certain
sales volume or level of profitability; it means only that the proposed site meets Franchisor’s
minimum criteria for PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurants.

D. Lease. If Franchisee will occupy the Premises under a lease, Franchisor will have the right
to approve the lease terms, and the lease will not be signed until it has been reviewed and approved by
Franchisor. Franchisor’s approval of a lease will be conditioned on the inclusion of terms set forth in the
sample Lease Rider attached as Exhibit E (which are incorporated herein by reference). The parties
acknowledge and agree that Franchisor's approval of a lease does not mean that the economic terms
of the lease are favorable, it means only that the lease contains the lease terms that Franchisor
requires.

E. Extension of Time to Secure Premises; Failure to Secure Premises. If an acceptable site for
the Franchised Restaurant is not identified and acquired by the original Control Date, at Franchisee’s written
request, the Control Date shall be extended for an additional ninety (90) days. However, if no acceptable
site for the Franchised Restaurant is identified and secured by the extended Control Date, Franchisor may
terminate this Agreement. The initial franchise fee is not refundable under such circumstances.

F. Franchised Restaurant Design and Build Out. Franchisee shall promptly after obtaining
possession of the site for the Franchised Restaurant: (1) cause to be prepared and submit for approval by
Franchisor a site survey and any modifications to Franchisor’s basic architectural plans and specifications
(not for construction) for the development of a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant (including
requirements for dimensions, exterior design, materials, interior design and layout, equipment, fixtures,
furniture, signs and decorating) at the site leased or purchased, provided that Franchisee may modify
Franchisor’s basic plans and specifications only to the extent required to comply with all applicable
ordinances, building codes and permit requirements and with prior notification to and approval by
Franchisor; (2) obtain all required zoning changes, building, utility, health, sanitation and sign permits and
licenses and any other required permits and licenses; (3) purchase or lease equipment, fixtures, furniture
and signs according to Franchisor’s standards and specifications; (4) complete the construction and/or
remodeling, equipment, fixtures, furniture and sign installation and decorating of the Franchised Restaurant
in full and strict compliance with plans and specifications provided and approved by Franchisor and in
compliance with all applicable ordinances, building codes and permit requirements; (5) obtain all
customary contractors’ sworn statements and partial and final waivers of lien for construction, remodeling,
decorating and installation services; and (6) otherwise complete development of the Franchised Restaurant
and have it ready to open and begin operations on or by the Target Opening Date identified in Exhibit A.

During construction, Franchisee must maintain general liability and property damage insurance of
the type and with the limits Franchisor requires, protecting Franchisee, Franchisor, and its Affiliates, and
their respective partners, shareholders, directors, agents, and employees. Such policy or policies shall be
written by a responsible insurer or insurers acceptable to Franchisor and shall contain a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Franchisor and its Affiliates, and their respective partners, shareholders, directors,
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agents, and employees. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor in writing when construction begins, and
thereafter shall provide a progress report as frequently as required by Franchisor and in the form designated
by Franchisor. Franchisor and its designees have the right to inspect the site at all reasonable times.

G. Opening. When a site is identified, the parties will mutually agree on a target opening date
(“Target Opening Date”), which will be no later than One Hundred and Fifty{156Eighty (180) days, or
Two Hundred and Seventy (270) days if an extension is requested and granted, from the date Franchisee
takes possession of the site, and will be reflected on Exhibit A.

1. Franchisee may open the Franchised Restaurant for business only with prior written
permission of Franchisor.

2. Franchisor will grant permission to open only if (a) all amounts due Franchisor under this
Agreement have been paid; (b) the Franchised Restaurant has been constructed and equipped according to
Franchisor’s standards and specifications; (c) all of Franchisee’s pre-opening and training obligations have
been satisfied; (d) Franchisor has received a fully executed copy of the lease for the Franchised Restaurant
Premises containing the mandatory lease terms described in Section 3.D.; (e) Franchisor has received from
Franchisee certificates of insurance as required by Article 12; and (f) Franchisee is otherwise in good
standing under this Agreement.

H. Operational Expenditures and Capital Expenses. Franchisor periodically may modify
standards, specifications, and operating procedures, and these modifications may obligate Franchisee to
invest additional capital in the Franchised Restaurant and/or incur higher operating costs. Franchisee agrees
to implement any changes in standards, specifications, and operating procedures within the reasonable time
period Franchisor requests, whether they involve refurbishing or remodeling the Franchised Restaurant,
buying new operating assets, adding new products or services, or otherwise modifying the nature of the
Franchised Restaurant’s operations, as if they were part of this Agreement as of the day it was signed,
provided, however, that Franchisor will not obligate Franchisee to make upgrades or modifications in the
Franchised Restaurant that would be considered capital expense items during the first two (2) years of the
Franchised Restaurant’s operation.

Relocation of Franchised Restaurant. If the lease for the site of the Franchised Restaurant expires or
terminates without fault of Franchisee, or if the site is destroyed, condemned or otherwise rendered
unusable, or as otherwise may be agreed upon in writing by Franchisor and Franchisee, Franchisor shall
grant permission for relocation of the Franchised Restaurant at a location and site acceptable to Franchisor,
provided that the Franchised Restaurant must be open for business at the new location within Two Hundred
and Seventy (270) days of closing the previous location. If Franchisee is allowed to relocate its Franchised
Restaurant, Franchisee must comply with Franchisor’s then-current standards and specifications for
Franchised Restaurants and site selection will be governed by the terms of this Article 3. Franchisor shall
make no guarantee of Franchisee’s success at this new location. Franchisee is solely responsible for all
relocation costs and expenses, and Franchisee agrees to reimbursepay Franchisor for—its—reasenable
attorneys™feesa Relocation Fee of Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($12,500), which shall be due
at the time Franchisee requests Franchisor approval and etherwhich shall be payable to Franchisor
regardless of whether Franchisor approves, denies or conditions the relocation-related-costs of Franchisee’s
Franchised Restaurant, which it may do in its sole and expensesabsolute discretion. The Relocation Fee
shall not be refundable under any circumstances.

l. to .
4, FEES

A. Initial Franchise Fee. Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchisee will pay to Franchisor
an Initial Franchise Fee in the amount specified below, less any applicable development credit if Franchisee
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is signing this Agreement under an Area Development Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned
by Franchisor when paid and is not refundable.

(1) The Initial Franchise Fee is $30,000.00
2 The Initial Franchise Fee is $25,000.00

B. Royalty Fee. During the term of this Agreement, Franchisee will pay to Franchisor a
nonrefundable Royalty Fee (“Royalty Fee”) equal to five percent (5%) of Gross Revenues for the right to
use the System and Marks. If any taxes, fees, or assessments are imposed on Franchisee’s payment of the
Royalty Fee (except taxes imposed on Franchisor’s net taxable income) Franchisee must also pay or
reimburse Franchisor the amount of the taxes, fees, or assessments within fifteen (15) days after
Franchisee’s receipt of Franchisor’s written notice.

C. Gross Revenues. The term “Gross Revenues” means all revenue derived from the
operation of the Franchised Restaurant, including sales revenue derived from off-premises sales, whether
received in cash, in services in kind, from barter and/or exchange, on credit (whether or not payment is
received) or otherwise, less sales tax or other taxes collected from Franchisee’s customers if paid to the
appropriate taxing authority. Gross Revenues does not include the amount of any documented refunds and
credits given in accordance with our policies and in good faith to customers by Franchisee (but only if
the original amounts were included in Gross Revenues). Gross Revenue is not reduced by the amount of
any discounts on products or services sold to employees, family members, or other businesses you own or
control or by the amount paid to, collected by, or shared with third-party food ordering and delivery systems
with which we allow the Franchised Restaurant to do business. All of those transactions must be entered
into the POS System at the full, standard retail price for purposes of calculating Gross Revenue. All barter
and/or exchange transactions pursuant to which Franchisee furnishes services and/or products in exchange
for goods or services to be provided to Franchisee by a vendor, supplier or customer shall, for the purpose
of determining Gross Revenues, be valued at the full retail value of the goods and/or services so provided
to Franchisee.

D. Other Payments. In addition to all other payments provided in this Agreement, Franchisee
will pay to Franchisor when due:

1. All amounts advanced by Franchisor or which Franchisor has paid, or for which it has
become obligated to pay on your behalf for any reason whatsoever, and all amounts that Franchisee owes
to trade creditors including, without limitation, amounts due for the purchase of Trade Secret Food
Products.

2. The amount of all sales taxes, use taxes, personal property taxes and similar taxes, which
shall be imposed upon Franchisee and required to be collected or paid by Franchisor (a) on account of
Franchisee’s Gross Revenue, or (b) on account of fees or other amounts that Franchisee pays to Franchisor.
Franchisor, in its discretion, may collect the taxes in the same manner as Royalty Fees are collected and
promptly pay the tax collections to the appropriate governmental authority; provided, however, that unless
Franchisor so elects, it shall be Franchisee’s responsibility to pay all sales, use or other taxes now or
hereinafter imposed by any governmental authorities on initial franchise fees, royalty fees and advertising
fund contributions.

E. No Set-Off Rights. Franchisee may not set off, deduct, or otherwise withhold any fees or
other amounts due Franchisor under this Agreement on grounds of alleged nonperformance by Franchisor
of any of its obligations or for any other reason. Withholding royalties or any other amounts due to
Franchisor is a material breach of this Agreement.
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F. Payment Terms. All payments required under this Agreement will be paid within the time
Franchisor specifies in writing or in its Confidential Operations Manual (“Due Date”). If the Due Date is
not on a Business Day, then payment will be due on the next Business Day. “Business Day” means each
day other than a Saturday, Sunday, U.S. holiday or any other day on which the Federal Reserve is not open
for business in the United States.

G. Payment Procedures. Unless otherwise instructed by Franchisor, all Royalty Fees,
Advertising Fund contributions, Local Advertising Required Spend (if any), amounts due for purchases by
Franchisee from Franchisor and other amounts which Franchisee owes to Franchisor shall be paid through
an Electronic Depository Transfer Account (“Electronic Depository Transfer Account™) as further
described in the Confidential Operations Manual. Immediately following execution of this Agreement,
Franchisee shall set up an Electronic Depository Transfer Account and Franchisor shall have access to such
account for the purpose of receiving payment for amounts due to it pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
Franchisee agrees to execute any required documentation in order to grant Franchisor such access. Every
Wednesday—Franchisee shall make-deposits—teensure that there are sufficient funds in the Electronic
Depository Transfer Account sufficient-prior to Franchisor’s withdrawal each week to cover amounts owed
to Franchisor en-the-preceding-Saturday-for Royalty Fees, Advertising Fund contributions and etherfunds
owed-to-Franchiser-any such other amounts owed to Franchisor the prior week. The timing of Franchisor’s
withdrawal from Franchisee’s Electronic Depository Transfer Account is subject to change in Franchisor’s
sole discretion and shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Confidential Operations
Manual; however, as of the issuance date hereof, withdrawals are currently done each Thursday to cover
the preceding weeks sales (which is currently from Monday through Sunday) Deposits for all other
amounts owed to Franchisor shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Confidential
Operations Manual. Also, the specified days in this Section 4.G. (i.e. with respect to deposits and
withdrawal payments) may be modified by Franchisor in the Confidential Operations Manual.

H. Late Fee; Nonsufficient Funds Charge; Interest. Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor a One
Hundred Dollar ($100) late fee for each required payment not made on or before its original due date
(whether for Royalty Fees, Advertising Fund contributions, amounts due for purchases by Franchisee from
Franchisor or its Affiliates, and other amounts which Franchisee owes to Franchisor) and for each payment
not honored by Franchisee’s financial institution. (Franchisee also must reimburse Franchisor’s bank
charges for Franchisee’s dishonored payments.) This late fee is not interest or a penalty but compensates
Franchisor for increased administrative and management costs due to Franchisee’s late payment. In
addition, all amounts Franchisee owes Franchisor or its affiliates that are more than seven (7) days late will
bear interest, accruing as of their original due date, at one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the
highest commercial contract interest rate the law allows, whichever is less. Franchisor may debit
Franchisee’s Electronic Depository Transfer Account automatically for late fees and interest.

l. Administrative Fee. If Franchisee fails to make any required submission to Franchisor by
the date due, Franchisee agrees to pay an amount, per occurrence and as determined by us in our sole
discretion, which represents our administrative costs in obtaining the required submission. Such required
submission may include, but is in no way limited to, financial reports or statements, certificates or
endorsements, corporate documents, and any other information, report, or documentation that Franchisor
has the right to require be submitted to it pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Payment will be due on
demand by such method as Franchisor directs.

J. Partial Payments; Application of Payments. If Franchisee pays less than the amount due,
Franchisee’s payment will be considered a partial payment on account. Franchisor may accept such
payment as a partial payment, irrespective of any endorsement or other statement that the payment
constitutes full payment. Franchisor’s acceptance of such partial payment will not be considered a waiver
of any of its right to demand or receive full payment, and Franchisee hereby waives any estoppel defense
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in this regard. Franchisor may apply Franchisee’s payments to any indebtedness, in its sole and reasonable
discretion, regardless of any designation that accompanies the payment.

K. Collection Costs and Expenses. If Franchisee fails to comply with any of the terms or
conditions of this Agreement, Franchisee agrees to promptly reimburse Franchisor for any and all costs and
expenses that it incurs in enforcing the terms of this Agreement including, without limitation, fees paid to
a collection agency, and reasonable attorneys’ fees and accountants’ fees. This obligation is in addition to
and not in lieu of any other remedies available to Franchisor under this Agreement and applicable law.

5. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE

A. Initial Training: Orientation. If this Agreement is being signed in conjunction with
Franchisee’s first Franchised Restaurant, then Franchisee’s managing owner must complete Franchisor’s
two (2)-day orientation program within eight (8) weeks of the Effective Date of this Agreement. All
expenses incurred in attending this orientation program are the sole responsibility of Franchisee.

B. Initial Training: On-The-Job Program. If this Agreement is being signed in conjunction
with Franchisee’s first Franchised Restaurant, then before Franchisee may open the Franchised Restaurant
for business, Franchisee’s managing owner, designated manager, and any other individuals Franchisor may
require, will attend and successfully complete Franchisor’s on-the-job training program. All expenses
incurred by Franchisee and its employees in attending such program, including, without limitation, travel
costs, room and board expenses, and employees’ salaries, shall be the sole responsibility of Franchisee. The
On-The-Job Training Program lasts approximately three (3) weeks and must be successfully completed at
least four{4six (6) weeks before the Franchised Restaurant opens for business. If Franchisee previously
served as a PANCHEROS Restaurant manager then, at Franchisor’s option, Franchisor may elect to reduce
the On The Job Training Program to a one (1)-week period. If this Agreement is not being signed in
conjunction with Franchisee’s first Franchised Restaurant, Franchisor, at its option, shall determine whether
to provide the On-The-Job Training Program to Franchisee’s personnel and/or whether to require that any
of Franchisee’s personnel complete all or any portion of The On-The-Job Training Program.

C. Initial Training: On-Site Opening Assistance. If this Agreement is being signed in
conjunction with Franchisee’s first Franchised Restaurant, then, for approximately ten (10) days around the
commencement of operations of the Franchised Restaurant, Franchisor will furnish to Franchisee, at
Franchisee’s Premises and at Franchisor’s expense, one (1) of Franchisor’s representatives for the purpose
of facilitating the opening and initial operation of the Franchised Restaurant. If Franchisee is a multiple
unit operator, then, in lieu of the assistance described in the two preceding sentences, Franchisor will furnish
to Franchisee one (1) representative who will provide up to five (5) days of operations assistance to
Franchisee around the commencement of operations of the Franchised Restaurant.

During this period, such representative shall also assist Franchisee in establishing and standardizing
procedures and techniques essential to the operation of a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant. Should
Franchisee request additional assistance from Franchisor in order to facilitate the opening of the Franchised
Restaurant and should Franchisor, in its discretion, deem it necessary, feasible and appropriate to comply
with the request, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the expense of Franchisor providing such
additional assistance which may include Franchisor’s then-current service fee, as set forth in the
Confidential Operations Manual which may be amended from time to time. Franchisee is required to
successfully complete this phase of the initial training program as well.

D. Failure to Successfully Complete Initial Training Program. If Franchisor determines, in its
sole discretion, that Franchisee is unable to satisfactorily complete either phase of the training program as
described in Sections 5.A. through 5.C. above, Franchisor shall have the right to: (1) require Franchisee to
attend such additional training so as to demonstrate its ability to operate the Franchised Restaurant to
Franchisor’s satisfaction; or (2) terminate this Agreement in accordance with its terms.
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E. Additional Training. Franchisor from time to time may provide and, if it does, may require
that previously-trained and experienced franchisees, their managers, and/or their employees attend and
successfully complete refresher training programs or seminars to be conducted at such location as may be
designated by Franchisor. Attendance at such refresher training programs or seminars shall be at
Franchisee’s sole expense, provided, however, that attendance shall not be required at more than one (1)
such program in any calendar year and shall not collectively exceed four (4) business days in duration
during any calendar year.

F. Mandatory Manager Training. If Franchisee designates new or additional managers after
the initial training program, Franchisor shall provide training to such managers at the then-current published
rates. Any and all designated managers shall be required to successfully complete the training program
provided at Franchisor’s headquarters or such other location designated by Franchisor. Franchisee shall
bear all costs incurred by Franchisee’s employees attending such training program.

G. Ongoing Consultation. Franchisor shall provide such ongoing consultation and advice as
it deems appropriate, which may include information about new service and product development,
instruction concerning the operation and management of PANCHEROS restaurants, advertising and
marketing advice, and financial and accounting advice. Such consultation and advice may be provided, in
Franchisor’s discretion, through Franchised Restaurant visits by Franchisor personnel, via meetings,
seminars or conferences, and/or through dissemination of electronic or printed materials.

H. Special Meetings and Conferences. Franchisor may, in addition to the additional training
and mandatory manager training referenced above, require you to attend one or more special meetings of
all, or a group of, PANCHEROS franchisees as designated by the Franchisor. If Franchisor designates any
such special meeting as mandatory, Franchisee and certain other key employees (as Franchisor shall
designate in its sole discretion) shall attend. Franchisee shall be required to attend in-person at least one
special meeting each year (typically the Panchero’s National Franchise Conference); provided, however,
that this special meeting will not last more than four business days. In the event that Franchisor requires
Franchisee’s attendance at more than one special mandatory meeting in a calendar year and Franchisee (or
certain other of Franchisee’s key employees) are unable to attend in person, Franchisor shall make
arrangements to allow Franchisee to participate in such meeting (other than Panchero’s National Franchise
Conference) via telephone or other available means; however, Franchisee shall be responsible for
reimbursing Franchisor for its proportionate share of the cost of providing such virtual conferencing.
Franchisor reserves the right to conduct any and all special meetings at a time and location to be determined
by Franchisor in its sole discretion. Franchisee shall be responsible for all costs it or its employees incur in
attending these special meetings, including travel costs, room and board expenses, and employees’ salaries.

l. Performance by Delegate. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any rights or duties of
Franchisor may be exercised and/or performed by any of Franchisor’s designees, agents, or employees.
Franchisor reserves the right to retain the services of an area director in the geographic area in which the
Franchised Restaurant will be located. In such event, the area director may provide certain consultation,
advice, services, and assistance, as Franchisor may direct. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that
Franchisee is not an intended third party beneficiary under any agreement between Franchisor and any area
director.

6. PROPRIETARY MARKS

A. Acknowledgements. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor, its Affiliate, LDIP, or its
assignees owns all right, title, and interest in and to the Marks and the goodwill associated with the Marks,
and that Franchisor has the right to use and sublicense the Marks. Franchisee further acknowledges and
agrees that any and all goodwill associated with the Franchised Restaurant and identified by the Marks is
Franchisor’s, or its Affiliate’s, property and shall inure directly and exclusively to the benefit of Franchisor
or its Affiliate and that, upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, no monetary
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amount shall be assigned as attributable to any goodwill associated with Franchisee’s use of the Marks.
Franchisee also acknowledges that Franchisee has no ownership interest in the Marks and agrees that
Franchisee will not, at any time, contest the validity or ownership of any of the Marks or assist any other
person in contesting the validity or ownership of the Marks, or engage in any conduct that adversely affects
the ownership or registration of the Marks. Franchisee will execute all documents that Franchisor requests
in order to protect the Marks or to maintain their validity and enforceability. Franchisee understands and
agrees that any unauthorized use of the Marks by Franchisee is a breach of this Agreement and an
infringement of the rights of Franchisor in and to the Marks and that the right to use the Marks granted in
this Agreement does not extend beyond the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

B. Use of the Marks and Copyrighted Works. Franchisee will use Marks and any of
Franchisor’s Copyrighted Works only in connection with the operation and promotion of the Franchised
Restaurant, and only in the manner prescribed by Franchisor. Franchisee will use the Marks only as
designed by Franchisor, will use them only in the manner that Franchisor authorizes and permits, and will
use them with the symbols «“®”, “TM> or «SM> ‘a5 appropriate. Franchisee shall not use, publish, or in any
way incorporate any of the Marks, or the authorized translation of the Marks, in any domain name, user
name, or handle. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Franchisee may not use the Marks, or
the authorized translation of the Marks, or any part or derivative of the Marks as part of any URL or domain
name or unauthorized email address, and may not register the Marks (or any part or derivative thereof) as
part of any user name on any gaming website or social networking website (such as META(FACEBOOK
& INSTAGRAM), SNAPCHAT (SNAP), , LINKEDIN, X(TWITTER), TIKTOK or YOUTUBE),
whether or not such social media platform is used for commercial gain. Franchisee shall refrain from
displaying on any website or mobile platform (including commercial websites, gaming websites, and social
networking websites and mobile platform supported by operating systems such as iOS and Android) any of
Franchisor’s Copyrighted Works, except as explicitly permitted by Franchisor and in strict compliance with
Franchisor’s then-current policies. Specifically, but without limiting the foregoing, Franchisee shall refrain
from offering merchandise identified by the Marks on any Internet website or mobile platform, and from
uploading or streaming any video on sites such as YOUTUBE. Franchisee also may not display on any
website (including commercial websites, gaming websites, and social networking websites) or mobile
platform Franchisor’s Copyrighted Works, which include the design portion of its Marks, or any menu
items or collateral merchandise identified by the Marks.

C. Notice; Infringement. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor and/or LDIP of any
claim, demand or cause of action based upon or arising from any attempt by any other person, firm or
corporation to use the Marks or any colorable imitation thereof. Franchisee shall also notify Franchisor
and/or LDIP of any action, claim or demand against Franchisee relating to the Marks within five (5) days
after Franchisee receives notice of said action, claim or demand. Upon receipt of timely notice of an action,
claim or demand against Franchisee relating to the Marks, Franchisor and/or LDIP shall have the sole right,
but not the duty, to defend any such action. Franchisor shall have the exclusive right to contest or bring
action against any third party regarding the third party’s use of any of the Marks and shall exercise such
right in its sole discretion. In any defense or prosecution of any litigation relating to the Marks or
components of the System undertaken by Franchisor and/or LDIP, Franchisee shall cooperate with
Franchisor and execute any and all documents and take all actions as may be desirable or necessary, in the
opinion of their counsel, to carry out such defense or prosecution. Both parties shall make every effort
consistent with the foregoing to protect, maintain and promote the Marks as identifying the System and
only the System. FRANCHISOR MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE USE, EXCLUSIVE OWNERSHIP, VALIDITY OR
ENFORCEABILITY OF THE MARKS.

D. Changes to the Marks. If it becomes advisable at any time, in Franchisor’s opinion, for
Franchisor and/or Franchisee to modify, discontinue using and/or replace any Mark, and/or to use one or
more additional, substitute, or replacement trade names, trademarks, service marks or other commercial
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symbols together with or instead of any previously designated Mark, Franchisee shall comply with
Franchisor’s directions within a reasonable time after receiving Franchisor’s notice. Franchisor need not
reimburse Franchisee’s direct expenses for changing the Franchised Restaurant’s signs, Franchisee’s lost
revenue due to any modified or discontinued Mark, or Franchisee’s expenses in promoting a modified or
substitute trademark or service mark. Franchisor may exercise these rights at any time and for any reason,
business or otherwise, it thinks best. Franchisee acknowledges both Franchisor’s right to take this action
and Franchisee’s obligation to comply with Franchisor’s directions.

7. CONFIDENTIAL OPERATIONS MANUAL; SYSTEM MODIFICATION

A. Confidential Operations Manual. Franchisor shall loan to Franchisee during the term of
the franchise one (1) copy of the Confidential Operations Manual, which may be, in our discretion, in a
physical or electronic format. Franchisee will operate the Franchised Restaurant in accordance with the
standards, methods, policies, and procedures specified in the Confidential Operations Manual. The
Confidential Operations Manual shall at all times remain the sole property of Franchisor and be kept secure
by Franchisee. Franchisee shall promptly return any physical copy of the Confidential Operations Manual
it may have to Franchisor, and shall immediately cease accessing any electronic format, upon expiration or
termination of this Agreement. At no time shall Franchisee or its employees make copies or reproductions
of all or part of the physical format Confidential Operations Manual. At no time shall Franchisee or its
employees download or print any or part of the electronic format Confidential Operations Manual without
express permission to do so from Franchisor. Franchisee shall at all times ensure that the version of the
Confidential Operations Manual it refers to for the daily operation of its Franchised Restaurant be the
current and up-to-date Confidential Operations Manual. If a physical copy of the Confidential Operations
Manual is being utilized, or if downloading and/or printing has been authorized by the Franchisor,
Franchisee shall ensure that the most current version is available for reference at all times at the Premises.
Franchisee understands and agrees that it shall be required to comply with the most current version of the
Confidential Operations Manual at all times. In the event of any dispute as to the contents of the
Confidential Operations Manual, the terms of the master copy of the Confidential Operations Manual
maintained by Franchisor at Franchisor’s home office shall be controlling.

B. System Modification. Franchisor shall have the right to add to and otherwise modify the
System, Confidential Operations Manual, the Menu Items, Trade Secret Food Products, and other products
and services offered by the Franchised Restaurant (such as, but not limited to, the addition, deletion, and
modification of Menu Items, operating procedures, products and services) from time to time. Franchisee
agrees to comply, at Franchisee’s expense, with all such modifications, including, without limitation, all
requirements to implement the modifications, such as replacement or renovation of equipment, remodeling,
redecoration and modifications to existing improvements, including structural changes, subject to the
restrictions outlined in Section 3.H. of this Agreement. Franchisor will notify Franchisee of any such
System changes and Franchisee will implement any System changes upon receipt of notice thereof from
Franchisor, and will complete their implementation within such time as Franchisor may reasonable specify.

C. Confidentiality. The Confidential Operations Manual contains proprietary information of
Franchisor and shall be kept confidential by Franchisee both during the term of the franchise and subsequent
to the expiration and/or termination of the franchise. Franchisee will use the Confidential Operations
Manual only in connection with the operation of the Franchised Restaurant, and will make the Confidential
Operations Manual available only to Franchisee’s employees on a need to know basis.

8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

A. Confidential Information. Franchisee acknowledges that all Trade Secrets, as defined
below, and other elements of the System; all customer information; all information contained in the
Confidential Operations Manual; the method of preparation of Menu Items, Trade Secret Food Products
and other food products; ideas, designs, pricing, supplier information, and other specifications, product
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formulae, standards and operating procedures of a PANCHERQOS Franchised Restaurant; is derived from
information disclosed to Franchisee by Franchisor and that such information is proprietary, confidential
and the Trade Secrets of Franchisor (“Confidential Information™). “Trade Secrets” refers to the whole
or any portion of know-how, knowledge, methods, recipes, formulae, specifications, processes, procedures
and/or improvements regarding the PANCHERQOS Franchised Restaurant and the System that is valuable
and secret in the sense that it is not generally known to competitors of Franchisor. Franchisee shall maintain
the absolute confidentiality of all Confidential Information and not disclose them to any person or entity
during and after the termination or expiration of this Agreement. Franchisee shall not use any Confidential
Information in any other business or in any manner not specifically authorized or approved in writing by
Franchisor. Franchisee shall return all Confidential Information to Franchisor upon the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

B. Maintaining Confidentiality. Franchisee shall divulge such Confidential Information only
to the extent and only to such of its employees as must have access to it in order to operate the Franchised
Restaurant. Any and all information, knowledge and know-how, including, without limitation, drawings,
materials, equipment, techniques, restaurant systems, product formulae, recipes and other data, which
Franchisor designates as confidential shall be deemed confidential for purposes of this Agreement, except
information which Franchisee can demonstrate lawfully came to its attention prior to disclosure thereof by
Franchisor; or which, at the time of disclosure by Franchisor to Franchisee, had lawfully become a part of
the public domain through publication or communication by others (without violating an obligation to
Franchisor); or which, after disclosure to Franchisee by Franchisor, lawfully becomes a part of the public
domain through publication or communication by others (without violating an obligation to Franchisor).
All employees or agents of Franchisee, and all owners, directors, shareholders, and partners of Franchisee,
who must have access to such information or materials shall be required to execute nondisclosure
agreements in the form acceptable to Franchisor.

9. ADVERTISING

A General. Recognizing the value of advertising and the importance of the standardization
of advertising and promotion to the furtherance of the goodwill and the public image of PANCHEROS
Franchised Restaurants, Franchisee agrees as follows:

1. All promotional and marketing materials shall be presented in a dignified manner and shall
confirm to Franchisors standards and specifications related to advertising, marketing, and trademark use.

2. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, for Franchisor’s approval prior to first use or
publication, all proposed promotional marketing and advertising materials, and notify Franchisor of its
intended media. Franchisor shall use good faith efforts to approve or disapprove Franchisee’s request
within thirty (30) days from the date such material is received by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not, under
any circumstances, use any proposed promotional, marketing or advertising materials until such time that
Franchisor has provided its approval in writing to Franchisee. Failure by Franchisee to conform with the
provisions herein and subsequent non-action by Franchisor to require Franchisee to cure or remedy this
failure and default shall not be deemed a waiver of future or additional failures and defaults of any other
provision of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor reserves the right, at any time and
in its sole discretion, to disapprove any promotional, marketing or advertising materials that Franchisor had
previously approved.

B. Initial Marketing Campaign. Franchisee must comply with Franchisor’s initial marketing
campaign requirements, which may include engaging Franchisor’s designated advertising agency or other
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service providers, and a required expenditure ranging from $30,000 to $50,000. The initial marketing
campaign shall be conducted in accordance with Franchisor’s guidelines and must be completed within the
first six months of operations.

C. Advertising and Development Fund. Franchisee shall contribute to the PANCHEROS
Advertising and Development Fund (“Advertising Fund”) in an amount designed by Franchisor from time
to time but not to exceed three percent (3%) of Gross Revenues. Such payment shall be made in addition
to and exclusive of any sums that Franchisee may be required to spend on local advertising and promotion.
The Advertising Fund shall be maintained and administered by Franchisor or its designee, as follows:

1. Franchisor has the right to use Advertising Fund monies, in its sole discretion, to pay for
creative development services (including creation and modification of store design and trade dress, logos,
menu design, graphics and vehicle wraps, and advertising and promotional items, including the cost of
photography services and design software), preparing and procuring market studies, providing or obtaining
marketing services (including, without limitation, new product development; conducting customer surveys,
focus groups, and marketing-related mystery shops and customer interviews); employing advertising and/or
public relations agencies; developing, producing, distributing and placing advertising (including, without
limitation, preparing and conducting media advertising campaigns in various media, local store advertising
and promotion in a particular area or market, or for the benefit of a particular restaurant or restaurants in
connection with restaurant opening promotions or otherwise), conducting and administering in-store
promotions; preparing and executing direct mail advertising, and developing, producing and purchasing
point-of-sale advertising, menus and menu boards, and other sales aids and promotional items and
materials); new product development and development of product packaging; developing, updating and
hosting Franchisor’s web site (including development of locator programs) and/or an intranet or extranet
system; obtaining sponsorships and endorsements; preparing and conducting sweepstakes and other
promotions; developing, administering, and distributing coupons, gift certificates and stored value card
program, and the cost of product associated with the redemption of free coupons, gift certificates and stored
value cards; developing and administering other customer loyalty programs; providing and procuring public
relations services; conducting public relations activities; charitable donations; and membership fees in
international, national, regional, and/or local trade or other associations or organizations.

2. Franchisor also may use Advertising Fund monies to reimburse itself for its costs of
personnel and other administrative and overhead costs associated with providing the services described in
this Section 9.C.

3. The parties acknowledge that Franchisor owns all rights, and retains all copyrights, in all
design and content developed using Advertising Fund monies, and that Franchisor will have sole control
over the creative concepts, content, form, and media placement of all advertising and promotional materials
developed with Advertising Fund monies, and the allocations of Advertising Fund monies to production,
placement, and other costs. Franchisor will own all copyright in any works created using Fund monies.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor is not obligated to expend Fund monies for placement
of advertising in your trading area, or to ensure that the Franchised Restaurant benefits directly or pro rata
from the expenditure of Advertising Fund monies. Franchisor will not use Fund monies for creating or
placing any advertisement that is principally a solicitation for new franchisees, but may include in all
advertising prepared using Advertising Fund monies (including Internet advertising) information
concerning franchise opportunities, and a portion of Advertising Fund monies may be used to create and
maintain one or more pages on Franchisor’s web site devoted to advertising franchise opportunities and
identifying and screening inquiries and applications submitted by franchise candidates. Franchisor has no
fiduciary duty to Franchisee or to any other person with respect to the collection or expenditure of Fund
monies.

4, Although Franchisor intends the Advertising Fund to be of perpetual duration, Franchisor
maintains the right to terminate the Advertising Fund. The Advertising Fund shall not be terminated,
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however, until all monies in the Advertising Fund have been expended for advertising and promotional
purposes.

5. An unaudited accounting of the operation of the Advertising Fund shall be prepared
annually and shall be made available to Franchisee upon request by contacting admin@pancheros.com.

D. Local Advertising. Franchisee is required to spend a minimum of three percent (3%) of
Gross Revenues on local advertising (the “Local Advertising Spend Requirement”). At Franchisor’s
election, Franchisor may require that Franchisee (1) spend its entire Local Advertising Spend Requirement
in its local market on its own or (2) pay some or all of its Local Advertising Spend Requirement to
Franchisor to be spent by Franchisor on advertising and marketing campaigns in Franchisee’s market area,
with Franchisee being responsible to spend the balance (if any) of its Local Advertising Spend Requirement
directly. Payments made to Franchisor in connection with this Section 9.D. shall be made in accordance
with Section 4.F and 4.G. or as otherwise designated by Franchisor in writing or in its Confidential
Operations Manual. For any portion of the Local Advertising Spend Requirement that Franchisee is
required to spend on its own, Franchisee shall provide proof of such expenditure according to the procedures
Franchisor requires.

E. Advertising Coverage Area. From time to time Franchisor may designate a local, regional
or national Advertising Coverage Area (defined below) in which Franchisee’s business and at least one (1)
other PANCHEROS restaurant is located for purposes of developing a cooperative local, regional or
national advertising or promotional program. “Advertising Coverage Area” means the area covered by
the particular advertising medium (television, radio or other medium) as recognized in the industry.
Franchisee agrees to participate in and contribute its share to such cooperative advertising and promotional
programs in Franchisee’s Advertising Coverage Area in addition to such contributions and expenditures as
required pursuant to Sections 9.C. and 9.D. The cost of the program shall be allocated among locations in
such area and each location’s share shall be in proportion to its sales during the preceding twelve (12)-
month period, or portion of said period. Said contributions to cooperative advertising promotional
programs shall be credited toward the local advertising and promotional expenditure required by Section
9.D. All PANCHEROS restaurants, whether Franchisor-owned, Affiliate-owned or franchised, shall have
one (1) vote per location in any such cooperative program. Franchisor may establish Regional Franchisee
Councils to administer the cooperative advertising program which shall be comprised of Franchisor,
franchisees in the Advertising Coverage Area and Franchisor-owned or Affiliate-owned restaurants.

F. Participation in Marketing Programs. Franchisee shall at all times cooperate with
Franchisor and other franchisees of Franchisor and shall actively participate in any and all sales, public
relations, advertising, cooperative advertising, and purchasing programs or promotional programs
(including, without limitation, product give-away promotions and system-wide discount programs) which
may be developed and implement by Franchisor. Participation may include, without limitation, purchasing
(at your expense) and using (1) point of sale materials, (2) counter cards, displays, and give away items
promoting loyalty programs, prize promotions, and other marketing campaigns and programs, (3) product
mix and ingredients for product giveaways, and (4) equipment necessary to administer loyalty programs,
and to prepare and print customized purchase receipts, coupons, and similar items.

10. ACCOUNTING; RECORDS; AND SOFTWARE

A. Maintenance of Records. Franchisee shall maintain during the term of this Agreement, and
shall preserve for the time period specified in the Confidential Operations Manual, full, complete and
accurate books, records and accounts in accordance with the standard accounting system prescribed by
Franchisor in the Confidential Operations Manual or otherwise in writing and in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), consistently applied. Franchisee shall retain for a period of
three (3) years thereafter all books and records related to the Franchised Restaurant, including, without
limitation, sales checks, purchase orders, invoices, payroll records, customer lists, check stubs, sales tax
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records and returns, cash receipts and disbursement journals and general ledgers. Franchisor has the right
to require Franchisee to use only an accountant that Franchisor has approved. However, if Franchisee fails
to comply with Franchisor’s accounting, record-keeping, and reporting obligations, Franchisor may require
Franchisee to use Franchisor’s designated accountant (which also may be Franchisor’s accountant) to
ensure preparation of required reports and financial statements accurately and in Franchisor’s desired
format.

B. Submission of Records.

1. Monthly Statements. Franchisee shall supply to Franchisor monthly, in the form approved
by Franchisor, a profit and loss statement and balance sheet for each calendar month within twenty-five
(25) days after the end of that month. Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor a One Hundred Dollar ($100)
late fee for each required profit and loss statement and balance sheet not submitted on or before its original
due date. This late fee is not a penalty but compensates Franchisor for increased administrative and
management costs due to Franchisee’s default.

2. Yearly Statements. Additionally, Franchisee shall, at its expense, submit to Franchisor
within forty-five (45) days after the end of each fiscal year during the term of this Agreement a profit and
loss statement for such fiscal year and a balance sheet as of the last day of such fiscal year, prepared on an
accrual basis, including all adjustments necessary for fair presentation of the financial statements. Such
financial statements shall be certified to be true and correct by Franchisee. Franchisor reserves the right to
require annual financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards,
audited by an independent certified public accountant. Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor copies of all
federal and state income tax returns and sales tax returns. Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor a One
Hundred Dollar ($100) late fee for each required annual profit and loss statement and balance sheet not
submitted on or before its original due date. This late fee is not a penalty but compensates Franchisor for
increased administrative and management costs due to Franchisee’s default.

3. Additional Reports and Statements. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor such other
periodic reports, forms and records as specified, in the manner and at the time as specified in the
Confidential Operations Manual or as Franchisor shall otherwise require in writing from time to time.

C. Point of Sale System. Franchisee shall record all sales and related activities on computer-
based, point-of-sale cash registers which are fully compatible with any program or system which
Franchisor, in its discretion, may now or in the future employ. Franchisee must procure a computer system
meeting the specifications and standards prescribed by Franchisor, including any related service and
maintenance contracts for ongoing technology support that Franchisor requires. All Gross Revenues, sales,
and information, shall be recorded by and on the computer systems Franchisee is required to use and
Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that Franchisor shall have full access to all of Franchisee’s data,
system and related information by means of direct access whether in person or by telephone/modem.

D. Software. Franchisee shall: (1) purchase, install, and use any proprietary software
programs, third party software programs, system documentation manuals, and other proprietary or non-
proprietary materials that Franchisor requires in connection with the operation of the Franchised Restaurant;
(2) input and maintain in your computer such data and information as Franchisor prescribes in the
Confidential Operations Manual, software programs, documentation, or otherwise; and (3) purchase, install,
and use new or upgraded software programs, system documentation manuals, and other proprietary
materials, or execute and renew licenses for existing software, at then-current prices whenever Franchisor
adopts such new or upgraded programs, manuals, and materials system-wide. Franchisee shall enter into all
software license agreements, “terms of use” agreements, and software maintenance agreements, in the form
and manner Franchisor prescribes, and pay all fees imposed thereunder.

E. Non-Cash Systems. Franchisee shall accept debit cards, credit cards, stored value cards,
and other non-cash systems (including, for example, APPLE PAY, GOOGLE WALLET, etc.) that
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Franchisor specifies periodically to enable customers to purchase authorized products, and to acquire and
install all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection with these non-cash systems. The parties
acknowledge and agree that protection of customer privacy and credit card information is necessary to
protect the goodwill of businesses operating under the Marks and System. Accordingly, Franchisee shall
cause the Franchised Restaurant to meet or exceed, at all times, all applicable security standards developed
by the Payment Card Industry Standards Council or its successor and other regulations and industry
standards applicable to the protection of customer privacy and credit card information. Franchisee is solely
responsible for its own education concerning these regulations and standards and for achieving and
maintaining applicable compliance certifications. Franchisee shall defend, indemnify, and hold Franchisor
harmless from and against all claims arising out of or related to Franchisee’s violation of the provisions of
this Section 10.E.

F. Independent Access. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that Franchisor may
independently and remotely access Gross Revenues, sales, and other information recorded by Franchisee's
computer and point-of-sale systems. There is no limitation on Franchisor's right to access this information,
whether remotely, in person, or upon request, nor is there any limitation on Franchisor's right to use the
information for any desired purpose.

G. Audit of Franchisee Records. Franchisor or its designated agents shall have the right at all
reasonable times to examine and copy, at its expense, the books, records and tax returns of Franchisee.
Franchisor shall also have the right, at any time, to have an independent audit made of the books and records
of Franchisee at Franchisor’s expense. If an inspection should reveal that any payments due to Franchisor
have been understated in any report to Franchisor, then Franchisee shall immediately pay to Franchisor the
amount understated upon demand, in addition to the late fee and interest from the date such amount was
due at one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the highest commercial contract interest rate the law
allows, whichever is less, until paid. If an inspection or audit discloses an understatement in any report of
two percent (2%) or more, Franchisee shall, in addition, reimburse Franchisor for any and all costs and
expenses connected with the inspection or audit (including, without limitation, reasonable accounting and
attorneys’ fees). The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies Franchisor may have.

H. Taxes. Franchisee agree to promptly pay all taxes due and owing based on Franchisee’s
operation of the Franchised Restaurant including, without limitation, sales taxes, income taxes, and property
taxes.

11. STANDARDS OF QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE

A. General Operating Requirements. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that every
detail of the System is essential to maintain and enhance the goodwill associated with the Marks and the
integrity of the brand. Accordingly, Franchisee agrees as follows:

1. To operate the Franchised Restaurant according to the highest applicable health standards
and ratings, to timely obtain any and all permits, certificates, or licenses necessary for the lawful operation
of the Franchised Restaurant, to operate the Franchised Restaurant according to Franchisor’s operating
methods, standards, and specifications, and to maintain, at all times, a high moral and ethical standard in
the operation of the Franchised Restaurant.

2. To secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to
the operation of the Franchised Restaurant and operate the Franchised Restaurant in full compliance with
all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, including, without limitation, all government regulations
relating to occupational hazards and health, dispensing of food products, consumer protection, trade
regulation, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance and withholding and payment of federal and
state income taxes and social security, sales, use and property taxes.
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3. To use the location of the Franchised Restaurant, the Premises, only for the purpose of
operating a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant.

4, To notify Franchisor by telephone and confirm in writing within seventy-two (72) hours of
any investigation or violation, actual or alleged, concerning any health, liquor or narcotics laws or
regulations, and notify Franchisor in writing within five days of the commencement of any investigation,
action, suit or proceeding, or the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award, or decree of any court,
agency or other government instrumentality, which may adversely affect the operation or financial
condition of the Franchised Restaurant.

B. Authorized Menu Offerings. Franchisee shall offer for sale and sell at the Franchised
Restaurant all types of Menu Items and other categories of food and beverage products that Franchisor from
time to time authorizes, and only such items. In order to ensure that all Menu Items produced by Franchisee
meet Franchisor’s high standards of taste, texture, appearance and freshness and in order to protect
Franchisor’s goodwill and Marks, all Trade Secret Food Products, Menu Items and other food products
shall be prepared only by properly trained personnel strictly in accordance with Franchisor’s recipes,
cooking techniques and processes as designated by Franchisor in the Confidential Operations Manual and
shall be sold only at retail to customers in conformity with Franchisor’s marketing plan and concept.
Franchisee acknowledges that such recipes, cooking techniques and processes are integral to the System
and failure to adhere to such recipes, cooking techniques and processes (including the handling and storage
of both ingredients and fully prepared Menu Items) shall be detrimental to the System and Marks.
Franchisee shall participate in all market research programs that Franchisor requires, which includes test-
marketing new products, purchasing a reasonable quantity of new products for test-marketing, promoting
the sale of the new products. Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with timely reports and test results for all
such programs.

C. Purchases from Designated Sources.

1. Franchisee agrees to purchase only from Franchisor or suppliers designated by Franchisor
(“Designated Suppliers”) all goods and services that Franchisor identifies from time to time including,
without limitation: (1) fixtures, furniture, equipment, interior and exterior signage, graphics, décor, and
Franchised Restaurant design consulting services; (2) Franchisee’s requirements of Trade Secret Food
Products, and all other food products and ingredients; (3) all fountain and bottled beverages; (4) uniforms,
shirts, memorabilia, and all merchandise and items intended for retail sale (whether or not bearing the
Marks); (5) advertising, point-of-purchase materials, and other printed promotional materials; (6) gift
certificates and stored value cards; (7) stationery, business cards, contracts, and form; and (8) displays,
trays, napkins, cups, boxes, bags, wrapping paper, labels, forms and other paper and plastic products
imprinted with the Marks.

2. From time to time, Franchisor shall provide to Franchisee a list of approved manufacturers,
suppliers and distributors (“Approved Suppliers List”) and approved inventory, products, fixtures,
furniture, equipment, signs, stationery, supplies and other items or services necessary to operate the
Franchised Restaurant (“Approved Supplies List”). Such lists shall specify the manufacturer, brand name,
supplier and distributor and the inventory, products, fixtures, furniture, equipment, signs, stationery,
supplies and services which Franchisor has approved to be carried or used in the System. Franchisor may
revise the Approved Suppliers List and Approved Supplies List from time to time in its sole discretion and
such lists shall be submitted to Franchisee as Franchisor deems advisable. Franchisor makes no
representation concerning, and expressly disclaims any liability arising out of or in connection with,
the services rendered or products furnished by any supplier approved or designated by Franchisor.
Franchisor’s approval or consent to any services, goods, suppliers, or any other individual, entity or
any item shall not create any liability to Franchisor.
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3. All inventory, products, materials and other items and supplies used in the operation of the
Franchised Restaurant which are not specifically required to be purchased in accordance with Franchisor’s
Approved Supplies List and Approved Suppliers List shall conform to the specifications and quality
standards established by Franchisor from time to time.

4, If Franchisee proposes to offer for sale at the Franchised Restaurant any brand of product,
or to use in the operation of the Franchised Restaurant any brand of food ingredient or other material or
supply which is not then approved by Franchisor as meeting its minimum specifications and quality
standards, or to purchase any product from a supplier that is not then designated by Franchisor as an
approved supplier, Franchisee shall first notify Franchisor and shall, upon request by Franchisor, submit
samples and such other information as Franchisor requires for examination and/or testing or to otherwise
determine whether such product, material or supply, or such proposed supplier, meets its specifications and
guality standards. A charge not to exceed the reasonable cost of the inspection and evaluation and the actual
cost of the test shall be paid by Franchisee or the supplier. Franchisor reserves the right, at its option, to re-
inspect the facilities and products of any supplier of an approved item and to revoke its approval of any
item which fails to continue to meet any of Franchisor’s criteria. Franchisor reserves the right, in its sole
discretion, to approve any and all supplies, suppliers, brand name products and other products and services,
whether currently approved by Franchisor or submitted to Franchisor by Franchisee for approval,
authorized for use by or sale from Franchised Restaurant. Franchisor may limit the number of approved
suppliers with whom Franchisee may deal, designate sources that Franchisee must use and/or refuse any of
Franchisee’s requests for any reason, including that Franchisor has already designated an exclusive source
(which might be Franchisor or its Affiliate) for the particular item or service if Franchisor believes that
doing so is in the best interests of the PANCHEROS network. Franchisor and its affiliates have the right
to receive payments from suppliers on account of their actual or prospective dealings with Franchisee and
other franchisees and to use all amounts they receive without restriction for any purposes they deem
appropriate (unless Franchisor and its affiliates agree otherwise with the suppliers).

D. Franchised Restaurant Premises.

1. Franchisee agrees to maintain the condition and appearance of the Premises consistent with
Franchisor’s quality controls and standards and cause such maintenance to the Franchised Restaurant as is
from time to time required to maintain or improve the appearance and efficient operation of the Franchised
Restaurant. If at any time in Franchisor’s judgment the general state of repair or the appearance of the
Premises or its equipment, fixtures, signs or decor does not meet Franchisor’s quality control and standards
therefore, Franchisor shall so notify Franchisee, specifying the action to be taken by Franchisee to correct
such deficiency. If Franchisee fails or refuses to initiate within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice,
and thereafter continue, a bona fide program to complete any required maintenance, Franchisor shall have
the right, in addition to all other remedies, to enter upon the Premises and effect such repairs, painting,
maintenance or replacements of equipment, fixtures or signs on behalf of Franchisee and Franchisee shall
pay the entire costs thereof on demand. Franchisee’s obligation to initiate and continue any required
maintenance shall be suspended during any period in which such maintenance is impractical due to force
majeure.

2. Franchisee shall purchase and install, at your expense, all fixtures, furnishings, equipment,
decor, signs, and other items as Franchisor may reasonably direct from time to time in the Confidential
Operations Manual or otherwise in writing in accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications;
and shall refrain from installing or permitting to be installed on or about the Premises, any fixtures,
furnishings, equipment, decor, signs, vending or game machines or other items not previously approved in
writing as meeting Franchisor’s standards and specifications.

3. Franchisee shall not install or maintain on the Premises any newspaper racks, video games,
juke boxes, digital boards, gaming machines, gum machines, games, rides, vending machines or other
similar devices without the written approval of Franchisor.
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E. Restaurant Management. The Franchised Restaurant shall at all times be under the direct,
on-premises supervision of Franchisee or its managing owner (or a trained and competent employee acting
as full-time manager). If Franchisee employs a full-time manager, however, Franchisee acknowledges that
it will remain obligated to supervise the operations of the Franchised Restaurant as agreed upon by
Franchisee and Franchisor. If Franchisee or any managing owner which is or should be supervising the
operations of the Franchised Restaurant, for any reason, is or expects to be inaccessible, indisposed, or
away from the Premises for such a period of time as to be unable to fully and consistently fulfill its duties
hereunder, Franchisee must notify Franchisor of such occurrence in writing and include in such notice the
manager or supervisor assuming Franchisee’s roll in Franchisee’s or the managing owner’s absence. In the
event Franchisee operates more than one (1) franchise, at least one (1) trained and competent employee
referred to above shall act as a full-time manager. Franchisee shall keep Franchisor informed at all times
of the identity of any employee(s) acting as manager(s) of the Franchised Restaurant. If Franchisee selects
a substitute or additional manager, Franchisee shall be required to make sure such manager receives training
from Franchisor. To the extent that Franchisor can reasonably accommodate Franchisee’s manager in
Franchisee’s regularly scheduled training course, Franchisor shall make training available, as is reasonable
and necessary, for all managers designated by Franchisee. Franchisor shall provide such training at the
then-current published rates. In no event shall Franchisor be under any obligation to provide individual
training to Franchisee’s managers. Franchisee shall, at all times, faithfully, honestly and diligently perform
its obligations hereunder and shall not engage in any business or other activities that shall conflict with its
obligations hereunder.

F. Employee Policy; Uniforms and Employee Appearances. Franchisee shall maintain a
competent, conscientious, and trained staff (who shall have been adequately trained by Franchisee) in
numbers sufficient to service customers promptly and properly, including at least a manager or shift leader
on duty at all times at which the Store is open (including daily Restaurant opening and closing procedures),
and shall take such steps as are necessary to ensure that its employees preserve good customer relations and
comply with such dress code as Franchisor may prescribe. In addition, Franchisee and its employees shall
handle all customer complaints, refunds, returns or other adjustments in accordance with Franchisor’s
policies as set forth in the Confidential Operations Manual or otherwise in writing. The parties
acknowledge and agree that these requirements are necessary to preserve the goodwill identified by the
Marks. The parties further acknowledge and agree that Franchisor neither dictates nor controls labor or
employment matters for Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee is exclusively responsible for
hiring personnel, for determining the number of jobs offered or job vacancies to be filled, for determining
and changing employee wages and benefits and work hours, and for disciplining and discharging
Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee is exclusively responsible for labor relations with its employees.

G. Inventory. Franchisee acknowledges that the Franchised Restaurant shall at all times
maintain an inventory of ingredients, food and beverage products and other products, materials and supplies
that shall permit operation of the Franchised Restaurant at maximum capacity.

H. Catering/Third-Party Delivery Services.

1. Catering: Franchisor may require Franchisee to conduct catering services from the
Franchised Restaurant in strict compliance with any catering standards established by Franchisor.
If Franchisor elects not to require Franchisee to provide catering services from the Franchised
Restaurant, it may nonetheless allow Franchisee to provide such services upon request. Franchisee
shall obtain written approval from Franchisor before undertaking such catering service and shall
conduct such catering service in strict accordance with all guidelines established by Franchisor.

2. Third-Party Food Delivery Services:

Q) Franchisor may require you to participate in one or more third-party food ordering and delivery
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services with one or more suppliers who we have approved on behalf of the System (each, a “System
Designated Third-Party Delivery Service”). In the event that we contract with any System Designated
Third-Party Delivery Service directly, you shall be required to reimburse us for your pro-rata share of any
costs or fees we pay to the System Designated Third-Party Delivery. Alternatively, in our sole discretion,
we reserve the right to require you to make payment to the System Designated Third-Party Delivery Service
directly on your own behalf.

(i) We may also allow you to utilize other non-system designated third-party food ordering or delivery
services at your Franchised Restaurant. You may not utilize any such non-system designated third-party
services without first obtaining our written approval. In the event that you engage the services of any such
non-system designated third-party service, any associated costs or fees charged in connection therewith
shall be at your sole cost and expense.

(i) Your engagement and utilization of all third-party food ordering and delivery services, whether a
System Designated Third-Party Delivery Service or otherwise, must be must be in strict compliance with
the with guidelines established by Franchisor.

l. Pricing. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Franchisor reserves the right to
establish maximum, minimum or other pricing requirements with respect to the prices Franchisee may
charge for products or services.

J. Web Site. Franchisor may, but shall not be obligated to, establish and maintain from time
to time Franchisor’s Web site to provide information about the System and the goods and services that
PANCHEROS restaurants provide. Franchisor has sole discretion and control over the design and content
of Franchisor’s Web site.

K. Social Media and Internet Listings. Franchisee shall follow Franchisor’s mandatory
specifications, standards, operating procedures, and rules for using Social Media in connection with its
operation of the Franchised Restaurant and Franchisee agrees to comply with any Social Media policy
Franchisor implements. Franchisor shall create and own all Social Media accounts used in operation of the
Franchised Restaurant, and shall allow Franchisee access and use only in strict compliance with
Franchisor’s rules. Franchisor reserves its right to remove Franchisee’s access to Social Media accounts at
any time at its sole discretion. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Franchisee’s access to
all Social Media accounts will terminate. The term “Social Media” includes, without limitation, personal
blogs; common social networks such as META (FACEBOOK & INSTAGRAM), SNAPCHAT(SNAP),
LINKEDIN, X(TWITTER), TIKTOK or YOUTUBE; internet listing sites such as WIKIPEDIA,
GOOGLE, FOURSQUARE, and YELP; applications supported by mobile platforms such as iOS and
Android; virtual worlds; file, audio, and video-sharing sites; and other similar internet, social networking,
or media sites, mobile platforms, or tools.

L. Public Relations. Franchisee shall not make any public statements (including giving
interviews or issuing press releases) regarding the Franchised Restaurant or any particular incident
or occurrence related to the Franchised Restaurant, without the Franchisor’s prior written approval.

M. Association with Causes. Franchisee shall not in the name of the Franchised
Restaurant (1) donate money, products, or services to any charitable, political, religious, or other
organization, or (2) act in support of any such organization, without the Franchisor’s prior written
approval.

N. Quality Assurance Inspections; Testing. Franchisor shall have the right to enter upon the
Premises during regular business hours to inspect the Franchised Restaurant for quality assurance purposes.
Franchisee shall allow Franchisor from time to time to obtain samples of ingredients, products and supplies,
without charge, for testing for quality assurance purposes. If notified of a deficiency, Franchisee must
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promptly cure the deficiency. If Franchisee fails to promptly cure the deficiency, Franchisor may undertake
to cure the deficiency on your behalf. In such case, Franchisor has the right to charge, and Franchisee agree
to pay upon demand, a reasonable fee for Franchisor’s services, and Franchisee must reimburse Franchisor
for all out-of-pocket costs that it incurred in connection with taking such corrective measures.

Franchisee agrees to cooperate fully with Franchisor and its agents and representatives in
connection with Franchisor’s inspections. Franchisor may hire outside consultants and vendors to perform
certain types of operational inspections and audits. If Franchisor exercises these rights, it will not interfere
unreasonably with the Franchised Restaurant’s operation. If Franchisor (or its agents or representatives)
inspects the Franchised Restaurant and determines that it is not operating in compliance with this
Agreement and Franchisor’s standards and specifications, and Franchisor then must re-inspect the
Franchised Restaurant to determine whether Franchisee has corrected the operating deficiencies, Franchisor
may require Franchisee to pay Franchisor its then-current Re-Inspection Fee for each follow-up inspection
of the Franchised Restaurant. Franchisee agrees to present to its customers the evaluation forms Franchisor
periodically prescribes and to participate and/or request its customers to participate in any surveys
performed by or for Franchisor. Franchisor agrees to provide Franchisee with the results of such surveys.

0. Vehicles. If Franchisee requests to use a vehicle in connection with or to promote the
Franchised Restaurant, Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with specifications for brands and types of
trucks, vans and other motor vehicle(s) required for the Franchised Restaurant. Franchisee at its expense
shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, maintain the interior and exterior of any motor
vehicle(s) utilized in the Franchised Restaurant in good repair, attractive appearance, sound operating
condition and equipped in accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications. If Franchisee elects
to wrap a vehicle for the promotion of the Franchised Restaurant, Franchisee agrees to abide by Franchisor's
standards and specifications for such wrap and to obtain Franchisor approval of such wrap in advance of its
application. Franchisor's standards and specifications may include, but are in no way limited to,
requirements as to the type of vehicle wrapped, the design of the wrap, and graphic designer and installer
supplier specifications.

P. Enforcement Administrative Fee. If at any time the Franchised Restaurant fails to conform
to System requirements, Franchisor shall have the right to impose and collect from Franchisee an
administrative fee as described in this paragraph (“Enforcement Administrative Fee”). Specifically, (1)
Franchisor may impose and collect from Franchisee a $250 Enforcement Administrative Fee for each
“enforcement effort” that Franchisor undertakes on account of Franchisee’s noncompliance with System
(e.g., a letter, email, or telephone communication notifying Franchisee of noncompliance or continued
noncompliance), and (2) if Franchisor has notified Franchisee of noncompliance and Franchisee has failed
to correct the issue within seven days, Franchisor may impose and collect from Franchisee a $250
Enforcement Administrative Fee per week until the issue has been corrected to Franchisor’s satisfaction.
Franchisor also may impose and collect a $250 Enforcement Administrative Fee if Franchisee fails to
acknowledge receipt of Franchisor’s communications to Franchisee, or to respond to Franchisor’s
communications within 24 hours of delivery. This fee is not a penalty, but is intended to compensate
Franchisor for the additional costs that Franchisor incurs in enforcing Franchisee’s compliance with the
System, and is in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights or remedies that Franchisor may have based
on Franchisee’s noncompliance with the System. Franchisor may impose and collect the Enforcement
Administrative Fee whether or not the noncompliance at issue is of the type or degree that constitutes a
material default of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement and, if it is, whether or not a cure period
applies. At Franchisor’s option, Franchisor may require Franchisee to demonstrate full compliance with
Franchisee’s obligations by submitting to Franchisor a comprehensive walk-through video of the
Franchised Restaurant premises in accordance with the Franchisor’s standards and specifications.

Q. Technology Risk. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that technology is constantly
changing. Technologic devices and computer systems are always being updated, improved, replaced, and
discontinued. Consequently, computer systems are sometimes incompatible and are susceptible to Internet,
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computer system, and communication failures. By entering into this Agreement, Franchisee assumes all of
the risk of all such issues and technology failures, which Franchisee acknowledges may affect its ability to
order or receive products or to conduct business, and Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor is not
responsible for any damages caused by such issues or technology failures, including lost sales or profits.

12. INSURANCE

A. Franchisee shall procure at its expense and maintain in full force and effect during the term
of this Agreement an insurance policy or policies protecting Franchisee, Franchisor-and, Franchisor’s
Affiliates, and each of their respective officers, directors and employees against any loss, liability, personal
injury, death or property damage or expense whatsoever arising or occurring upon or in connection with
the Franchlsed Restaurant, as Franchlsor may reasonably requwe for its own and Franchlsee 'S protectlon

H&Hehﬁeé%e%m%epem}%ﬁanchlsor may, from tlme to tlme deS|gnate one or more approved

insurance carriers or agencies, and Franchlsee shaII comply Wlth such source requwements to the extent
permitted by appllcable law. Eran /3 . ,

B. All such policy or policies shall: (1) be written by an insurance company licensed in the
state in which Franchisee operates and having at least an A.M. Best rating of not less than A-VII in
accordance with standards and specifications set forth in the Confidential Operations Manual or otherwise
in writing; (2) specifically name Franchisor and its Affiliates, and_each of their partners, officers,
subsidiaries, affiliates, shareholders, directors, regional directors, agents, and employees as additional
insureds, on such basis and on such policy coverages as specified by Franchisor, which cost will be borne
by Franchisee; (3) be primary and non-contributory to any policies Franchisor may carry; (4) include a
waiver of subrogation in favor of Franchisor and its Affiliates, and each of their partners, officers,
subsidiaries, affiliates, shareholders, members, directors, directors, agents, representatives, independent
contractors, and employees; (5) not have a deductible that exceeds $10,000 for any coverage; and (6)
include, at a minimum (except as different coverages and policy limits may reasonably be specified from
time to time by Franchisor) the following; (45) not have a deductible that exceeds $10,000 for any coverage:

1. Property Insurance with special form coverage on all improvements, betterments, and all
business property used in the Franchised Restaurant at 100% of replacement cost value, but no less
than $500,000. Flood and Earthquake coverage will be required in geographically prone areas.

2. General Liability coverage for $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate,
including the additional insured endorsement naming Panchero’s Franchise Corporation. This
policy must include Products Liability coverage with an aggregate of $2,000,000, Damage to
Rented Premises of $300,000, and Personal Injury and Advertising Liability of $1,000,000.

3. Business interruption coverage for actual loss sustained for 12 months or 50% of gross
annual sales.
4, Auto Liability for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles used in the Franchised

Restaurant for $1,000,000 combined single limit liability.

5. Employment Practices Liability including third party claims for $1,000,000 and naming
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation as Co-Defendant coverage. Limit applies per policy.

6. Workers” Compensation with statutory limits, including Employer's Liability of
$500,000/$500,000/$500,000, Alternate Employer’s endorsement in our favor, and any other
insurance that may be required in the state in which the Franchised Restaurant operates. If the
Franchised Restaurant operates in a monopolistic state (i.e., Wyoming, North Dakota, West
Virginia, Washington, and Ohio), you must also obtain Stop Gap coverage on the Workers’
Compensation policy or General Liability policy. Minimum limits are as follows: no less than
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$500,000 per accident for bodily injury by accident; $500,000 policy limit by disease; and $500,000
per employee for bodily injury by disease or higher coverage as required by law in your state.

1. Umbrella Liability for $1,000,000 in excess of the General Liability, Auto Liability, Liquor
Liability, and Employer's Liability.

8. Such insurance and types of coverage as may be required by the terms of any lease for the
Franchised Restaurant, or as may be required from time to time by Franchisor.

The amounts and policy limits required in this Section 12.B. may be modified from time to time by
Franchisor in its sole discretion, and Franchisee shall comply with all modifications.

C. The insurance afforded by the policy or policies respecting liability shall not be limited in
any way by reason of any insurance which may be maintained by Franchisor. Within ninety (90) days after
the signing of this Agreement, upon signing a lease agreement for the Franchised Restaurant, or on the date
which Franchisee acquires an interest in the real property from which it shall operate the Franchised
Restaurant, whichever event occurs first, a Certificate of Insurance showing compliance with the foregoing
requirements shall be furnished by Franchisee to Franchisor for approval. Such certificate shall state that
said policy or policies shall not be canceled or altered without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice
to Franchisor and/or such other person Franchisor designates and shall reflect proof of payment of
premiums. Maintenance of such insurance and the performance by Franchisee of the obligations under this
Avrticle 12 shall not relieve Franchisee of liability under the indemnity provision set forth in this Agreement.
Minimum limits as required above may be modified from time to time, as conditions require, by written
notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall furnish proof of annual renewal of such insurance to Franchisor at
least ten (10) days prior to such renewal date.

D. Should Franchisee, for any reason, not procure and maintain such insurance coverage as
required by this Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right and authority (without, however, any obligation
to do so) to immediately procure such insurance coverage and to charge same to Franchisee, which charges,
together with a reasonable fee for expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection with such procurement,
shall be payable by Franchisee immediately upon notice.

E. Franchisee acknowledges that the foregoing minimum insurance requirements do not
constitute advice or a representation that such coverages are necessary or adequate to protect Franchisee
from losses in connection with the Franchised Restaurant. Nothing in this Agreement prevents or restricts
Franchisee from acquiring and maintaining insurance with higher policy limits or lower deductibles than
Franchisor requires.

13. COVENANTS

A. Franchisee Defined. Unless otherwise specified, the term “Franchisee” as used in this
Avrticle 13 shall include, collectively and individually, each of the persons included in the definition of
“Franchisee” as defined in Article 28.

B. Full Time Best Efforts. Franchisee covenants that during the term of this Agreement,
except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee (if Franchisee is an individual),
Franchisee’s Managing Owner (if Franchisee is a corporation), a general partner of Franchisee (if
Franchisee is a partnership) or Franchisee’s full-time manager (as approved by Franchisor) shall devote
full-time, energy and best efforts to the management and operation of the Franchised Restaurant.

C. Non-Competition During Term of Agreement. Franchisee covenants that during the term
of this Agreement, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee shall not, either
directly or indirectly, for himself, or through, on behalf of or in conjunction with any person, persons,
partnership or corporation:
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1. Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Franchised Restaurant to any
competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any other
act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks or the System.

2. Employ or seek to employ, without the consent of Franchisor or the franchisee, as
applicable, any person who is at that time, or within the previous one (1) year was, employed by Franchisor
or by any other franchisee of Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce or seek to induce such
person to leave his or her employment.

3. Own, maintain, advise, operate, engage in, be employed by, make loans to, invest in,
provide any assistance to, or have any interest in (as owner or otherwise) or relationship or association with
a Competitive Business, other than a PANCHERQOS restaurant operated pursuant to a then-currently
effective franchise agreement with Franchisor at any location within the United States, its territories or
commonwealths, or any other country, province, state or geographic area in which Franchisor or its
Affiliates have used, sought registration of or registered the Marks or similar marks or operate or license
others to operate a business under the Marks or similar marks.

The term “Competitive Business” means (i) any restaurant or other foodservice business that
serves primarily Mexican-style or Tex-Mexican-style food items, such as burritos, tacos, enchiladas, and
guesadillas, or (ii) any business granting franchises or licenses to others to operate the type of business
specified in clause (i).

D. Non-Competition After Expiration of Termination of Agreement. Franchisee specifically
acknowledges that, pursuant to this Agreement, Franchisee shall receive valuable training and Confidential
Information. Accordingly, commencing upon the later of: (1) a transfer permitted under Section 16.D. of
this Agreement, expiration of this Agreement, or termination of this Agreement (regardless of the cause for
termination) or (2) a final court order (after all appeals have been taken) with respect to any of the foregoing
events or with respect to enforcement of this Section 13.D, and continuing for an uninterrupted period of
two (2) years thereafter, Franchisee shall not either directly or indirectly, for Franchisee, or through, on
behalf of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, or legal entity, own, maintain, advise, operate, engage
in, be employed by, make loans to, or have any interest in or relationship or association with a Competitive
Businessother than a PANCHEROS restaurant operated pursuant to a then-currently effective franchise
agreement with Franchisor, and (i) is, or is intended to be, located at the Premises of the former Franchised
Restaurant; (ii) within the former Designated Area of the Franchised Restaurant (or, if there was no
protected area, within a ten (10) mile radius of the Franchised Restaurant); or (iii) within a ten (10) mile
radius of any other restaurant operating under the System and Marks in existence or under development at
the time of such expiration, termination or transfer.

If this Section 13.D. is found unenforceable, either in whole or in part, by a court of law, or other
official proceeding, Franchisor shall still be entitled to equitable relief. If any owner of Franchisee ceases
to be an owner of the Franchisee for any reason during the franchise term, the foregoing covenant shall
apply to the departing owner for a two (2) year period beginning on the date such person’s interest in
Franchisee is transferred, assigned, or sold.

The two (2) year time period described in this Section 13.D. will be tolled during any period of
noncompliance.

E. Additional Provisions. Each of the foregoing covenants shall be construed as independent
of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any portion of a covenant in this Article 13
is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final
decision to which Franchisor is a party, such finding shall not impair the remainder of this Agreement and
Franchisee shall be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of such covenant that imposes
the maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant were separately stated in and made a part
of this Article 13.
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Franchisee understands and acknowledges that Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discretion,
to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in Sections 13.C. and 13.D., or any portion thereof, without
Franchisee’s consent, effective immediately upon receipt by Franchisee of written notice thereof, and
Franchisee shall comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified, which shall be fully enforceable.

F. Covenants from Individuals. Franchisee and each individual who attends Franchisor’s
training program shall be required to sign a confidentiality and non-compete agreement substantially in a
form satisfactory to Franchisor. Franchisee shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with such
agreement.

G. Breach of Covenants Causes Irreparable Injury. Franchisee acknowledges that
Franchisee’s violation of any covenant of this Article 13 would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for
which no adequate remedy at law may be available, and Franchisee consents to the issuance of, and agrees
to pay all court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by Franchisor in obtaining, without the posting
of any bond, an ex parte or other order for injunctive or other legal or equitable relief with respect to such
conduct or action.

H. Improvements. If Franchisee (again, as defined in Article 28) or Franchisee’s employees
develop any new concept, process or improvement in the operation or promotion of a PANCHEROS
restaurant (an “Improvement”), Franchisee agrees to promptly notify Franchisor and provide Franchisor
with all necessary related information, without compensation. Any such Improvement shall become
Franchisor’s sole property and Franchisor shall be the sole owner of all related patents, patent applications,
and other intellectual property rights. Franchisee hereby assigns to Franchisor any rights Franchisee may
have or acquire in the Improvements, including the right to modify the Improvement, and waive and/or
release all rights of restraint and moral rights therein and thereto. Franchisee agrees to assist Franchisor in
obtaining and enforcing the intellectual property rights to any such Improvement in any and all countries
and further agree to execute and provide Franchisor with all necessary documentation for obtaining and
enforcing such rights. Franchisee hereby irrevocably designates and appoints Franchisor as agent and
attorney-in-fact for Franchisee and Franchisee agrees to execute and file any such documentation and to do
all other lawful acts to further the prosecution and issuance of patents or other intellectual property right
related to any such Improvement. In the event that the foregoing provisions of this Section 13.H. are found
to be invalid or otherwise unenforceable, Franchisee hereby grants to Franchisor a worldwide, perpetual,
non-exclusive, fully-paid license to use and sublicense the use of the Improvement to the extent such use
or sublicense would, absent this Agreement, directly or indirectly infringe on Franchisee’s rights therein.

14. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

A. Franchisee’s Right to Terminate. If Franchisee is in substantial compliance with this
Agreement and Franchisor materially breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within a
reasonable time after written notice thereof is delivered to Franchisor, Franchisee may terminate this
Agreement. Such termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after delivery to Franchisor of written
notice that such breach has not been cured and Franchisee elects to terminate this Agreement. A termination
of this Agreement by Franchisee for any reason other than breach of this Agreement by Franchisor and
Franchisor’s failure to cure such breach within a reasonable time after receipt of written notice thereof shall
be deemed a termination by Franchisee without cause and a breach of this Agreement.

B. Termination with Notice and Without Opportunity to Cure. This Agreement shall
terminate automatically upon delivery of written notice of termination to Franchisee, if Franchisee or its
owner(s), officer(s) or manager(s):

1. Fails to find a suitable site for the Franchised Restaurant by the Control Date (or extended
Control Date, as applicable) or fails to open the restaurant for business by the Target Opening Date.
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2. Fails to satisfactorily complete the training program as provided in Sections 5.A. through
5.C. of this Agreement;

3. Has made any material misrepresentation or omission in its application for the franchise;

4, Is convicted of or pleads no contest to a felony or other crime or offense that is likely to
adversely affect the reputation of Franchisee or the Franchised Restaurant;

5. Makes any unauthorized use, disclosure or duplication of any portion of the Confidential
Operations Manual or duplicates or discloses or makes any unauthorized use of any Confidential
Information provided to Franchisee by Franchisor;

6. Abandons, fails or refuses to actively operate the Franchised Restaurant for two (2)
business days in any twelve (12) month period, unless the Franchised Restaurant has been closed for a
purpose approved by Franchisor or due to a force majeure;

7. Fails to relocate the Franchised Restaurant to another location, pursuant to the site selection
provisions of this Agreement, within an approved period of time following expiration or termination of the
lease for the Premises;

8. Surrenders or transfers control of the operation of the Franchised Restaurant; transfer or
attempts to transfer any right to this Agreement or the Franchised Restaurant in violation of Article 16 of
this Agreement; or fails or refuses to assign the franchise or the interest in Franchisee of a deceased or
disabled controlling owner thereof as herein required;

9. Submits to Franchisor on two (2) or more separate occasions at any time during the term
of the franchise any reports or other data, information or supporting records which understate by more than
three percent (3%) the Royalty Fees for any period of, or periods aggregating, three (3) or more weeks, and
Franchisee is unable to demonstrate that such understatements resulted from inadvertent error;

10. If Franchisee is adjudicated bankrupt, becomes insolvent, commits any affirmative act of
insolvency or files any action or petition of insolvency, or if a receiver (permanent or temporary) of its
property or any part thereof is appointed by a court of competent authority, or if it makes a general
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a final judgment remains unsatisfied of record for thirty (30)
days or longer (unless supersedeas bond is filed), or if execution is levied against Franchisee’s business or
property, or if suit to foreclose any lien or mortgage against its Premises or equipment is instituted against
Franchisee and not dismissed within thirty (30) days, or is not in the process of being dismissed; provided,
however, that Franchisor reserves the right to be named as trustee or receiver in any voluntary petition for
bankruptcy or insolvency filed by Franchisee;

11. Materially misuses or makes an unauthorized use of any of the Marks or commits any other
act which can reasonably be expected to materially impair the goodwill associated with any of the Marks
or the System;

12. Fails on two (2) or more separate occasions within any period of twelve (12) consecutive
months to submit when due reports or other information or supporting records, to pay when due the Royalty
Fees, Advertising Fund contributions, amounts due for purchases from Franchisor or other payments due
to Franchisor, or otherwise fails to comply with this Agreement, whether or not such failures to comply are
corrected after notice thereof is delivered to Franchisee;

13. Continues to violate any health, safety or sanitation law, ordinance or regulation or operates
the Franchised Restaurant in a manner that presents a health or safety hazard to its customers or the public;

14. Offers for sale unauthorized products or services from the Franchised Restaurant Premises
or in conjunction with the Marks;
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15. Failure to pass two (2) or more quality assurance inspections within any rolling twelve (12)
month period; or

16. Franchisor delivers to Franchisee three (3) or more written notices of default pursuant to
this Article 14 within any rolling twelve (12) month period, whether or not the defaults described in such
notices ultimately are cured.

C. Termination with Designated Cure Period. This Agreement shall terminate upon delivery
of written notice of termination from Franchisor to Franchisee, if Franchisee or Franchisee’s owner:

1. Fails or refuses to make payments of any amounts due Franchisor for Royalty Fees,
Advertising Fund contributions, purchases from Franchisor or any other amounts due to Franchisor, or fails
to comply with its Grand Opening Advertising obligations, and does not correct such failure or refusal
within ten (10) business days after written notice of such failure is delivered to Franchisee;

2. Fails or refuses to comply with any other provision of this Agreement or any mandatory
specification, standard or operating procedure prescribed in the Confidential Operations Manual or
otherwise in writing and does not correct such failure within thirty (30) days (or provide proof acceptable
to Franchisor that it has made all reasonable efforts to correct such failure and shall continue to make all
reasonable efforts to cure until a cure is effected, if such failure cannot reasonably be corrected within thirty
(30) days) after written notice of such failure to comply is delivered to Franchisee.

D. Termination Related to Death or Permanent Incapacity. Franchisor has the right to
terminate this Agreement if an approved transfer as required by Article 17 is not effected within the
designated time frame following a death or permanent incapacity (mental or physical).

E. Franchisor’s Alternative Remedies to Termination. In lieu of exercising its right to
terminate this Agreement, Franchisor may, without waiving such right to terminate: (1) withhold services
to Franchisee; (2) limit Franchisee’s access to any or all portions of certain software or computer systems;
(3) revoke Franchisee’s right to participate in promotions or programs and to attend franchise conventions
and meetings; (4) after Franchisee’s failure to cure such default, inspect or re-inspect the Franchised
Restaurant and, regardless of whether it is an inspection or re-inspection, charge Franchisee its then-current
Re-Inspection Fee; and/or (5) exercise the Step-In Rights described in Article 18, below.

15. RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF PARTIES UPON EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

A. Cease Use of Marks; Cancellation of Fictitious Name. Upon termination or expiration of
this Agreement, Franchisee shall cease all use of the Marks and Confidential Information, shall cancel any
assumed name registration containing the Marks; and shall assign to Franchisor or its designee, at
Franchisor’s request, all rights to all e-mail addresses, URLs, domain names, Internet listings, and Internet
accounts related to the Franchised Restaurant. Franchisee hereby appoints Franchisor as Franchisee’s
attorney-in-fact with full power and authority for the sole purpose of assigning these rights to Franchisor.
This appointment is deemed to be coupled with an interest and shall continue in full force and effect for
twelve (12) months following termination or expiration of this Agreement.

B. Assignment of Telephone Numbers. Within fifteen (15) days from the date of termination
or expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee shall authorize and initiate the transfer (and shall refrain from
interfering with the transfer) to Franchisor, or its designee, of all telephone numbers and directory listings
used in connection with the Franchised Restaurant; and/or to instruct the telephone company to forward all
calls made to Franchisee’s numbers to numbers Franchisor specifies. If Franchisee fails to do so, Franchisor
may take whatever action and sign whatever documents it deems appropriate on Franchisee’s behalf to
effect these events. Franchisee hereby appoints Franchisor as Franchisee’s attorney-in-fact with full power
and authority for the sole purpose of assigning these rights to Franchisor. This appointment is deemed to
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be coupled with an interest and shall continue in full force and effect for twelve (12) months following
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

C. Return of Confidential Operations Manuals and Other Confidential Information. Upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee shall immediately deliver to Franchisor the
Confidential Operations Manual and all other manuals, records, correspondence, files, and any instructions
containing Confidential Information relating to the operation of the Franchised Restaurant which are in
your possession; and all copies thereof (all of which are acknowledged to be the property of Franchisor).

D. Return of Signage and Other Items to Franchisor. Within ten (10) days following
termination or expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee shall, at its own cost and without any payment from
Franchisor for such items, deliver to Franchisor, to make available to Franchisor for pick-up, or to destroy
(at Franchisor’s option) all signs, sign-faces, sign-cabinets, marketing materials, forms, and other materials
Franchisor requests containing any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to a PANCHEROS Restaurant.
Such obligation may be modified, by Franchisor, in its sole discretion, as necessary to accommodate
exercise of Franchisor’s Step-In Rights, pursuant to Article 18, or purchase option, pursuant to Section 15.1.
If Franchisee fails to take required action, Franchisor and its representatives may enter the Franchised
Restaurant at their convenience and remove these items without any criminal or civil liability to Franchisee,
the landlord, or any other third party for trespass or any other claim. Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor’s
costs of taking such action.

E. De-ldentification. Within ten (10) days following termination or expiration of this
Agreement, Franchisee shall take all necessary steps de-identify the Franchised Restaurant premises so that
it no longer resembles a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant. Such de-identification obligations shall be
specified in the Confidential Operations Manual or other written communication and include, without
limitation, removing the menu-board and related railings and the sneeze-guard railings and delivering to
Franchisor the tortilla press. Such obligation may be modified, by Franchisor, in its sole discretion, as
necessary to accommodate exercise of Franchisor’s Step-In Rights, pursuant to Article 18, or purchase
option, pursuant to Section 15.1. If Franchisee fails to take required action, Franchisor and its
representatives may enter the Franchised Restaurant at their convenience and take this action without any
criminal or civil liability to Franchisee, the landlord, or any other third party for trespass or any other claim.
Franchisor need not compensate Franchisee or the landlord for any alterations. Franchisee must reimburse
Franchisor’s costs of de-identifying the Franchised Restaurant.

F. Payment of all Due Amounts; Liquidated Damages. Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor
within fifteen (15) days after this Agreement expires or its terminated the Royalty Fees, Advertising Fee
contributions, amounts due for purchases by Franchisee from Franchisor or its affiliates, late fees, interest,
and other amounts which then are unpaid. If Franchisor terminates this Agreement on any ground specified
under Sections 14.B. or 14.C., or if Franchisee terminates this Agreement without cause, before this
Agreement’s scheduled expiration date, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor, as liquidated damages and not
as a penalty, damages in the amount equal to the average weekly Royalty Fee for the twenty-six (26) week
period immediately preceding termination, multiplied by the number of weeks remaining in the current
Term. If the Franchised Restaurant was closed during any part of the twenty-six (26) week period, then the
Royalty Fee for any week or partial week in which the Franchised Restaurant was closed will be presumed
to be the highest weekly Royalty Fee payable during the twenty-six (26) week period.

G. Covenants. Franchisee will comply with the covenants contained in Section 13.D. and as
otherwise provided for under this Agreement, which survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

H. Costs and Attorneys’ Fees. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor all damages, costs and
expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor subsequent to the termination or
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expiration of the franchise herein granted in obtaining injunctive or other relief for the enforcement of any
provisions contained in Articles 13 and 15.

. Franchisor’s Option to Purchase.

1. Option to Purchase Assets. Franchisee hereby grants to Franchisor the right and
option to purchase any or all of the assets of the Franchised Restaurant, upon the terms and
conditions stated in this Section 15.1. This option may be exercised at any time before, or within
sixty (60) days following, termination or expiration of this Agreement, by delivering to Franchisee
written notice of its election (the “Exercise Notice”). The Exercise Notice shall identify the assets
of the Franchised Restaurant that Franchisor desires to purchase. The purchase price for each asset
will be an amount equal to the forced liquidation value (also known as auction value) of the asset.
If the parties cannot agree on the forced liquidation value, such value will be determined after
delivery of the Exercise Notice by a company selected by Franchisor whose principal business is
to evaluate assets to be liquidated, and Franchisor’s obligation to close on the purchase will be
conditioned on Franchisor’s acceptance of the valuation result. Closing on the purchase shall occur
no later than sixty (60) days after delivery of the Exercise Notice or sixty (60) days after
termination or expiration of this Agreement, whichever occurs later.

2. Option to Purchase Assets as Going Concern. If Franchisor exercises its right to
purchase all assets used in connection with the operation of the Franchised Restaurant, (1) the
purchase price will be an amount equal to the forced liquidation value of each item of equipment,
fixtures, and furniture (if the parties cannot agree on the forced liquidation value, such value will
be determined according to the appraisal process described above), plus Franchisee’s cost of
inventory and supplies, valued at Franchisee’s cost, (2) the purchase price shall not include any
amount for leasehold improvements, intellectual property, goodwill, going concern value, or items
that Franchisee is required to return to Franchisor pursuant to Sections 15.C. or 15.D. of this
Agreement, (3) Franchisor may exclude from purchase any operating assets or other items that are
not reasonably necessary (in function or quality) to the operation of the Franchised Restaurant or
that Franchisor has not approved as meeting system standards for PANCHEROS Restaurants, and
the purchase price will reflect these exclusions, (4) Franchisor’s obligation to close will be
conditioned on Franchisee’s conveyance of good and marketable title to the assets, free and clear
of all encumbrances, and Franchisor’s acceptance of any valuation result (5) Franchisor will have
the right to assume Franchisee’s interest in the lease (if applicable); provided that Franchisee shall
be responsible for payment of all transfer fees and Franchisor shall assume only post-closing
obligations thereunder, (6) Franchisee shall provide all customary warranties and representations
as to title, ownership, condition of the assets, validity of contracts and agreements, and liabilities
affecting the Franchised Restaurant, contingent or otherwise, and (7) Franchisee shall indemnify
and hold harmless Franchisor from and against all claims, liabilities, and losses related to the
ownership or operation of the Franchised Restaurant accruing prior to closing. Closing on the
purchase shall occur no later than sixty (60) days after delivery of the Exercise Notice or sixty (60)
days after termination or expiration of this Agreement, whichever occurs later. At closing,
Franchisee shall deliver instruments transferring to the purchaser: (i) good and merchantable title
to the assets, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests
acceptable to Franchisor), with all sales and other transfer taxes paid by Franchisee; (ii) all of the
licenses and permits of the Franchised Restaurant that may be assigned or transferred; and (iii)
the fee simple or leasehold interest in the premises and improvements or a lease assignment or
lease or sublease, as applicable. If Franchisee cannot deliver clear title to all of the purchased
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assets, or if there are other unresolved issues, Franchisor (or its assignee) and Franchisee will close
the sale through an escrow. Franchisee and its owners further agree to execute general releases, in
a form satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its owners, affiliates,
officers, directors, employees, agents, successors, and assigns. Franchisor has the right to assign
this purchase option, in its sole discretion.

3. Option to Purchase Real Property. If Franchisee owns the real property on which
the Franchised Restaurant is situated, Franchisor shall have the right and option to purchase such
real property for fair market value. If Franchisor and Franchisee cannot agree on fair market value
for the fee simple interest in the Premises, fair market value will be determined by one (1)
independent accredited appraiser upon whom Franchisor and Franchisee agree who will conduct
an appraisal and, in doing so, be bound by the criteria specified in subsection (3). Franchisee and
Franchisor agree to select the appraiser within fifteen (15) days after Franchisor notifies Franchisee
that it wishes to exercise its purchase option (if Franchisee and Franchisor have not agreed on fair
market value before then). Franchisee and Franchisor will share equally the appraiser’s fees and
expenses. The appraiser must complete its appraisal within thirty (30) days after its appointment.
The purchase price will be the appraised value. If the parties cannot agree on the appraiser, he or
she will be chosen by the American Arbitration Association. Franchisor has the right to assign its
purchase option, in its sole discretion.

4. Set-Off. Franchisor or its designee may set off against the purchase price, and
reduce the purchase price by, any and all amounts Franchisee or its owners owe Franchisor or its
affiliates. .

5. Lease. If Franchisee leases the Premises from an unaffiliated lessor, or if Franchisor
chooses not to purchase Franchisee’s (or its affiliate’s) fee simple interest in the Premises,
Franchisee agrees (as applicable) at Franchisor’s election: (i) to assign its leasehold interest in the
Premises to Franchisor or its Designee; (ii) to enter into a sublease for the remainder of the lease
term on the same terms (including renewal options) as the lease; or (iii) to lease the Premises to
Franchisor or its Designee for a term determined by Franchisor on commercially reasonable terms.
“Designee” is an any entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with Franchisor
or any another entity operating a PANCHEROS restaurant under a valid franchise agreement with
Company.

16. TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST

A. Transfer by Franchisor. Franchisor may transfer or assign all or any part of its rights or
obligations under this Agreement to any person or legal entity. With respect to any assignment which
results in the subsequent performance by the assignee of all of Franchisor’s obligations under this
Agreement, the assignee shall expressly assume and agree to perform such obligations, and shall become
solely responsible for all of Franchisor’s obligations under this Agreement from the date of assignment.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor and/or its Affiliates may sell their assets, the Trade
Secret Food Products, the Marks, or the System; may sell securities in a public offering or in a private
placement; may merge, acquire other corporations, or be acquired by another corporation; and may
undertake a refinancing, recapitalization, leveraged buy-out, or other economic or financial restructuring.
With regard to any of the above sales, assignments and dispositions, Franchisee expressly and specifically
waives any claims, demands or damages arising from or related to the loss of Franchisor’s name, the Trade
Secret Food Products, the Marks (or any variation thereof), the System and/or the loss of association with
or identification of Panchero’s Franchise Corporation as the franchisor under this Agreement. Franchisee
specifically waives any and all other claims, demands or damages arising from or related to the foregoing
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merger, acquisition and other business combination activities including, without limitation, any claim of
divided loyalty, breach of fiduciary duty, fraud, breach of contract or breach of the implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor has the right, now or in the future, to purchase,
merge, acquire or affiliate with an existing competitive or non-competitive franchise network, chain or any
other business regardless of the location of that chain’s or business’ facilities, and to operate, franchise or
license those businesses and/or facilities as PANCHEROQOS restaurants operating under the Marks, or any
other marks following Franchisor’s purchase, merger, acquisition or affiliation, regardless of the location
of these facilities (which Franchisee acknowledges may be proximate to the Franchised Restaurant).

B. Transfer by Individual Franchisee to Business Entity for Convenience. If Franchisee is an
individual, Franchisee may transfer his or her interest in this Agreement to a Business Entity for
convenience of operation within the first 12 months of this Agreement by signing Franchisor’s standard
form of assignment and assumption agreement if (1) the Business Entity is formed solely for purposes of
operating the Franchised Restaurant; (2) Franchisee owns and controls 100% of the equity interest; (3)
Franchisee provides to Franchisor a copy of the Business Entity’s formation and governing documents and
a certificate of good standing from the jurisdiction under which the Business Entity was formed; (4) all
holders of a legal or beneficial interest in the Business Entity has signed a Guaranty and Assumption of
Obligations in the substantially form of Exhibit B; and (5) Franchisee pays to Franchisor its administrative
and legal costs and any other expenses associated with the transfer. The term “Business Entity” means
any person with the power to enter into contracts, other than a natural person. The term includes a
corporation, limited liability company, limited partnership, and trust.

C. Transfer Among Owners; Transfer of Non-Controlling Interest. If Franchisee is a Business
Entity, Franchisee’s Owners may transfer their ownership interests in the Business Entity among each other,
and may transfer up to a non-controlling interest in the Business Entity to one or more third parties, if: (1)
Franchisee has provided to Franchisor advance notice of the transfer; (2) each new Owner has signed a
Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations in the form of Exhibit B; (3) each existing and new Owner has
signed a general release in favor of Franchisor and in the form Franchisor requires; and (4) Franchisee pays
to Franchisor a $2,500 transfer fee and reimburses Franchisor for its transfer-related costs and expenses,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

D. Transfer of Agreement; Transfer of Controlling Interest. All other transfers (including any
sale or transfer of Franchisee’s interest in this Agreement, the sale or transfer of all or substantially of the
assets of the Franchised Restaurant in connection with a transfer of this Agreement, and the sale of a
controlling interest in Franchisee if Franchisee is a Business Entity) require Franchisor’s prior written
consent. Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a transfer, but may condition its consent
on satisfaction of any or all of the following:

1. Franchisee shall have requested consent in writing and delivered to Franchisor a copy of
the proposed transfer agreements, including sale terms, at least 30 days prior to the proposed transfer, r, and
Franchisor has determined, in its sole and reasonable discretion, that the terms of the sale will not materially
and adversely affect the post transfer viability of the Franchised Restaurant.

2. Franchisee shall have delivered to Franchisor, with a copy of the proposed transfer
agreements, one half ($5,000) of the Transfer Fee of $10,000, which Franchisee understands will not be
refunded to Franchisee if the proposed transfer does not occur;

3. The transferee has demonstrated to Franchisor’s satisfaction that the transferee meets
Franchisor’s then-current educational, managerial and business standards; possesses a a good moral
character, business reputation and credit rating; has the aptitude and ability to operate the Franchised
Restaurant; and has sufficient equity capital to operate the Franchised Restaurant;

4, All of Franchisee’s accrued monetary obligations and all other outstanding obligations to
Franchisor, its Affiliates, and third party suppliers shall be up to date, fully paid and satisfied, and
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Franchisee must be in full compliance with this Agreement and any other agreements between Franchisee
and Franchisor, its Affiliates and Franchisee’s suppliers;

5. Franchisee or the transferee shall have agreed to refurbish the Franchised Restaurant
Premises so that it meets Franchisor’s image requirements for new PANCHEROS restaurants;

6. Franchisee and each Owner and guarantor shall have executed a general release, in a form
satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its Affiliates and their respective
officers, directors, shareholders, agents and employees in their corporate and individual capacities,
including, without limitation, claims arising under federal, state and local laws, rules and ordinances;
provided, however, that any release will not be inconsistent with any state law regulating franchising;

7. Franchisee or the transferee has paid the balance of the $10,000 Transfer Fee in the amount
of $5,000, and has reimbursed Franchisor for all reasonable costs and expenses Franchisor incurred
(including its attorneys’ fees) in facilitating the transfer;

8. The transferee has executed Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement, the
terms of which may be materially different than the terms of this Agreement and may include, among other
things, a different percentage royalty fee and different advertising obligations. The term of such agreement
shall be the remaining term of this Agreement at the time of transfer;

9. If the transferee is a Business Entity, then the transferee’s Owners each shall sign
Franchisor’s standard form of Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations;

10. You have complied with the requirements set forth in Section 16.G;

11. The transferee shall have complied with Franchisor’s then-current initial training
requirements; and

12. If Franchisor introduced the buyer to Franchisee, Franchisee has paid all fees due
Franchisor under its then-current franchise resale policy or program.

Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has legitimate business reasons to evaluate the
qualifications of potential transferees and to analyze and critique the terms of their purchase contracts with
Franchisee and that Franchisor’s contact with potential transferees to protect Franchisor’s business interests
will not constitute improper or unlawful conduct. Franchisee expressly authorizes Franchisor to investigate
any potential transferee’s qualifications, to analyze and critique the proposed purchase terms, to
communicate candidly and truthfully with the transferee regarding Franchisee’s operation of the Franchised
Restaurant, and to withhold consent to economically questionable transactions. Franchisee waives any
claim that the action Franchisor takes in good faith to protect its business interests in connection with a
proposed transfer constitutes tortious interference with contractual or business relationships. Similarly,
Franchisor may review all information regarding the Franchised Restaurant that Franchisee gives the
proposed transferee, correct any information Franchisor believes is inaccurate, and give the proposed
transferee copies of any reports Franchisee has given Franchisor or Franchisor has made regarding the
Franchised Restaurant.

E. Transfers Void. Any purported transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, made without
Franchisor’s prior written consent will be considered null and void and will be considered a material breach
of this Agreement.

F. Security Interest. Franchisee may grant a security interest in this Agreement or the
franchise represented by this Agreement only to the limited extent permitted by Section 9-408 of the
Uniform Commercial Code. Any such security interest may only attach to an interest in the proceeds of the
operation of the Franchised Restaurant and may not entitle or permit the secured party to take possession
of or operate the Franchised Restaurant or to transfer your interest in the franchise without Franchisor’s
consent.
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G. Right of First Refusal. If Franchisee receives a bona fide offer to purchase its interest in
this Agreement or receives a bona fide offer to purchase all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchised
Restaurant in connection with the buyer’s acquisition of a franchise for a PANCHEROS restaurant, or if
any Owner receives a bona fide offer to purchase his or her equity interests in Franchisee (if Franchisee is
a Business Entity), and Franchisee or such Owner wishes to accept such offer, Franchisee or the Owner
must deliver to Franchisor written notification of the offer and, except as otherwise provided herein,
Franchisor shall have the right and option, exercisable within thirty (30) days after receipt of such written
notification, to purchase the seller’s interest on the same terms and conditions offered by the third party.
The written notification must include a copy of the bona fide offer, signed by the seller, whose identity
must be disclosed to Franchisor. If the bona fide offer provides for the exchange of assets other than cash
or cash equivalents, the bona fide offer shall include the fair market value of the assets and Franchisee shall
submit with the notice an appraisal prepared by a qualified independent third party evidencing the fair
market value of such assets as of the date of the offer. Any material change in the terms of any offer prior
to closing shall constitute a new offer subject to the same right of first refusal by Franchisor as in the case
of an initial offer. If Franchisor elects to purchase the seller’s interest, closing on such purchase must occur
by the later of: (1) the closing date specified in the third party offer; or (2) within 60 days from the date of
notice to the seller of Franchisor’s election to purchase. Franchisor’s failure to exercise the option described
in this Section 16.G. shall not constitute a waiver of any of the transfer conditions set forth in this Article
16.

This Section 16.G. grants Franchisor a right to purchase the seller's interest in the above-described
assets regardless of whether the bona fide offer includes an offer to purchase other assets of the seller. If
the offer includes an offer to purchase other assets, the proposed purchaser must specify the amount of the
offer price allocated to the above-described assets. In such events, Franchisor may exercise its right of first
refusal with respect to the above-described assets only. If the offer includes an offer to purchase interests
in multiple franchise agreements, multiple PANCHEROS Restaurants, and/or area development rights, the
proposed purchaser must specify the amount of the offer price allocated to each agreement or Restaurant,
as applicable. In such event, Franchisor may exercise its right of first refusal with respect to all or any part
of the offer.

The right of first refusal process described in the preceding paragraph will not be triggered by a
proposed transfer that would not be allowed under Section 16.C., above. As noted in this Agreement’s
transfer section, there may be no transfer of the Franchised Restaurant unless it will continue to be operated
as a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant under a Franchise Agreement. Franchisee may not sell the assets
of the Franchised Restaurant to anyone who will use those assets to operate anything other than a
PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant. Franchisor may require Franchisee (or its owners) to send
Franchisor copies of any materials or information sent to the proposed buyer or transferee regarding the
possible transaction. Franchisor has the unrestricted right to assign this right of first refusal to a third party,
who then will have the rights described in this Section 16.G.

17. DEATH OR INCAPACITY OF FRANCHISEE

A. Transfer in the Event of Death of Incapacity. In the event of the death or incapacity of an
individual Franchisee, or any partner of a Franchisee which is a partnership or any owner owning a
controlling interest of a Franchisee which is a Business Entity, the heirs, beneficiaries, devisees or legal
representatives of said individual, partner or owner shall within ninety (90) days of such event:

1. Apply to Franchisor for the right to continue to operate the franchise for the duration of the
term of this Agreement and any renewals hereof, which right shall be granted upon the fulfillment of all of
the conditions set forth in Section 16.D. of this Agreement (except that no transfer fee shall be required);
or

2. Sell, assign, transfer or convey Franchisee’s interest in compliance with the provisions of
Section 16.D. of this Agreement; provided, however, in the event a proper and timely application for the
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right to continue to operate has been made and rejected, the ninety (90) days to sell, assign, transfer or
convey shall be computed from the date of said rejection. For purposes of this Article 17, Franchisor’s
silence on an application made pursuant to Section 16.D. through the ninety (90) days following the event
of death or incapacity shall be deemed a rejection made on the last day of such period.

B. Failure to Comply with Transfer Provisions. In the event of the death or incapacity of an
individual franchisee, or any partner or owner of a Franchisee which is a partnership or Business Entity,
where the provisions of Article 17 have not been fulfilled within the time provided, all rights granted to
Franchisee under this Agreement shall, at the option of Franchisor, terminate and Franchisor shall have the
option to purchase the Franchised Restaurant in accordance with Section 15.1.

18. STEP IN RIGHTS

A. Step-In Rights. To prevent any interruption of the operation of the Franchised Restaurant
which would cause harm to the Franchised Restaurant and thereby depreciate the value thereof, Franchisee
authorizes Franchisor to enter upon the Franchised Restaurant premises and to manage the operation of the
Franchised Restaurant (“Step-In Rights™), upon the happening of any of the following events: (1) in the
event that Franchisee is absent or incapacitated by reason of illness or death and is not, therefore, in the sole
judgment of Franchisor, able to operate the Franchised Restaurant, (2) upon Franchisee’s default under the
Franchise Agreement and failure to cure within the required cure period, (3) upon Franchisor’s receipt of
information that would reasonably lead Franchisor to believe that Franchisee intended to permanently close
the Franchised Restaurant or abandon franchise operations, or (4) upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement (during the purchase option period and, if Franchisor exercises its option, pending closing on
the purchase).

B. Governing Terms. If Franchisor elects to exercise its Step-In Rights, the following terms
and conditions shall apply:

1. Term. Franchisor shall have the right to manage the Franchised Restaurant (either itself or
through its designee, hereinafter the “Manager™) for such period as Franchisor deems appropriate, but not
to exceed ninety (90) days, unless mutually agreed by the parties.

2. Management Services. During the term, the Manager shall manage the day-to-day
operations of the Franchised Restaurant. Franchisee grants Manager the exclusive right to manage the
Franchised Restaurant during the term including, without limitation, the right to supervise the operation of
the Franchised Restaurant, the right to purchase inventory and supplies for the Franchised Restaurant, and
the right to hire, fire, and discipline employees of the Franchised Restaurant (including Franchisee’s
employees).

3. Compensation. As consideration for the management services provided hereunder, the
Manager shall be entitled to a management fee equal to four hundred dollars ($400) per day, plus
reimbursement of all management-related costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor including, without
limitation, salary, travel, and lodging expenses for personnel providing management services.

4. Revenue and Expenses. During the management term, all revenue from the operation of
the business (“Operating Revenue”) shall be kept in a separate account, and all costs and expenses of the
Franchised Restaurant (including, without limitation, Royalty Fees, Advertising Fund contributions, and
other amounts due under this Agreement, credit card processing fees, inventory purchases, payroll
expenses, occupancy costs and expenses, facility maintenance expenses, utility charges, license and service
fees, etc.) (“Operating Costs”) shall be paid from Operating Revenue. For avoidance of doubt, Operating
Costs include current payments of principal and interest due on any debt financing; but not any arrearages.
If Operating Revenue is insufficient to fully satisfy the Management Fee and Operating Costs, at the
Manager’s election (a) the Manager may advance necessary funds, in the form of a loan to Franchisee,
subject to eighteen percent (18%) per month or the highest commercial contract interest rate the law allows,
whichever is less, or (b) such expenses shall be paid to the extent of available Operating Revenue and in
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the order of priority that the Manager deems appropriate, in its sole discretion. If Operating Revenue
exceeds Operating Costs, then the excess will be credited against amounts owed to Franchisor under this
Agreement, and the balance (if any) will be remitted to Franchisee within ninety (90) days after termination
of the management term. For avoidance of doubt, the Manager shall have no obligation to advance funds
for purposes of paying expenses, all expenses shall remain the sole obligation of Franchisee.

5. Limitation of Liability. Franchisor (or the third party) will have a duty to use only
reasonable efforts and, if Franchisor is not grossly negligent and does not commit an act of willful
misconduct, will not be liable to Franchisee or its owners for any debts, losses, or obligations the Franchised
Restaurant incurs, or to any of Franchisee’s creditors for any supplies, products, or other assets or services
the Franchised Restaurant purchases, while Franchisor (or the third party) manages it. If Franchisor (or a
third party) assumes the Franchised Restaurant’s management, Franchisor (or the third party) may retain
all Gross Revenues, and need not pay Franchisee or otherwise account to Franchisee for any Gross
Revenues generated while Franchisor (or the third party) manages the Franchised Restaurant.

6. Franchisor’s exercise of the management rights granted herein will not affect Franchisor’s
right to terminate this Agreement under this Article 14 or any other of the parties’ rights or remedies under
this Agreement or applicable law.

19. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION

A. Independent Contractor. This Agreement does not constitute Franchisee as an agent, legal
representative, joint venturer, partner, employee or servant of Franchisor for any purpose whatsoever.
Franchisee may not represent to third parties that it is an agent of Franchisor and it is understood between
the parties hereto that Franchisee shall be an independent contractor and is in no way authorized to make
any contract, agreement, warranty or representation on behalf of Franchisor, or to create any obligation,
express or implied, on behalf of Franchisor. Franchisor does not participate in the hiring, disciplining, or
discharging of Franchisee’s employees or in setting and paying wages and benefits to Franchisee’s
employees, and Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has no power, responsibility, or liability with
respect to the hiring, disciplining, or discharging of employees or in setting or paying their wages.
Franchisee shall prominently display, by posting of a sign within public view, on or in the Premises, a
statement that clearly indicates that the Franchised Restaurant is independently owned and operated by
Franchisee as a PANCHEROS franchise of Franchisor and not as an agent thereof.

B. Indemnification. Franchisee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Franchisor,
its affiliates, and their respective owners, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors, and assignees
(the “Indemnified Parties”) against, and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for, all
claims, obligations, and damages directly or indirectly arising out of or relating to the Franchised
Restaurant’s operation, the business Franchisee conducts under this Agreement, or Franchisee’s breach of
this Agreement, including, without limitation, those alleged to be caused by the Indemnified Party’s
negligence or willful misconduct, unless (and then only to the extent that) the claims, obligations, or
damages are determined to have been caused wholly by the Indemnified Party’s negligence or willful
misconduct in a final, unappealable ruling issued by a court or arbitrator with competent jurisdiction.
Franchisee further agrees to indemnify Franchisor from and against all employment practices liability
claims asserted by Franchisee’s employees against Franchisor, alleging liability under the “joint employer”
theory of liability.

For purposes of this indemnification, “claims” include all obligations, damages (actual,
consequential, or otherwise), and costs that any Indemnified Party reasonably incurs in defending any claim
against it, including, without limitation, reasonable accountants’, arbitrators’, attorneys’, and expert witness
fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, travel and living expenses, and other expenses of
litigation or alternative dispute resolution, whether or not litigation or alternative dispute resolution is
commenced. Each Indemnified Party may defend any claim against it at Franchisee’s expense and agree
to settlements or take any other reasonable remedial, corrective, or other actions.

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Page 36 of 42
Franchise Agreement | 20242025



This indemnity will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding this
Agreement’s expiration or termination. An Indemnified Party need not seek recovery from any insurer or
other third party, or otherwise mitigate its losses and expenses, in order to maintain and recover fully a
claim against Franchisee under this Article 20. Franchisee agrees that failure to pursue a recovery or
mitigate a loss will not reduce or alter the amounts that an Indemnified Party may recover from Franchisee
under this Article 20.

20. NON-WAIVER

No failure of Franchisor to exercise any power reserved to it hereunder, or to insist upon strict
compliance by Franchisee with any obligation or condition hereunder, and no custom or practice of the
parties in variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to demand exact
compliance with the terms hereof. Waiver by Franchisor of any particular default by Franchisee shall not
be binding unless in writing and executed by the party sought to be charged and shall not affect or impair
Franchisor’s right with respect to any subsequent default of the same or of a different nature; nor shall any
delay, waiver, forbearance, or omission of Franchisor to exercise any power or rights arising out of any
breach or default by Franchisee of any of the terms, provisions, or covenants hereof affect or impair
Franchisor’s rights nor shall such constitute a waiver by Franchisor of any right hereunder or of the right to
declare any subsequent breach or default. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any payment(s) due to
it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any preceding breach by Franchisee of
any terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement.

21. NOTICES

All written notices, reports, and payments permitted or required to be delivered by this Agreement
or the Confidential Operations Manual will be deemed delivered: (i) at the time delivered by hand; (ii) one
(1) business day after transmission by facsimile or electronic mail if the sender has confirmation of
successful transmission; (iii) one (1) business day after being placed in the hands of a nationally recognized
commercial courier service for next business day delivery; or (iv) three (3) business days after placement
in the United States Mail by Registered or Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, postage prepaid.
Notices shall be delivered to the addresses set forth on the first page of this Agreement. Either party may
change its designated address for notices by delivering to the other party written notice of the change. Any
required report that Franchisor does not actually receive during regular business hours on the date due (or
postmarked by postal authorities at least two (2) days before then for reports unrelated to payments due
under this Agreement) will be deemed delinquent.

22. COST OF ENFORCEMENT OR DEFENSE

If Franchisor or Franchisee commences a legal proceeding against the other to enforce any term or
provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party in the legal proceeding (as determined by the trier-of-fact)
will be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party the costs and expenses the prevailing party incurred
in the proceeding, including, without limitation, court costs, reasonable accounting, attorneys’, arbitrators’,
and related fees. In addition, if Franchisor incurs costs and expenses due to Franchisee’s failure to pay
when due amounts owed to Franchisor, to submit when due any reports, information, or supporting records,
or otherwise to comply with this Agreement, Franchisee agrees, even if Franchisor does not initiate a formal
legal proceeding, to reimburse Franchisor for all costs and expenses it incurs, including, without limitation,
reasonable accounting, attorneys’, and related fees.

23. APPROVALS, REPRESENTATIONS

Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or consent of Franchisor, Franchisee shall
make a timely written request to Franchisor therefor, and, except as otherwise provided herein, any approval
or consent granted shall be effective only if in writing.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT
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A Binding Agreement. This Agreement is binding upon Franchisor, and its successors and
assigns, Franchisee and its heirs, successors, and assignst.

B. Modification. Subject to Franchisor’s right to modify the Confidential Operations Manual
and System standards, this Agreement may not be modified except by a written agreement signed by the
duly-authorized officers of both parties.

C. Fully Integrated Agreement. This Agreement and its Exhibits (if any) constitute the entire,
full and complete agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the subject matter hereof.
There are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between Franchisor and Franchisee.
Nothing in this Agreement, however, will require Franchisee to waive reliance on representations made in
the franchise disclosure document that Franchisor delivered to Franchisee in connection with this offering.
Franchisor may rely on the representations Franchisee made in its franchise application materials and any
representations document or similar questionnaire Franchisee and/or its owners signed before signing this
Agreement to confirm and acknowledge their understanding of the risks of entering into this Agreement
and the absence of any improper or misleading statements made by Franchisor. Any policies Franchisor
periodically adopts and implements to guide it in decision-making are subject to change, are not a part of
this Agreement, and are not binding on Franchisor.

D. No Representations; No Reliance. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee has
conducted an independent investigation of the PANCHERQS franchise opportunity, and recognizes that
the business venture contemplated by this Agreement involves business risks and that its success will
depend primarily on Franchisee’s own efforts and market conditions outside of Franchisor’s control. Except
for the financial performance representations contained in Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document,
delivered to Franchisee in conjunction with this franchise offering, Franchisee acknowledges and represents
to Franchisor that none of Franchisor’s representatives or employees made any representations concerning
the actual or projected gross revenue or profit of a PANCHEROS Restaurant. Franchisee further
acknowledges and represents to Franchisor that, in making its decision to purchase a franchise, Franchisee
has not relied on any financial performance information provided by Franchisor’s representatives or
employees, except for information contained in Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document. Franchisor
makes no warranties or guarantees concerning the success or profitability of the Franchised Restaurant upon
which Franchisee may rely, and Franchisor assumes no liability or obligation to Franchisee or any third
party to which it would not otherwise be subject by providing any waiver, approval, advice, consent or
services to Franchisee in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial of
any request therefor.

25. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

A. Each Section, part, term and/or provision of this Agreement shall be considered severable,
and if, for any reason, any Section, part, term and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and
contrary to, or in conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation, such shall not impair the operation
of or affect the remaining portions, sections, parts, terms and/or provisions of this Agreement, and the latter
shall continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid sections, parts,
terms and/or provisions shall be deemed not part of this Agreement. Franchisee shall be bound by any
promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is contained within the terms of
any provision hereof, as though it were separately stated in and made a part of this Agreement, that may
result from striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or portions which a court may hold to be
unreasonable and unenforceable in a final decision to which Franchisor is a party, or from reducing the
scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to comply with such a court order.

B. The parties acknowledge that each party and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement and
that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting
party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits attached
hereto.
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C. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, nothing in this Agreement is intended,
nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity other than Franchisor or Franchisee and such
of their respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated by this Agreement any rights or remedies
under or by reason of this Agreement.

D. All captions herein are intended solely for the convenience of the parties, and none shall
be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof. The singular usage includes the
plural, where appropriate in the context, and the masculine and neuter usages include the other and the
feminine. References to a “controlling ownership interest” in Franchisee mean the percent of the voting
shares or other voting rights that results from dividing one hundred percent (100%) of the ownership
interests by the number of owners. In the case of a proposed transfer of an ownership interest in Franchisee,
whether a “controlling ownership interest” is involved must be made both immediately before and
immediately after the proposed transfer to see if a “controlling ownership interest” will be transferred
(because of the number of owners before the proposed transfer) or will be deemed to have been transferred
(because of the number of owners after the proposed transfer). “Person” means any nhatural person,
corporation, limited liability company, general or limited partnership, unincorporated association,
cooperative, or other legal or functional entity. Unless otherwise specified, all references to a number of
days means calendar days and not business days. The words “include” and “including” are meant to be
illustrative and not exhaustive and are deemed to be read in all cases as “including, without limitation”
and/or “including but not limited to.”

E. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate, and each copy so executed shall be
deemed an original. This Franchise Agreement may also be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one
agreement. A signed copy of this Franchise Agreement transmitted by facsimile, email or other
means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an
original executed copy of this Franchise Agreement. You agree that the electronic signatures or
digital signatures (each an “e-Signature”) of any party to this Franchise Agreement shall have the
same force and effect as manual signatures of such partyand such e-Signature shall not be denied
legal effect or enforceability solely because it is in electronic form or an electronic record was used
in its formation. You agree that an e-Signature of either party is intended to: (i) authenticate the
signature, (ii) represent the party’s intent to sign, and (iii) constitute a record established and
maintained in the ordinary course of business and an original written record when printed from
electronic files. You agree not to contest the admissibility or enforceability of either party’s e-
Signature.

F. The recitals set forth in this Agreement are specifically incorporated into the terms of this
Agreement and hereby constitute a part thereof.

26. APPLICABLE LAW; FORUM SELECTION; JURY TRIAL WAIVER; WAIVER OF
PUNITIVE DAMAGES

A. Choice of Law. This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by
Franchisor. This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which
laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15, U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq).

B. Venue; Jurisdiction. Franchisee agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party
shall be brought and maintained exclusively in a state or federal court serving the judicial district in which
Franchisor maintains its principal place of business at the time the action is initiated, and the parties hereby
waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for purposes of carrying out this provision.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor may bring an action for injunctive relief in any court having
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jurisdiction to enforce its trademark or proprietary rights, the covenants not to compete, the restriction of
disclosure of Confidential Information, and/or to enforce compliance with Franchisee’s post-termination
obligations under Article 15. The parties, including the owners of Franchisee, hereby waive all questions
of personal jurisdiction for the purpose of carrying out this provision and agree that service of process may
be made upon any of them in any proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the breach of this
Agreement, or the relationship created hereby by any means allowed by lowa or federal law.

C. Nonexclusivity of Remedy. No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor
or Franchisee by this Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or
remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right
or remedy.

D. Waiver of Jury Trial. Franchisor and Franchisee hereby agree that they shall and
hereby do waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim, whether at law or at equity,
brought by either of them, or in any matter whatsoever which arises out of or is connected in any
way with this Agreement or its performance.

E. Waiver of Punitive Damages. The parties hereby waive to the fullest extent permitted by
law any right to or claim for punitive or exemplary damages against the other, and agree that, in the event
of a dispute between them, they each shall be limited to the recovery of compensatory damages.

F. Contractual Limitations Period. No legal action or proceeding may be brought against
Franchisor or its officers, directors, agents, or employees, for any claim or cause of action (whether
sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise) unless such action or proceeding is instituted within two (2) years
and one day from the date the claim or cause of action accrued. This provision is intended to shorten any
applicable statute of limitations to the extent permitted by law.

217. FORCE MAJEURE

Whenever a period of time is provided in this Agreement for either party to do or perform any act
or thing, except the payment of monies, neither party shall be liable or responsible for any delays due to
strikes, lockouts, casualties, acts of God, war, governmental regulation or control or other causes beyond
the reasonable control of the parties, and in any event said time period for the performance of an obligation
hereunder shall be extended for the amount of time of the delay. This clause shall not apply or not result
in an extension of the term of this Agreement.

28. “FRANCHISEE” DEFINED; GUARANTY

As used in this Agreement, the term “Franchisee” shall include all persons who succeed to the
interest of the original Franchisee by permitted transfer or operation of law and shall be deemed to include
not only the individual or entity defined as “Franchisee” in the introductory Section of this Agreement, but
shall also include all partners (general and limited) of a partnership franchisee, and all owners and governing
persons of a corporation or limited liability company franchisee, and both the trustee and beneficiaries of
any franchisee that is a trust. By their signatures hereto, all such partners, owners, governing persons,
trustees and beneficiaries (each an “Owner” for purposes of this Agreement) acknowledge and accept the
duties and obligations imposed upon each “Owner” under this Agreement, and each Owner shall execute
the Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations (“Guaranty”) attached as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.
If any Owner is, itself, a corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, each of the entity’s
owners and governing persons will be considered an “Owner” for purposes of this Agreement; it being the
parties’ intent that each individual who controls or holds a beneficial ownership in the Franchisee, directly
or indirectly, will execute Exhibit B and be personally bound by the provisions applying to “Owners.”

29. CAVEAT
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A. No Warranty. The success of the business venture contemplated to be undertaken by
Franchisee by virtue of this Agreement is speculative and depends, to a large extent, upon the ability of
Franchisee as an independent businessperson and its active participation in the daily affairs of the business
as well as other factors. Franchisor does not make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as
to the potential success of the business venture contemplated hereby.

B. Business Judgment. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions contained in this Agreement,
Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge and agree that (1) this Agreement (and the relationship of the
parties which arises from this Agreement) grants Franchisor the discretion to make decisions, take actions
and/or refrain from taking actions not inconsistent with Franchisee’s explicit rights and obligations
hereunder that may affect favorably or adversely Franchisee’s interests; (2) Franchisor will use its business
judgment in exercising such discretion based on Franchisor’s assessment of Franchisor’s own interests and
balancing those interests against the interests, promotion and benefit of the System and Franchised
Restaurants generally (including Franchisor, and its Affiliates and other Franchisees), and specifically
without considering Franchisee’s individual interests or the individual interests of any other particular
Franchisee (examples of items that will promote or benefit the System and Franchised Restaurants generally
include, without limitation, enhancing the value of the Marks and/or the PANCHERQOS brand, improving
customer service and satisfaction, improving project quality, improving uniformity, enhancing or
encouraging modernization, and improving the competitive position of the System); (3) Franchisor will
have no liability to Franchisee for the exercise of its discretion in this manner and (4) even if Franchisor
has numerous motives for a particular action or decision, so long as at least one motive is a reasonable
business justification no trier of fact in any legal action shall substitute its judgment for Franchisor’s
judgment so exercised and such action or decision will not be subject to challenge for abuse of discretion.
IF FRANCHISOR TAKES ANY ACTION OR CHOOSES NOT TO TAKE ANY ACTION IN ITS
DISCRETION WITH REGARD TO ANY MATTER RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ITS
ACTION OR INACTION IS CHALLENGED FOR ANY REASON, THE PARTIES EXPRESSLY
DIRECT THE TRIER OF FACT THAT FRANCHISOR’S RELIANCE ON A BUSINESS REASON IN
THE EXERCISE OF ITS DISCRETION IS TO BE VIEWED AS A REASONABLE AND PROPER
EXERCISE OF ITS DISCRETION, WITHOUT REGARD TO WHETHER OTHER REASONS FOR
OUR DECISION MAY EXIST AND WITHOUT REGARD TO WHETHER THE TRIER OF FACT
WOULD INDEPENDENTLY ACCORD THE SAME WEIGHT TO THE BUSINESS REASON.

30. REPRESENTATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

A Franchisee represents and acknowledges that it has received, read and understood this
Agreement and Franchisor’s franchise disclosure document; and that Franchisor has fully and adequately
explained the provisions of each to Franchisee’s satisfaction; and that Franchisor has accorded Franchisee
ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of its own choosing about the potential benefits and
risks of entering into this Agreement.

B. Franchisee has been advised to consult with its own advisors with respect to legal, financial
and other aspects of this Agreement, the business franchised hereby and the prospects for that business.
Franchisee has either consulted with such advisors or has deliberately declined to do so.

C. The covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement are fair, reasonable and shall not
impose any undue hardship on Franchisee, since Franchisee has other considerable skills, experience and
education which afford Franchisee the opportunity to derive income from other endeavors.

D. Franchisee affirms that all information set forth in any and all applications, financial
statements and submissions to Franchisor is true, complete and accurate in all respects, with Franchisee
expressly acknowledging that Franchisor is relying upon the truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of
such information.
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E. Franchisee has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by
this Agreement and recognizes that, like any other business, an investment in a PANCHEROS Franchised
Restaurant involves business risks and that the success of the venture is primarily dependent upon the
business abilities and efforts of Franchisee.

F. Except for representations contained in the franchise disclosure document delivered to
Franchisee in connection with Franchisee’s purchase of this franchise, Franchisee represents that, before
the Effective Date of this Agreement, neither Franchisor nor any person purporting to speak on Franchisor’s
behalf has made any representations to Franchisee concerning the historical sales or profits of any
PANCHEROS restaurant, nor has made any promises or assumptions concerning the projected sales or
profits of Franchisee’s Franchised Restaurant. Franchisee further represents to Franchisor that Franchisee
has not relied on any representations of this type, made by Franchisor or anyone purporting to speak on
Franchisor’s behalf, in making its decision to purchase the franchise.

G. Franchisee acknowledges that it has read this Agreement and Franchisor’s franchise
disclosure document and that it has no knowledge of any representations by Franchisor, or its officers,
directors, shareholders, employees or agents that are contrary to the statements made in Franchisor’s
franchise disclosure document or to the terms herein.

H. If Franchisee and/or the Franchised Restaurant is located in California, Hawaii, lllinois,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin, then: no statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or
agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the
effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person
acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly executed,
sealed and delivered this Agreement in duplicate the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS:
FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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EXHIBIT ATO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
SITE SELECTION AREA, PREMISES, DESIGNATED AREA

If Franchisee Has Not Yet Identified A Premises

Section 3.B.  The Site Selection Area is:
Map Enclosed: O Yes O No

Section 3.B. The Control Date is:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Exhibit A on this ___ day of
20 .

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Page 2 of 2 Exhibit A

Franchise Agreement | 20242025



When Franchisee Has Identified A Premises

As of the date set forth below, the Franchise Restaurant’s Premises has been determined and, as such,
Exhibit A is completed and/or supplemented as follows:

Section 1.A.  The Premises is at:

Section 3.G.  The Target Opening Date is:

Section 1.B.  The Designated Area is:
Map Enclosed: O Yes O No

but excludes all Closed Markets within such area. A “Closed Market” is any facility serving a captive
market, including department stores, supermarkets, shopping malls, amusement parks, airports, train
stations, travel plazas, casinos, nightclubs, restaurants, public facilities, college and school campuses,
arenas, stadiums, ballparks, hospitals, office buildings, convention centers, airlines (in-flight service),
military bases, and any other mass gathering events or locations, and facilities of any kind for which food
and/or beverage service rights are contracted to a third party or parties (including, but not limited to,
designated road ways and facilities adjacent thereto), whether inside or outside of the Designated Area. As
used herein, the term “shopping malls” includes any retail center (enclosed or open), including “outlet
malls,” with an aggregate gross leasable area in excess of 500,000 square feet.

If the Designated Area is defined by streets, highways, freeways or other roadways, or rivers, streams, or
tributaries, then the boundary of the Designated Area shall extend to the center line of each such street,
highway, freeway or other roadway, or river, stream, or tributary.

Section 3.B.  Franchisor’s required Modifications to Premises:

List of Modifications Enclosed: [ Yes O No

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have completed and/or supplemented this Exhibit A on this
day of , 20

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT B TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS

THIS GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS (“Guaranty™) is given this day of
,20__, by

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of that certain Franchise Agreement of
even date herewith (the “Agreement”) by PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION (“Franchisor”),
each of the undersigned hereby personally and unconditionally (1) guarantees to Franchisor, and its
successors and assigns, for the term of the Agreement (including extensions) and thereafter as provided in
the Agreement, that (“Franchisee”) shall punctually pay and perform each
and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the Agreement (including any amendments or
modifications of the Agreement); and (2) shall be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach
of each and every provision in the Agreement (including any amendments or modifications of the
Agreement), both monetary obligations and obligations to take or refrain from taking specific actions or to
engage or refrain from engaging in specific activities including, without limitation, the non-competition,
confidentiality, and transfer requirements.

Each of the undersigned waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the
foregoing undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or non-performance of any
obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness
or non-performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he may have to require that an
action be brought against Franchisee or any other person as a condition of liability; (5) all rights to payments
and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which any of the undersigned may have against Franchisee
arising as a result of the undersigned’s execution of and performance under this Guaranty; and (6) any and
all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which he may be entitled.

Each of the undersigned consents and agrees that: (1) his direct and immediate liability under this
guaranty shall be joint and several, both with Franchisee and among other guarantors; (2) he shall render
any payment or performance required under the Agreement upon demand if Franchisee fails or refuses
punctually to do so; (3) such liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor of
any remedies against Franchisee or any other person; and (4) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved
or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may from time
to time grant to Franchisee or to any other person, including without limitation the acceptance of any partial
payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims (including the release of other
guarantors), none of which shall in any way modify or amend this guaranty, which shall be continuing and
irrevocable during the term of the Agreement (including extensions), for so long as any performance is or
might be owed under the Agreement by Franchisee or its owners, and for so long as Franchisor has any
cause of action against Franchisee or its owners; and (5) this guaranty will continue in full force and effect
for (and as to) any extension or modification of the Agreement and despite the transfer of any interest in
the Agreement or Franchisee, and each of the undersigned waives notice of any and all renewals, extensions,
modifications, amendments, or transfers.

This Guaranty may be executed in duplicate, and each copy so executed shall be deemed an original. This
Guaranty may also be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original,
but all of which together shall constitute one agreement. A signed copy of this Guaranty transmitted by
facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as
delivery of an original executed copy of this Guaranty. You agree that the electronic signatures or digital
signatures (each an “e-Signature”) of any party to this Guaranty shall have the same force and effect as
manual signatures of such partyand such e-Signature shall not be denied legal effect or enforceability solely
because it is in electronic form or an electronic record was used in its formation. You agree that an e-
Signature of either party is intended to: (i) authenticate the signature, (ii) represent the party’s intent to sign,
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and (iii) constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business and an original
written record when printed from electronic files. You agree not to contest the admissibility or
enforceability of either party’s e-Signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed his signature on the same day
and year as the Agreement was executed.

GUARANTOR(S) PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP IN
FRANCHISEE

%
Printed Name:

%
Printed Name:

%
Printed Name:

%
Printed Name:
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EXHIBIT C TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

RENEWAL ADDENDUM
THIS RENEWAL ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is entered into on this day of
, 20 (“Effective Date”) by and between Panchero’s Franchise Corporation, an
Illinois corporation (“Franchisor”) and having an address of
(“Franchisee”) (collectively, the “Parties”).
BACKGROUND
A. On or about , the Parties entered into a franchise agreement

(“Original Franchise Agreement”) pursuant to which Franchisor granted Franchisee the license, right,
and obligation to establish and operate a PANCHEROS Restaurant using the Marks and the System (the
“Franchised Restaurant”).

B. Franchisee now desires to renew its right to operate the Franchised Restaurant. Therefore,
contemporaneously with the execution of this Addendum, Franchisor and Franchisee are entering into a
renewal franchise agreement (“Renewal Franchise Agreement”) pursuant to which Franchisor is granting
Franchisee a renewal license to continue the operation of the Franchised Restaurant.

C. The Parties have agreed to alter the terms stated in the Renewal Franchise Agreement, as provided
herein to reflect the Parties’ intentions and the terms of renewal.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, that for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Franchisee’s Representations. Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to Franchisor that all
necessary actions for the execution of the Renewal Franchise Agreement and this Renewal Addendum have
been taken.

2. Term. Section 2.A. of the Renewal Franchise Agreement is replaced in its entirety with the
following:
“Term. Unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement begins on the Effective Date and expires years after the Effective Date.”
3. Renewal Term. The first sentence of Section 2.B. of the Renewal Franchise Agreement is replaced
with the following sentence:
“Renewal Term. Franchisee may renew its franchise right for additional
successive terms of years if, at the end of the term, each of the following

conditions has been satisfied:”

4. Restaurant Location. The Parties acknowledge that, as the Franchised Restaurant is currently open
and operating at the Premises identified in Exhibit A, Sections 3.B. through 3.G. of the Renewal Franchise
Agreement are not currently applicable to the Premises. However, Sections 3.B. through 3.G. remain in
full force and effect in the event of any renewal of the Premises lease (Section 3.D), the Franchise
Restaurant’s relocation (Section 3.1), or as otherwise provided for in the Renewal Franchise Agreement.

5. Operational Expenditures and Capital Expenses. Section 3.H of the Renewal Franchise Agreement,
is replaced in its entirety with the following:

“Operational Expenditures and Capital Expenses. Franchisor periodically may
modify standards, specifications, and operating procedures, and these modifications may
obligate Franchisee to invest additional capital in the Franchised Restaurant and/or incur
higher operating costs. Franchisee agrees to implement any changes in standards,
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specifications, and operating procedures within the reasonable time period Franchisor
requests, whether they involve maintenance, repairs, refurbishing or remodeling the
Franchised Restaurant, buying new operating assets, adding new products or services, or
otherwise modifying the image of the Franchised Restaurant or the nature of the Franchised
Restaurant’s operations, as if they were part of this Agreement as of the day it was signed.
There are no limits on the upgrades and modifications that Franchisor may require
Franchisee to make during the term of this Agreement.”

6. Initial Franchise Fee. Section 4.A.of the Renewal Franchise Agreement is amended to provide that
no initial franchise fee shall be due.

7. Grand Opening. Section 9.A. of the Renewal Franchise Agreement is deleted in its entirety.

8. Ratification; Conflicting Terms. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Renewal

Franchise Agreement, in the event of a conflict between the provisions of the Renewal Franchise Agreement
and the provisions of this Addendum, the provisions of this Addendum will control. The Parties agree that
the Renewal Franchise Agreement remains fully effective in all respects except as specifically modified
herein, and all the respective rights and obligations of Franchisee and Franchisor remain as written unless
modified specifically herein.

9. This Addendum may be executed in duplicate, and each copy so executed shall be deemed an
original. This Addendum may also be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one agreement. A signed copy of this Addendum
transmitted by facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same
legal effect as delivery of an original executed copy of this Addendum. You agree that the electronic
signatures or digital signatures (each an “e-Signature”) of any party to this Addendum shall have the same
force and effect as manual signatures of such partyand such e-Signature shall not be denied legal effect or
enforceability solely because it is in electronic form or an electronic record was used in its formation. You
agree that an e-Signature of either party is intended to: (i) authenticate the signature, (ii) represent the party’s
intent to sign, and (iii) constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business and
an original written record when printed from electronic files. You agree not to contest the admissibility or
enforceability of either party’s e-Signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have executed this
Agreement to be effective as of the Effective Date written above.

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION FRANCHISEE

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT D TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LIABILITY WAIVER BY FRANCHISEE

I am an/the owner of (“Franchisee Company”). Franchisee
Company has signed a franchise agreement with Panchero’s Franchise Corporation. In consideration for
the training to be provided to my employees and/or me by Panchero’s Franchise Corporation and/or its
affiliates (collectively, “Pancheros”), | agree, both for myself and on behalf of Franchisee Company, to
hold Panchero’s harmless from, and | hereby waive any and all liability of Pancheros and its officers,
directors, agents, employees, insurers, and franchisees for any injury, claim, damage, or incident which
occurs in the course of training at any PANCHEROS Restaurant or other designated training facility(s),
whether or not such facility is owned or controlled by Pancheros, specifically including personal injury,
property damage, and employment-related claims, and even if caused in whole or in part by the negligence
of Pancheros or any Pancheros employee.

| understand that:

. Pancheros has invited my employees and me onto its premises for training solely by virtue
of Franchisee Company’s franchise relationship with Pancheros;

° Training may involve a variety of risks, including the risk of physical and/or emotional
injury and property damage; and

° Pancheros assumes no liability to me, Franchisee Company, or employees of Franchisee
Company for any harm or claims of harm incurred or allegedly while in training and/or on Pancheros’
premises.

I acknowledge that my employees must look solely to Franchisee Company and its benefits programs and
workers compensation insurance to cover the costs of any treatment for injuries or other losses or damages
that my employees may sustain in training. Neither | nor Franchisee Company will attempt to hold
Pancheros liable or financially responsible for any such losses or damages. | acknowledge that the
indemnification clause of Franchisee Company’s franchise agreement with Pancheros will apply to any
claim against Pancheros by any of Franchisee Company’s (or its affiliates’) employees.

I certify that Franchisee Company has and will maintain minimum insurance coverage as required by the
franchise agreement, including worker’s compensation and employees’ liability per statutory requirements.
At Pancheros’ request, I agree to provide a certificate of insurance completed by Franchisee Company’s
insurance carrier, certifying that the required minimum insurance coverage is in effect.

I give my consent for Pancheros to arrange for medical treatment for any illness or injury that | or my
employees might suffer while participating in the training program.

FRANCHISEE COMPANY::

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
, Individually
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EXHIBIT E TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LEASE RIDER
THIS LEASE RIDER (“Lease Rider”) is entered into this day of , 20,
by and between Panchero’s Franchise Corporation (“Company”), (“Franchisee”),
and (“Landlord”).

WHEREAS, Company and Franchisee are parties to a Franchise Agreement, which is dated
, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”), for the operation of a PANCHEROS Restaurant
(the “Restaurant™); and

WHEREAS, Franchisee and Landlord propose to enter into the lease to which this Rider is attached (the
“Lease™), pursuant  to  which Franchisee  will occupy  premises located  at
(the “Premises”) for the purpose of constructing and operating
the Restaurant in accordance with the Franchise Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Company has the right under the Franchise Agreement to require Franchisee to agree to the
terms contained in this Lease Rider, and Landlord is willing to agree to the terms contained in this Lease
Rider so that Company allows Franchisee to enter into the Lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Company’s willingness to allow Franchisee to enter the Lease
with Landlord, and in consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments set forth in this Rider and
in the Franchise Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which the parties acknowledge, the parties
agree as follows:

1. During the term of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee shall be permitted to use the Premises for
the operation of the Restaurant and for no other purpose.

2. Landlord consents to Franchisee’s installation and use of such trademarks, service marks, signs,
decor items, color schemes, and related components of the PANCHEROS system as Company may from
time to time prescribe for the Restaurant.

3. Landlord agrees to furnish Company with copies of all letters and notices it sends to Franchisee
pertaining to the Lease and the Premises at the same time it sends such letters and notices to Franchisee.
All notices to Company shall be sent to 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241, Attention:
President, or to such other address of which Company notifies Landlord in writing from time to time. In
case of a Notice of Default or a Default notice (pass any cure period), Landlord agrees to also provide
Company electronic notice via e-mail to Nanette Beiner, Director of Real Estate, at
nanetteb@pancheros.com m.

4. Company shall have the right, without being guilty of trespass or any other crime or tort, but has
no obligation, to enter the Premises at any time and from time to time (i) to make any modification or
alteration it considers necessary to protect the PANCHEROS system and marks, (ii) to cure any default
under the Franchise Agreement or the Lease, or (iii) to remove the distinctive elements of the PANCHEROS
trade dress upon the Franchise Agreement’s expiration or termination. Neither Company nor Landlord shall
be responsible to Franchisee for any damages Franchisee might sustain as a result of any action Company
takes in accordance with this provision. Company shall repair or reimburse Landlord for the cost of any
damage to the Premises’ walls, floor, or ceiling that result from Company’s removal of trade dress items
and other property from the Premises.

5. Landlord and Franchisee hereby agree that, upon Company’s request and at Company’s direction
following the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee shall assign the Lease to
Company or its Designee (the “Permitted Transferee”) and Landlord hereby consents to such an
assignment and agrees not to impose any assignment fee or similar charge, or to increase or accelerate rent
under the Lease, in connection with such an assignment. The original Franchisee shall continue to guarantee
the Lease. Landlord and Franchisee also agree that, following the expiration or termination of the Franchise
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Agreement but before Company requests an assignment of the Lease as referenced above, Company or its
Designee may, upon Company’s notice to Landlord and Franchisee, assume possession of the Premises for
up to ninety (90) days, the specific amount of time to be determined by Company, during which Company
or its Designee may operate the Restaurant to assess whether to request the Lease assignment referenced
above. Company or its Designee shall comply with all Lease obligations that arise during its possession of
the Premises but shall have no obligation to pay any delinquent rent or to cure any other default under the
Lease that occurred or existed prior to the date of the assumption of possession. For purposes of this Lease
Assignment, an “Affiliate of Company” is any entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control
with Company. “Control” means the power to direct the management and policies of the entity in question,
whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise and includes any entity that
operates a PANCHEROS Restaurant under a management agreement with the Company. “Franchisee of
Company” is any entity operating a PANCHEROS restaurant under a valid franchise agreement with
Company. “Designee” is an Affiliate of Company or another Franchisee of Company.

6. In the event Franchisee assigns the Lease to Company or its Designee in accordance with the
preceding paragraph, the assignee must assume all obligations of Franchisee under the Lease from and after
the date of assignment and Company or the Permitted Transferee shall comply with all Lease obligations
(including without limitation the payment of all Rent incurred for the time of possession) that arise during
the Review Period but shall have no obligation to pay any delinquent rent or to cure any other default under
the Lease that occurred or existed prior to the date of the assumption of possession.

7. Franchisee may not assign the Lease or sublet the Premises (other than in accordance with
paragraph 5) without Company’s prior written consent, and Landlord will not consent to an assignment or
subletting by Franchisee (other than in accordance with paragraph 5 and in accordance with the specific
terms of the Lease) without first verifying that Company has given its written consent to Franchisee’s
proposed assignment or subletting.

8. Landlord and Franchisee will not amend or modify the Lease in any manner that could materially
affect any of the provisions or requirements of this Lease Rider without Company’s prior written consent.

9. Franchisee agrees that any default under the Lease will constitute a default under the Franchise
Agreement. Franchisee and Landlord agree that any default under the Franchise Agreement will constitute
a default under the Lease.

10. Franchisee agrees that Landlord shall give Company all sales and other information that Company
requests regarding Franchisee’s operation of the Restaurant (to the extent the Landlord is in actual
possession of such items).

11. The provisions of this Lease Rider will supersede and control any conflicting provisions of the
Lease.
12. Landlord acknowledges that Company (or its Designee) is not a party to the Lease and shall have

no liability or responsibility under the Lease unless and until the Lease is assigned to, and assumed by,
Company (or its Designee) as provided in paragraph 6 or Company (or its Designee) temporarily assumes
possession of the Premises as provided in paragraph 5.

13. This Lease Rider may be executed in duplicate, and each copy so executed shall be deemed an
original. This Lease Rider may also be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one agreement. A signed copy of this Lease Rider
transmitted by facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same
legal effect as delivery of an original executed copy of this Lease Rider. You agree that the electronic
signatures or digital signatures (each an “e-Signature”) of any party to this Lease Rider shall have the same
force and effect as manual signatures of such partyand such e-Signature shall not be denied legal effect or
enforceability solely because it is in electronic form or an electronic record was used in its formation. You
agree that an e-Signature of either party is intended to: (i) authenticate the signature, (ii) represent the party’s
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intent to sign, and (iii) constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business and
an original written record when printed from electronic files. You agree not to contest the admissibility or
enforceability of either party’s e-Signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Rider as of the date first above written.

COMPANY:

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION,
an lllinois corporation

By:
Name:
Title:

LANDLORD:

By:
Name:
Title:

FRANCHISEE:

By:
Name:
Title:
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PANCHERO'S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) made this __ day of
, 20 by and between PANCHEROQO'S FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an
Illinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa
52241 (“Franchisor”), and , a(n)

(“Developer”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and its Affiliate (“Affiliate”), over a period of time and as the result of the
expenditure of time, expertise, effort and money, have developed and own a unique System (“System”),
identified by the Mark “PANCHEROS”, relating to the establishment, development and operation of
businesses for (i) the operation of a restaurant facility providing carry-out and on-premises dining services,
featuring burritos, quesadillas, tacos, salads, rice, salsa, and other food and beverage products, all prepared
in accordance with specified recipes and procedures (“Menu Items™); (ii) may develop and continue to
further develop a proprietary line of specially formulated spice packs, salsas, marinades and other food
products (“Trade Secret Food Products™); (iii) have developed certain presentation, packaging and
marketing standards and techniques for all Menu Items and Trade Secret Food Products; and (iv) have
developed consumer acceptance for all Menu Items and Trade Secret Food Products (“Franchised
Restaurant™); and

WHEREAS, the distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without limitation, distinctive
exterior and interior layout, design and color scheme; exclusively designed signage, decorations,
furnishings and materials; display cooking; special recipes, formulae, menus and food and beverage
designations; the PANCHEROS Confidential Operations Manual (“Confidential Operations Manual®);
food and beverage storage, preparation and service procedures and techniques; operating procedures for
sanitation and maintenance; and methods and techniques for inventory and cost controls, record-keeping
and reporting, purchasing, sales promotion and advertising; all of which may be changed, improved and
further developed by Franchisor from time to time; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor's Affiliate, LDIP, has certain rights together with all the goodwill connected
thereto in and to the trade names, service marks and trademarks “PANCHEROS”, “PANCHEROS, plus
the design”, associated logos and commercial symbols, and such other trade names, service marks and
trademarks as are now designated (and may hereinafter be designated by Franchisor in writing) as part of
the System (“Mark(s)”) and has licensed the rights in the Marks to Franchisor with the right to sublicense
to Franchisor's franchisees. Franchisor will continue to develop, use and control such Marks for the benefit
and use of itself and its franchisees in order to identify for the public the source of food products and
services marketed thereunder and to represent the System's high standards of quality regarding Menu ltems,
operations, food products, ingredients, appearance and service; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor grants to qualified persons franchises to own and operate PANCHEROS
Restaurants offering food products and services authorized and approved by Franchisor and utilizing the
System and Marks; and

WHEREAS, Developer understands and acknowledges the importance of Franchisor's high and uniform
standards of quality, operations and customer service and the necessity of operating the PANCHERQOS
Franchised Restaurant in conformity with Franchisor's standards and specifications; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of and Developer acknowledges that it has not
received nor relied upon any warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to the revenues, profits or success
of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement. Developer acknowledges that it has read this
Agreement and Franchisor's franchise disclosure document and that it has no knowledge of any
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representations by Franchisor, or its officers, directors, shareholders, employees or agents that are contrary
to the statements made in Franchisor's franchise disclosure document or to the terms herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the undertakings and commitments of each party to
the other set forth in this Agreement, hereby agree as follows:

1. GRANT
(a) Franchisor hereby grants to Developer, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, options to obtain licenses to establish and operate (1)) PANCHEROS Restaurants

featuring the Menu Items and offering carry-out and on-premises dining within the territory described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Designated Territory™).

(b) Developer shall be bound by the Development Schedule (“Development Schedule”) set
forth in Exhibit B. Time is of the essence to this Agreement. Each Franchised Restaurant shall be
established and operated pursuant to a separate Franchise Agreement to be entered into by Developer and
Franchisor. Each Franchise Agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) shall be in Franchisor's then-current
form of the Franchise Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the establishment and operation of each
respective restaurant for which Developer executes a Franchise Agreement shall be controlled by the terms
of each respective Franchise Agreement..

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement and except for sales in “Closed Markets”
(which are carved out from territorial protection as described in Exhibit A), Franchisor shall not establish,
nor license anyone other than Developer the right to establish any business in the Designated Territory prior
to the expiration of the development schedule set forth in Exhibit B. There are no other restrictions on
Franchisor’s right to use and to license the use of the Marks. Franchisor may own and operate and grant
others the right to own and operate PANCHEROS restaurants, and may sell and license others the right to
sell products offered at the Franchised Restaurant and other products identified by the Marks anywhere
outside the Designated Territory, regardless of proximity to or economic effect on the Designated Territory
and any Restaurant therein. Franchisor may also own and operate, and grant others the right to own and
operate, PANCHEROS restaurants, and may sell and license others the right to sell items and products
identified by the Marks in “Closed Markets” within the Designated Territory. Franchisor may also
distribute products and services identified by the Marks, such as pre-packaged menu items, through
alternative channels of distribution including grocery stores, supermarkets, convenience stores, and via mail
order, catalog sales and/or the Internet.

(d) This Agreement is not a Franchise Agreement, and Developer shall have no right to use in
any manner the Marks by virtue hereof.

(e) Developer shall have no right under this Agreement to license others to operate a business or
use the System or the Marks.

2. DEVELOPMENT AND INITIAL FRANCHISE FEES

(@) Development Fee. Upon execution of this Agreement, which shall be executed
simultaneously with a franchise agreement for the first PANCHEROS® Restaurant Developer will develop
under this Agreement (the “First Franchise Agreement”), Developer shall pay, in addition to any initial
franchise fees paid to Franchisor pursuant to the First Franchise Agreement, a development fee which shall
be equal to TEN THOUSAND Dollars ($10,000.00) for each PANCHEROS® Restaurant (excluding the
first) which Developer is granted the option to develop under this Agreement (“Development Fee”). The
Development Fee due at the time of execution of this Agreement is
Dollars ($ ). The Development Fee, which is to be paid at the time of execution of
this Agreement, is consideration for this Agreement and not consideration for any Franchise Agreement.
The Development Fee is fully earned by Franchisor upon execution of this Agreement and is non-
refundable, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in any Franchise Agreement.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, and as further set forth in Section 2(b)(2), Franchisor shall, upon execution
of the second and each subsequent franchise agreement, apply a TEN THOUSAND Dollar credit (the
“Development Fee Credit”) towards Franchisee’s payment of each respective initial franchise fee.

(b) Initial Franchise Fees. As consideration for the rights and options granted pursuant to
each individual franchise agreement that Developer enters into in connection with this Development
Agreement, Developer shall pay to Franchisor an initial franchise fee as further explained below.

Q) For the First Restaurant Developed. Developer shall pay, in accordance with the terms
of the First Franchise Agreement, an Initial Franchise Fee of TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND Dollars
($25,000) simultaneously with the payment of the Development Fee set forth above in Section 2(A).

(i) For the Second and Each Subsequent Restaurant Developed. Developer shall submit
a separate application for each restaurant to be established within the Designated Territory by Developer.
Upon approval of the site of the restaurant by Franchisor, which will be granted at Franchisor’s sole
discretion, a separate Franchise Agreement shall be executed for each such restaurant. Upon signing the
second and each subsequent Franchise Agreement, Developer shall pay to Franchisor, in accordance with
the terms of the Franchise Agreement, an Initial Franchise Fee of TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND Dollars
($25,000.00) less the Development Fee Credit of TEN THOUSAND Dollars ($10,000), which will result
in a required payment of FIFTEEN THOUSAND Dollars ($15,000) to Franchisor.

3. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE AND MANNER OF EXERCISING OPTIONS

@ Developer shall be bound by and strictly follow the Development Schedule set forth in
Exhibit B. Time is of the essence. By the dates set forth under the Development Schedule (“Option
Period(s)”), Developer shall exercise options by entering into Franchise Agreements with Franchisor
pursuant to this Agreement for the number of Franchised Restaurants described under the Development
Schedule.

(b) Developer shall at all times after the expiration of each of the Option Periods continuously
maintain in operation pursuant to each Franchise Agreement at least the number of Franchised Restaurants
set forth on the Development Schedule, provided however that such obligation does not apply to businesses
that are transferred in accordance with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement, or are closed due to force
majeure.

(© Developer, at its option, may obtain a 90-day extension to any Option Period, by delivering
to Franchisor written notice of the desired extension with payment of a $3,000 extension fee. Upon delivery
of notice and full payment, the current Option Period will be extended for 90 days, and the Development
Schedule shall be adjusted appropriately. No more than two extensions may be obtained during the term
of this Agreement.

(d) Developer shall exercise each option granted herein only as follows:

Q) By giving Franchisor written notice of Developer's intention to exercise such
option at least thirty (30) days before the execution of the Franchise Agreement for the applicable business;
and

(i) By executing the then-current form of the Franchise Agreement for the applicable
business and complying with its terms including, without limitation, the payment of the unpaid balance of
the applicable franchise fee.

(e)  Franchisor shall execute the Franchise Agreement only if (i) Developer is in compliance with
all requirements and obligations of this Agreement and all other agreements between Franchisor and
Developer, and (ii) Developer is in compliance with all of its respective obligations under any Franchise
Agreement. In order to meet the Development Schedule, the Franchise Agreement must be executed by
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Developer and Franchisor within the applicable Option Period. Developer must comply with all of the
terms and conditions of each Franchise Agreement.

(f)  Developer acknowledges and agrees that it has conducted an independent investigation of
the business contemplated under this Agreement, that Developer fully understands its obligations under this
Agreement, and that Developer recognizes and assumes all associated risks. In addition, Developer
acknowledges that Franchisor makes no representation: (i) that the Development Area contains a sufficient
number of acceptable locations to meet the number of Restaurants to be developed under the Development
Schedule; nor (ii) that the Development Area is sufficient to economically support the number of
Restaurants to be developed under the Development Schedule. Developer further acknowledges that it has
performed all related and necessary due diligence before its execution of this Agreement and that,
accordingly, Developer assumes the risk of identifying a sufficient number of acceptable locations within
the Territory and the economic risk of developing the number of Restaurants set forth in the Development
Schedule.

4. TERM

Unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement and all rights granted hereunder to Developer shall expire on the earlier of: (1) the date of
Franchisor's acceptance and execution of a Franchise Agreement for the last of the PANCHEROS
Restaurants to be established pursuant to the Development Schedule; or (2) the date set forth in the
Development Schedule by which you must execute the final Franchise Agreement.

5. DUTIES OF THE DEVELOPER
(@) Developer shall perform the following obligations:
(i)  Developer shall comply with all terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

(i)  Developer shall comply with all of the terms and conditions of each Franchise
Agreement including, without limitation, the operating requirements specified in each Franchise
Agreement. However, Developer will not be required to attend an initial franchisee training course
conducted at a Franchisor designated location in connection with the second or any subsequent Franchised
Restaurant.

(iii) Developer shall at all times preserve in confidence any and all materials and
information furnished or disclosed to Developer by Franchisor, and Developer shall disclose such
information or materials only to such of its employees or agents who must have access to it in connection
with their employment. All such employees or agents of Developer who must have access to such
information or materials shall be required to execute nondisclosure agreements in the form acceptable to
Franchisor. Developer shall not at any time, without Franchisor's prior written consent, copy, duplicate,
record or otherwise reproduce such materials or information, in whole or in part, nor otherwise make the
same available to any unauthorized person.

(iv) Developer shall comply with all requirements of federal, state and local laws, rules and
regulations.

(v) Developer shall return to Franchisor all manuals and other confidential information
more fully described in Article 6 of this Agreement that it receives from Franchisor in the course of
operating the PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant when Developer leaves the PANCHEROS System.

(b)  Should Developer at some time in the future desire to make either a public or a private
offering of its securities, prior to such offering and sale, and prior to the public release of any statements,
data or other information of any kind relating to the proposed offering of Developer's securities, Developer
shall secure the written approval of Franchisor, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Developer shall secure Franchisor's prior written approval of any and all press releases, news releases and
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any and all other publicity, the primary purpose of which is in the public interest in its offering. Only to
the extent that written approval has been given by Franchisor may Developer proceed to file, publish, issue
and release and make public any data, material or information regarding its securities offering or the
Franchised Restaurants. It is specifically understood that any review by Franchisor is solely for its own
information, and its approval shall not constitute any kind of authorization, acceptance, agreement,
endorsement, approval or ratification of the same, either express or implied; and Developer shall make no
oral or written notice of any kind whatsoever indicating or implying that Franchisor and/or related
corporations or persons have any interest in or relationship whatsoever to the proposed offering other than
acting as Franchisor. Developer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor and its subsidiaries, and
their owners, directors, officers, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns, from all claims, demands,
costs, fees, charges, liabilities or expenses (including attorneys' fees) of any kind whatsoever arising from
Developer's offering or information published or communicated and any actions taken with regard thereto.

(c) Developer shall attend, within eight (8) weeks after signing this Agreement, a two (2) day
(excluding travel time) initial orientation session at Franchisor’s corporate office or at another location
Franchisor then designates. All expenses incurred by Developer in attending this session shall be the sole
responsibility of Developer.

6. PROPRIETARY MARKS/CONFIDENTIALITY

(@) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary under this Agreement, it is understood and
agreed that this Agreement does not grant the Developer any right to use the Marks or to use any of
Franchisor's trade secret and/or confidential information, as defined below. Further, it is understood and
agreed that this Agreement does not grant the Developer and Developer does not have any right to any
copyright or patent which the Franchisor now owns or may hereinafter own. Rights to the Marks, trade
secrets (and/or confidential information), copyrights or patents are granted only under the Franchise
Agreements to be executed by Franchisor and Developer.

(b) Developer and its owners, officers and directors, if any, acknowledge that their entire
knowledge of the operation of the Franchised Restaurant, including the knowledge or know-how regarding
the preparation of Menu Items, Trade Secret Food Products and other food products, and other
specifications, product formulae, standards and operating procedures of a PANCHEROS Restaurant, is
derived from information disclosed to Developer by Franchisor and that certain of such information is
proprietary, confidential and constitutes trade secrets of Franchisor. In addition, any improvements
developed by Developer pursuant to Developer's operation of any Franchised Restaurant shall constitute
proprietary information of Franchisor. “Trade Secrets” refer to the whole or any portion of know-how,
knowledge, methods, recipes, formulae, specifications, processes, procedures and/or improvements
regarding the PANCHEROS Restaurant and the System that is valuable and secret in the sense that it is not
generally known to competitors of Franchisor. Developer and its owners, officers and directors, if any,
jointly and severally agree that during and after the term of this Agreement for so long as any Franchisor
treats any such information as its trade secret, they will maintain the absolute confidentiality of all trade
secret information and will not disclose, sell or use any such information in any other business or in any
manner not specifically authorized or approved in advance in writing by Franchisor.

(c) Developer and its owners, officers and directors, if any, shall divulge such trade secret and
confidential information only to the extent and only to such of its employees as must have access to it in
order to perform obligations under this Agreement or a Franchise Agreement. Any and all information,
knowledge and know-how of Franchisor including, without limitation, the Confidential Operations Manual,
specifications and standards concerning the operation of PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurants and other
materials and information provided to Developer by Franchisor, shall be deemed confidential for purposes
of this Agreement, except information which Developer can demonstrate lawfully came to its attention prior
to disclosure thereof by Franchisor (other than under an obligation of confidentiality); or which, at the time
of disclosure by Franchisor to Developer, had lawfully become a part of the public domain, through
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publication or communication by others; or which, after disclosure to Developer by Franchisor, lawfully
becomes a part of the public domain, through publication or communication by others.

(d) Due to the special and unique nature of the trade secrets, confidential information, proprietary
marks and Confidential Operations Manual of Franchisor, Developer and its owners, officers and directors,
if any, hereby, jointly and severally, agree and acknowledge that Franchisor shall be entitled to immediate
equitable remedies including, but not limited to, restraining orders and injunctive relief, in order to
safeguard such proprietary, confidential, unique and special information of Franchisor and that money
damages alone would be an insufficient remedy with which to compensate Franchisor for any breach of the
terms of this Article 6 of this Agreement. Furthermore, Developer agrees that all owners, directors,
shareholders, partners and employees of Developer having access to the trade secrets, confidential and
proprietary information of Franchisor and any owners, officers, directors or other employees designated by
Franchisor shall be required to execute confidentiality agreements acceptable to Franchisor.

(e) Developer is granted access to certain confidential information and trade secrets pertaining
to the System only pursuant to an individual Franchise Agreement executed between Developer and
Franchisor, and the foregoing Sections are not intended, and shall not be interpreted, to grant or entitle
Developer to receive any such confidential information or trade secrets pursuant to this Agreement.

(f)  Developer shall return to Franchisor all manuals and other confidential information more
fully described in this Article 6 that it receives from Franchisor in the course of operating the PANCHERQOS
Franchised Restaurant when Developer leaves the PANCHEROS System.

1. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

(@) The options and territorial exclusivity granted to Developer in this Agreement have been
granted in reliance on Developer's representations and warranties, and strictly on the conditions set forth in
this Agreement including, without limitation, the condition that Developer comply strictly with the
Development Schedule.

(b) Developer shall be deemed in default under this Agreement, and all rights granted herein to
Developer shall automatically terminate without notice: (i) If Developer shall be adjudicated bankrupt,
becomes insolvent, commits any affirmative action of insolvency or files any action or petition of
insolvency, or if a receiver (permanent or temporary) of its property or any part thereof is appointed by a
court of competent authority or if it makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (ii) if a final
judgment remains unsatisfied of record for thirty (30) days or longer (unless supersedeas bond is filed);
(iii) if execution is levied against Developer's business or property; or (iv) if suit to foreclose any lien or
mortgage against Developer's premises or equipment is instituted against Developer and not dismissed
within thirty (30) days, or is not in the process of being dismissed; provided, however, that Franchisor
reserves the right to be named as trustee or receiver in any voluntary petition for bankruptcy or insolvency
filed by Developer.

(c) If Developer (i) fails to exercise options and enter into Franchise Agreements with Franchisor
pursuant to this Agreement for the Franchised Restaurants within any Options Period as set forth on the
Development Schedule; (ii) fails to comply with any other term or condition of this Agreement; or
(iii) makes or attempts to make a transfer or assignment in violation of this Agreement or if Developer fails
to comply with the terms and conditions of any individual Franchise Agreement with Franchisor or of any
other agreement to which Developer and Franchisor are parties, any such event shall constitute a default
under this Agreement. Upon any such default, Franchisor, in its discretion, may do any one or more of the
following:

(ii) Terminate this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder to Developer without
affording Developer any opportunity to cure the default effective immediately upon receipt by Developer
of written notice from Franchisor;
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(iii) Reduce the number of Franchised Restaurants, without any reduction of the
Development Fee, which are subject to options granted to Developer pursuant to this Agreement;

(iv) Terminate or reduce in any manner, in Franchisor's discretion, the territorial
exclusivity granted Developer in Article 1 hereof; or

(v) Exercise any other rights and remedies which Franchisor may have.

(d) Upon termination of this Agreement, all remaining options granted Developer to establish
Franchised Restaurants under this Agreement shall automatically be null and void. Developer shall have
no right to establish or operate any PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant for which a Franchise Agreement
has not been executed by Franchisor. Franchisor shall be entitled to establish and to license others to
establish, Franchised Restaurants which will operate in the Designated Territory except as may be otherwise
provided under any Franchise Agreement which has been executed between Franchisor and Developer or
Developer's affiliates and which has not been terminated. No default under this Agreement shall constitute
a default under any Franchise Agreement between the parties hereto, except to the extent that any default
under this Agreement constitutes a default under any Franchise Agreement in accordance with the terms of
the Franchise Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, the terms and conditions of each Franchise
Agreement must be complied with by the franchisee thereunder and shall control in determining whether
any default exists under such Franchise Agreement.

(e) Noright or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor is exclusive of any other
right or remedy provided or permitted by law or equity.

8. TRANSFERABILITY

(@) This Agreement and all rights hereunder can be assigned and transferred by Franchisor and,
if so, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Franchisor's successors and assigns. Specifically and
without limitation to the foregoing, Developer expressly agrees that Franchisor may sell its assets, Marks
or System outright to a third party; may make a public offering of securities; may engage in a private
placement of some or all of its securities; may merge or acquire other corporations or entities or be acquired
by another corporation or other entity; may undertake a refinancing, recapitalization, leveraged buyout or
other economic or financial restructuring; and, with regard to any or all of the above sales, assignments and
dispositions, Developer expressly and specifically waives any claims, demands or damages arising from or
related to the loss of said Marks (or any variation thereof) and/or the loss of association with or identification
of Panchero’s Franchise Corporation as the franchisor hereunder. Nothing contained in this Agreement
shall require Franchisor to remain in the business in the event that Franchisor exercises its rights hereunder
to assign its rights in this Agreement.

(b) Developer understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties set forth in this
Agreement are personal to Developer and are granted in reliance upon the personal qualifications of
Developer. Developer has represented and hereby represents to Franchisor that Developer is entering into
this Agreement with the intention of complying with its terms and conditions and not for the purpose of
resale of the developmental or option rights hereunder.

(c) Neither Developer nor any partner or shareholder thereof shall, without Franchisor's prior
written consent, directly or indirectly sell, assign, transfer, convey, give away, pledge, mortgage or
otherwise encumber any interest in this Agreement or in Developer. Any such proposed assignment
occurring by operation of law or otherwise, including any assignment by or to any trustee in bankruptcy,
without Franchisor's prior written consent, shall be a material default of this Agreement.

(d) Neither Developer, nor any partner (if Developer is a partnership) or shareholder (if
Developer is a corporation) of Developer, without Franchisor's prior written consent, by operation of law
or otherwise, shall sell, assign, transfer, convey, give away or encumber to any person, firm or corporation,
all or any part of its interest in this Agreement or its interest in the rights granted hereby or its interest in
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any proprietorship, partnership, corporation or other entity which owns any interest in such rights, nor offer,
permit or suffer the same to be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed, given away or encumbered in any
way to any person, firm or corporation. Developer may not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor,
fractionalize any of the rights of Developer granted pursuant to this Agreement. Any purported transfer or
assignment of any of Developer's or any of its partner's or shareholder's rights herein not having the
aforesaid consent shall be null and void and shall constitute a material default hereunder. Subject to Section
8(e) of this Agreement, Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold its approval of an assignment or
transfer, to proposed assignees or transferees a long as:

(i) Developer and its Owners, directors and officers are in full compliance with this
Agreement (including its development obligations) and any other agreements to which Developer and
Franchisor are parties; without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Developer acknowledges and agrees
that consent will not be granted if Developer is in default of any of its obligations hereunder, including its
development obligations;

(ii) Developer and its Owners and affiliates pay all sums owed to Franchisor and Franchisor’s
affiliates before such transfer or assignment;

(iii) Transferee’s or assignee’s Owners are of good moral character and have sufficient
business experience, aptitude and financial resources, otherwise meet Franchisor's then applicable standards
for developers, and are willing to assume all obligations of Developer hereunder and to execute and be
bound by all provisions of the Franchisor's then-current form of the Area Development Agreement for a
term equal to the remaining term hereof;

(iv) Developer, assignee, or transferee to pay to Franchisor its then-current assignment fee,
which is a minimum of $10,000;

(v) Developer and its Owners and guarantors execute a general release of Franchisor and its
owners, directors, officers, successors and assigns, in form and content satisfactory to Franchisor;

(vi) Developer has opened and is currently operating at least one Franchised Restaurant
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement;

(vii) This Agreement is being assigned or transferred without any change to the Development
Territory, the Development Schedule, or any other obligation of Developer under this Agreement; and

(viii) If required by Franchisor, transferee or assignee execute Franchisor’s then-current
form of Area Development Agreement, whose Development Territory and Development Schedule will be
completed to reflect the same terms as those under this Agreement.

(e) This Agreement may be assigned to a partnership or business entity (such as a corporation or
limited liability company) which conducts no business other than the business contemplated hereunder,
which is actively managed by Developer and in which Developer owns and controls, and continues to own
throughout the term of this Agreement, not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of the general partnership
interest or fifty-one percent (51%) of the equity and/or voting power of the business entity, provided that
all partners or owners shall execute an assignment agreement in a form approved by Franchisor undertaking
to be bound jointly and severally by all provisions of this Agreement, all governing documents shall
incorporate reference to this Agreement, and all certificates evidencing an ownership interest in the business
entity shall bear a legend reflecting or referring to the restrictions of this Agreement as designated by
Franchisor.

(f)  If Developer or its owners shall at any time determine to sell the rights under this Agreement
or any of their respective ownership interests in Developer or any of Developer's assets (except in the
ordinary course of business), Developer or its owners shall obtain a bona fide, executed written offer from
a responsible and fully disclosed purchaser and shall submit an exact copy of such offer to Franchisor,
which shall, for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of delivery of such offer, have the right, exercisable
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by written notice to Developer or its owners, to purchase such rights under this Agreement or such
ownership interests for the price and on the terms and conditions contained in such offer, provided that
Franchisor may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in such offer and that Franchisor shall
have not less than sixty (60) days to prepare for closing. If Franchisor does not exercise this right of first
refusal, Developer or its owners, as applicable, may complete the sale of such interest in this Agreement or
such ownership interest, subject to Franchisor's approval of the purchaser as provided in this Article 8,
provided that if such sale is not completed within ninety (90) days after delivery of such offer to Franchisor,
Franchisor shall again have the right of first refusal provided herein.

() Developer must give Franchisor ninety (90) days written notice prior to any sale or
assignment of a full or partial interest in Developer by Developer or any of its owners. The purpose of this
paragraph is to enable Franchisor to comply with any applicable state or federal franchise disclosure laws.
Developer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor for Developer's failure to comply with this
Section.

(h)  Developer must promptly (“promptly” herein defined as within thirty (30) days of receipt of
an offer to buy) give Franchisor written notice whenever Developer or any of its owners have received an
offer to buy Developer's or such owner's interest in this Agreement or an interest in Developer itself or any
options pursuant to this Agreement. Developer must also give Franchisor written notice simultaneously
with an offer to sell any interest in this Agreement or an interest in Developer itself or any options pursuant
to this Agreement, made by, for or on behalf of Developer or any of its owners. The purpose of this Section
8(h) is to enable Franchisor to comply with any applicable state or federal franchise disclosure laws or rules.
Developer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor for Developer's failure to comply with this

Section 8(h).

(i) No sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, encumbrance or gift of any interest in this
Agreement or in the options granted thereby, shall relieve Developer and the shareholders or partners
participating in any transfer, of the obligations of the covenants not to compete with Franchisor contained
in this Agreement except where Franchisor shall expressly authorize in writing.

9. COVENANTS

(@) Unless otherwise specified, the term “Developer” as used in this Article 9 shall include,
collectively and individually, Developer as defined in Article 18.

(b) Developer covenants that during the term of this Agreement and any renewals thereof, except
as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Developer (if Developer is an individual), a shareholder of
Developer (if Developer is a corporation) or a general partner of Developer (if Developer is a partnership)
or Developer's full-time manager approved by Franchisor shall devote full-time energy and best efforts to
the management and operation of the restaurants to be franchised in accordance with the rights and options
granted pursuant to this Agreement.

(c) Developer, as defined in Section 9(a) covenants that during the term of this Agreement,
except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, shall not, either directly or indirectly, for itself, or
through, on behalf of or in conjunction with any person, persons, partnership or corporation:

(i) Divert or attempt to divert any business or customers of any of the Franchised
Restaurants to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or
indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with any of Franchisor's Marks
or the System.

(i)  Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time employed by Franchisor or by
any franchisee of Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce or seek to induce such person to
leave his or her employment.
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(iii)) Own, maintain, engage in or have any interest in any business (including any business
operated by Developer prior to entry into this Agreement) specializing in whole or in part, in dispensing,
promoting or selling prepared food products, or any other business which sells or offers to sell prepared
food products or services, the same as or similar to those sold in the System.

(d) Developer specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to this Agreement, Developer will
receive valuable training and confidential information including, without limitation, information regarding
the promotional, operational, sales and marketing methods and techniques of Franchisor and the System.
Accordingly, Developer covenants that, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Developer
shall not, for a period of two (2) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, regardless of
the cause of termination, either directly or indirectly, for himself, or through, on behalf of or in conjunction
with any person, persons, partnership or corporation, own, maintain, engage in, consult with or have any
interest in any restaurant business or prepared food business engaged primarily in the preparation and sale
of prepared food products or services, the same as or similar to the type sold in the System in any area in
which there is a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant presently operating and in any area in which
Franchisor has initiated efforts to establish a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant. Developer also
covenants not to hire Franchisor's or Affiliate's employees during this two (2) year period.

(e) Each of the foregoing covenants shall be construed as independent of any other covenant or
provision of this Agreement. If all or any portion of a covenant in this Article 9 is held unreasonable or
unenforceable by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision to which
Franchisor is a party, Developer expressly agrees to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the
terms of such covenant that imposes the maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant were
separately stated in and made a part of this Article 9.

(f)  Developer understands and acknowledges that Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole
discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in Sections 9(c) or 9(d) of this Agreement, or any
portion thereof, without Developer's consent, effective immediately upon receipt by Developer of written
notice thereof and Developer agrees that it shall comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified, which
shall be fully enforceable notwithstanding the provisions of Article 15 hereof.

() Franchisor shall have the right to require all of Developer's personnel performing managerial
or supervisory functions and all personnel receiving special training from Franchisor to execute similar
covenants in a form satisfactory to Franchisor.

(h) In addition to the foregoing covenants, Developer shall be bound by and comply with the
covenants contained in each Franchise Agreement executed by Franchisor and Developer.

10. NOTICES

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the respective parties at the
following addresses unless and until a different address has been designated by written notice to the other

party:
Notices to Franchisor: PANCHERO'S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

2475 Coral Court, Suite B
Coralville, lowa 52241

Copy to: Andrew P. Bleiman, Esg.
Marks & Klein, LLC
1363 Shermer Road, Suite 318

Northbrook, Illinois 60062
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Notices to Developer:

Copy to:

Any notice by certified mail shall be deemed to have been given at the date and time of mailing.

11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION

(@) It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement does not create a
fiduciary relationship between them, that nothing in this Agreement is intended to constitute either party an
agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee or servant of the other for any
purpose whatsoever. Each party to this Agreement is an independent contractor, and neither shall be
responsible for the debts or liabilities incurred by the other.

(b) Developer shall hold himself out to the public to be an independent contractor operating
pursuant to this Agreement. Developer agrees to take such actions as shall be necessary to that end.

(c) Developer understands and agrees that nothing in this Agreement authorizes Developer to
make any contract, agreement, warranty or representation on Franchisor's behalf or to incur any debt or
other obligation in Franchisor's name and that Franchisor assumes no liability for, nor shall Franchisor be
deemed liable by reason of, any act or omission of Developer in Developer's conduct of any Franchised
Restaurant or any claim or judgment arising therefrom. Developer shall indemnify and hold Franchisor
harmless against any and all such claims directly or indirectly from, as a result of or in connection with
Developer's operations hereunder or under any Franchise Agreement, as well as the costs, including
attorneys' fees, of defending against them.

(d) Developer acknowledges that because complete and detailed uniformity under many varying
conditions may not be possible or practical, Franchisor specifically reserves the right and privilege, at its
sole discretion and as it may deem in the best interests of all concerned in any specific instance, to vary
standards for any developer based upon the peculiarities of the particular location or circumstance, business
potential, population of trade area, existing business practices or any other condition which Franchisor
deems to be of importance to the successful operation of such Developer's business under any Franchise
Agreement. Developer shall not be entitled to require Franchisor to disclose or grant to Developer a like
or similar variation hereunder to that which may be accorded to any other developer.

12. APPROVALS

(&) Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or consent of Franchisor, Developer
shall make a timely written request to Franchisor therefor, and, except as otherwise provided herein, any
approval or consent granted shall be effective only if in writing.

(b)  Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees upon which Developer may rely and assumes
no liability or obligation to Developer or any third party to which it would not otherwise be subject, by
providing any waiver, approval, advice, consent or services to Developer in connection with this Agreement
or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial of any request therefor.

13. NON-WAIVER
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No failure of Franchisor to exercise any power reserved to it in this Agreement or to insist upon
compliance by Developer with any obligation or condition in this Agreement, and no custom or practice of
the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver of Franchisor's rights to demand exact
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Waiver by Franchisor of any particular default shall not
affect or impair Franchisor's right in respect to any subsequent default of the same or of a different nature,
nor shall any delay, forbearance or omission of Franchisor to exercise any power or right arising out of any
breach or default by Developer of any of the terms, provisions or covenants of this Agreement, affect or
impair Franchisor's rights, nor shall the same constitute a waiver by Franchisor of any rights hereunder or
rights to declare any subsequent breach or default.

14, SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION
(a) Each provision of this Agreement shall be deemed severable from the others.

(b)  Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon any person or legal entity other than Franchisor
or Developer and such of their respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated by Section 8
hereof, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.

(c) Allcaptions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the parties and none
shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof.

(d)  All references herein to gender and number shall be construed to include such other gender
and number as the context may require and all acknowledgments, promises, covenants, agreements and
obligations herein made or undertaken by Developer shall be deemed jointly and severally undertaken by
all the parties hereto which execute this Agreement on behalf of Developer.

(e) This Agreement may be executed in duplicate, and each copy so executed shall be deemed
an original. This Agreement may also be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one agreement. A signed copy of this
Agreement transmitted by facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to
have the same legal effect as delivery of an original executed copy of this Agreement. You agree that the
electronic signatures or digital signatures (each an “e-Signature”) of any party to this Agreement shall have
the same force and effect as manual signatures of such partyand such e-Signature shall not be denied legal
effect or enforceability solely because it is in electronic form or an electronic record was used in its
formation. You agree that an e-Signature of either party is intended to: (i) authenticate the signature, (ii)
represent the party’s intent to sign, and (iii) constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary
course of business and an original written record when printed from electronic files. You agree not to contest
the admissibility or enforceability of either party’s e-Signature.

(f)  The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the
event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement will be construed as if
drafted jointly by the parties, and no presumption or burden of proof will arise favoring or disfavoring any
party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire, full and complete agreement between Franchisor and
Developer, and there are no other oral or written understandings (except for representations contained in
our franchise disclosure document) or agreements between Franchisor and Developer relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement will require Developer to waive reliance on
representations made in the franchise disclosure document that Franchisor delivered to Developer in
connection with this offering. No amendment, change or variance from this Agreement shall be binding
on either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed by themselves or their authorized
officers or agents in writing.

16. SUPERIORITY OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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For each PANCHEROS individual Franchised Restaurant developed in the Designated Territory,
a separate Franchise Agreement shall be executed and any individual franchise fee as prescribed by
Franchisor shall be paid to Franchisor. It is understood and agreed by Developer that any and all Franchise
Agreements executed in connection with PANCHEROS individual Franchised Restaurants within the
Designated Territory are independent of this Agreement. The continued existence of any such Franchise
Agreement shall not depend on the continuing existence of this Agreement. If any conflict shall arise in
connection with this Agreement and any Franchise Agreement executed within the Designated Territory,
the latter shall have precedence and superiority over the former.

17. APPLICABLE LAW

(@) This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor. This
Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall prevail
in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of
1946 (Lanham Act, 15, U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq).

(b) Developer agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be brought and
maintained exclusively in a state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains its principal
place of business at the time the action is initiated, and the parties hereby waive all questions of personal
jurisdiction or venue for purposes of carrying out this provision. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor
may bring an action for injunctive relief in any court having jurisdiction to enforce its trademark or
proprietary rights, the covenants not to compete, the restriction of disclosure of Confidential Information,
and/or to enforce compliance with Developer’s post-termination obligations under Article 7. The parties,
including the owners of Developer, hereby waive all questions of personal jurisdiction for the purpose of
carrying out this provision and agree that service of process may be made upon any of them in any
proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the breach of this Agreement, or the relationship
created hereby by any means allowed by lowa or federal law.

(c) Noright or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor or Developer by this Agreement
is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity
provided or permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy.

(d) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. FRANCHISOR AND DEVELOPER HEREBY AGREE
THAT THEY SHALL AND HEREBY DO WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING
OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR AT EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THEM,
OR IN ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER WHICH ARISES OUT OF OR IS CONNECTED IN ANY WAY
WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR ITS PERFORMANCE.

(e) WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES. THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE TO THE
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF ANY PUNITIVE OR
EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A
DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM EACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL
DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY IT.

()  No legal action or proceeding may be brought against Franchisor or its officers, directors,
agents, or employees, for any claim or cause of action (whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise)
unless such action or proceeding is instituted within two (2) years and one day from the date the claim or
cause of action accrued. This provision is intended to shorten any applicable statute of limitations to the
extent permitted by law.

18. “DEVELOPER” DEFINED AND GUARANTY

As used in this Agreement, the term “Developer” shall include all persons who succeed to the
interest of the original Developer by permitted transfer or operation of law and shall be deemed to include
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not only the individual or entity defined as “Developer” in the introductory Section of this Agreement, but
shall also include all partners of the entity that executes this Agreement, in the event said entity is a
partnership and all shareholders, officers and directors of the entity that executes this Agreement, in the
event said entity is a corporation. By their signatures hereto, all partners, shareholders, officers and
directors of the entity that signs this Agreement as Developer acknowledges and accepts the duties and
obligations imposed upon each of them, individually, by the terms of this Agreement. All Owners, officers,
directors, and Managers of the entity that executes this Agreement, in the event said entity is a legal entity,
will execute the Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations (“Guaranty™) attached hereto as Exhibit C and
made a part hereof. If any Owner of Developer is not an individual, the Owner entity, as well as each of
its Owners, officers, directors, and Managers will execute the Guaranty. As it is the intent of the parties that
individual persons execute the Guaranty, Developer agrees to cause the Owners, officers, directors, and
Managers of each and every entity in its chain of ownership to execute the Guaranty. The term “Owners”
as used in this Section means each individual or entity holding a beneficial ownership interest in the
applicable entity. It includes all voting and nonvoting shareholders of a corporation, all members of a
limited liability company, all general and limited partners of a limited partnership, and the grantor and the
trustee of a trust. The term “Managers” as used in this Section means any Manager appointed as such in
connection with a limited liability company, regardless of whether or not the Manager is an Owner of the
limited liability company.

19. CAVEAT

THE SUCCESS OF THE BUSINESS VENTURE CONTEMPLATED TO BE UNDERTAKEN
BY DEVELOPER BY VIRTUE OF THIS AGREEMENT IS SPECULATIVE AND DEPENDS, TO A
LARGE EXTENT, UPON THE ABILITY OF DEVELOPER AS AN INDEPENDENT
BUSINESSPERSON, AND HIS/HER ACTIVE PARTICIPATION IN THE DAILY AFFAIRS OF THE
BUSINESS AS WELL AS OTHER FACTORS. FRANCHISOR DOES NOT MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED AS TO THE POTENTIAL SUCCESS
OF THE BUSINESS VENTURE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

20. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

(@) Developer represents and acknowledges that it has received, read and understood this
Agreement and Franchisor's franchise disclosure document; and that Franchisor has fully and adequately
explained the provisions of each to Developer's satisfaction; and that Franchisor has accorded Developer
ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of its own choosing about the potential benefits and
risks of entering into this Agreement.

(b) Developer has been advised to consult with its own advisors with respect to the legal,
financial and other aspects of this Agreement, the business franchised hereby and the prospects for that
business. Developer has either consulted with such advisors or has deliberately declined to do so.

(c) The covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement are fair and reasonable and will not
impose any undue hardship on Developer, since Developer has other considerable skills, experience and
education which afford Developer the opportunity to derive income from other endeavors.

(d) Developer affirms that all information set forth in any and all applications, financial
statements and submissions to Franchisor is true, complete and accurate in all respects, with Developer
expressly acknowledging that Franchisor is relying upon the truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of
such information.

(e) Developer has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by this
Agreement and recognizes that, like any other business, an investment in a PANCHEROS Franchised
Restaurant involves business risks and that the success of the venture is primarily dependent upon the
business abilities and efforts of Developer.
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()  Developer further acknowledges that Franchisor makes no representation: (i) that
Developer’s Development Area contains a sufficient number of acceptable locations to meet the number of
Franchised Restaurants to be developed under the Development Schedule; or (ii) that Developer’s
Development Area is sufficient to economically support the number of Franchised Restaurants to be
developed under the Development Schedule. Developer acknowledges that Developer has performed all
related and necessary due diligence before your execution of this Agreement and that, accordingly,
Developer assumes the risk of identifying a sufficient number of acceptable locations within the
Development Area, and the economic risk of developing the agreed-upon number of Franchised Restaurants
within the Development Area.

(o) Developer understands and acknowledges that all representations of fact contained herein are
made solely by Franchisor. All documents, including Developer’s Area Development Agreement and
franchise disclosure document and all exhibits thereto, have been prepared solely in reliance upon
representations made and information provided by Franchisor, its officers and its directors.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this Agreement in
duplicate on the day and year first above written.

PANCHERO'S FRANCHISE DEVELOPER
CORPORATION

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 15
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EXHIBIT ATO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY

[MAP TO BE PLACED HERE]

The above excludes all Closed Markets within such area. A “Closed Market” is any facility serving a
captive market, including department stores, supermarkets, shopping malls, amusement parks, airports,
train stations, travel plazas, casinos, nightclubs, restaurants, public facilities, college and school campuses,
arenas, stadiums, ballparks, hospitals, office buildings, convention centers, airlines (in-flight service),
military bases, and any other mass gathering events or locations, and facilities of any kind for which food
and/or beverage service rights are contracted to a third party or parties (including, but not limited to,
designated road ways and facilities adjacent thereto), whether inside or outside of the Designated Area. As
used herein, the term “shopping malls” includes any retail center (enclosed or open), including “outlet
malls,” with an aggregate gross leasable area in excess of 500,000 square feet.

PANCHERO'S FRANCHISE DEVELOPER
CORPORATION

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Solo Page Exhibit A
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EXHIBIT B TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

At the dates set forth below, the Developer is obligated by Section 3. of the Area Development

Agreement to have open the number of PANCHEROS Restaurants indicated:

Number of
PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurants

Franchised Restaurant

Date of Execution of
Franchise Agreement

Anticipated Date of
Commencement of

Operations
PANCHERO'S FRANCHISE DEVELOPER
CORPORATION
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Solo Page Exhibit B
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EXHIBIT C TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS

THIS GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS (“Guaranty”) is given this
day of , 20, by

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of that certain Area Development
Agreement of even date herewith (“Agreement”) by PANCHERO'S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
(“Franchisor”), each of the undersigned hereby personally and unconditionally (1) guarantees to Franchisor,
and its successors and assigns, for the term of the Agreement (including extensions) and thereafter as
provided in the Agreement, that (“Developer™) shall
punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the Agreement
(including any amendments or modifications of the Agreement); and (2) shall personally be bound by and
personally liable for the breach of each and every provision in the Agreement (including any amendments
or modifications of the Agreement), both monetary obligations and obligations to take or refrain from taking
specific actions or to engage or refrain from engaging in specific activities including, without limitation,
the non-competition, confidentiality, and transfer requirements.

Each of the undersigned waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the
foregoing undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or non-performance of any
obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness
or non-performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he may have to require that an
action be brought against Developer or any other person as a condition of liability; (5) all rights to payments
and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which any of the undersigned may have against Developer
arising as a result of the undersigned's execution of and performance under this Guaranty; and (6) any and
all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which he may be entitled.

Each of the undersigned consents and agrees that: (1) his direct and immediate liability under this
guaranty shall be joint and several, both with Developer and among other guarantors; (2) he shall render
any payment or performance required under the Agreement upon demand if Developer fails or refuses
punctually to do so; (3) such liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by Franchisor of
any remedies against Developer or any other person; (4) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved or
otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may from time to
time grant to Developer or to any other person, including without limitation the acceptance of any partial
payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims (including the release of other
guarantors), none of which shall in any way modify or amend this guaranty, which shall be continuing and
irrevocable during the term of the Agreement (including extensions), for so long as any performance is or
might be owed under the Agreement by Developer or its owners, and for so long as Franchisor has any
cause of action against Developer or its owners; and (5) this guaranty will continue in full force and effect
for (and as to) any extension or modification of the Agreement and despite the transfer of any interest in
the Agreement or Developer, and each of the undersigned waives notice of any and all renewals, extensions,
modifications, amendments, or transfers.

This Guaranty may be executed in duplicate, and each copy so executed shall be deemed an
original. This Guaranty may also be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one agreement. A signed copy of this Guaranty
transmitted by facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same
legal effect as delivery of an original executed copy of this Guaranty. You agree that the electronic
signatures or digital signatures (each an “e-Signature”) of any party to this Guaranty shall have the same
force and effect as manual signatures of such partyand such e-Signature shall not be denied legal effect or
enforceability solely because it is in electronic form or an electronic record was used in its formation. You

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Page 1 of 2 Exhibit C
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agree that an e-Signature of either party is intended to: (i) authenticate the signature, (ii) represent the party’s
intent to sign, and (iii) constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business and
an original written record when printed from electronic files. You agree not to contest the admissibility or
enforceability of either party’s e-Signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed his signature on the
same day and year as the Agreement was executed.

GUARANTOR(S) PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP IN
DEVELOPER

%
Printed Name:

%
Printed Name:

%
Printed Name:

%
Printed Name:

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Page 2 of 2 Exhibit C
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PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024
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\ %% ‘ HONKAMI 2345 JOHN F. KENNEDY ROAD * DUBUQUE, IA 52002

563.556.0123 ¢« 888.556.0123 * FAX 563.556.8762

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Panchero's Franchise Corporation
Coralville, lowa

Report On The Audit Of The Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Panchero's Franchise Corporation (the Company),
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the related statements of
income, retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities For The Audit Of The Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities Of Management For The Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

WWW.HONKAMP.COM



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities For The Audit Of The Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
U.S. GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

HONKAMP, P.C.

K omharp P.c.

Dubuque, lowa
March 12, 2025




PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2024 2023
Assets

Current Assets
Cash $ 880,518 $ 1,292,269
Accounts receivable 483,624 407,584
Other current assets 197,650 111,568
Prepaid commissions 12,122 11,626
Total Current Assets 1,973,914 1,823,047
Property And Equipment 268,606 251,273
Operating Lease Asset 809,775 891,998
Prepaid Commissions 61,093 62,526
Investments 1,250,934 1,000,991

$ 3,964,322 $ 4,029,835

Liabilities And Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 15,662 $ 22,169
Current maturities of operating lease liability 84,750 83,183
Current maturities of finance lease liability 3,204 —
Accounts payable 156,086 134,250
Accrued expenses 283,237 350,185
Contract liabilities 99,201 102,000
Gift card liability 391,805 440,034

Total Current Liabilities 1,033,945 1,131,821

Long-Term Liabilities

Contract liabilities 356,055 401,111
Long-term debt 47,079 17,529
Deferred tax liability 133,600 52,100
Long-term operating lease liability 785,001 869,751
Long-term finance lease liability 6,812 —
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,328,547 1,340,491
Total Liabilities 2,362,492 2,472,312

Stockholders' Equity

Common stock 7,011 7,011
Additional paid-in capital 53,989 53,989
Retained earnings 1,540,830 1,496,523

Total Stockholders' Equity 1,601,830 1,557,523

$ 3,964,322 $ 4,029,835

See the accompanying notes to financial statements



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For The Years Ended
December 31,
2024 2023
Statements Of Income
Sales $ 10,194,108 $ 7,808,871
General And Administrative Expenses 9,266,958 6,914,508
Income From Operations 927,150 894,363
Other Income 232,839 219,831
Income Before Income Tax Expense 1,159,989 1,114,194
Income Tax Expense 315,682 302,948

Net Income $

844,307 3 811,246

Statements Of Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings — Beginning Of Period $ 1,496,523 $ 1,385,277
Dividends (800,000) (700,000)
Net Income 844,307 811,246
Retained Earnings — End Of Period $ 1,540,830 $ 1,496,523

See the accompanying notes to financial statements



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended
December 31,

2024 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 844,307 3 811,246
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 57,468 68,595
Amortization of operating lease asset 82,223 80,992
(Gain) loss on sale of property and equipment 15,021 (12,867)
Deferred income taxes 81,500 28,400
Unrealized gain on investments (249,943) (208,446)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (76,040) 35,672
Other current assets (86,082) (47,052)
Prepaid commissions 937 (17,591)
Accounts payable 21,836 41,951
Accrued expenses (66,948) 119,399
Contract liabilities (47,855) 46,043
Gift card liability (48,229) 52,641
Operating lease liability (83,183) (78,768)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 445,012 920,215
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (33,784) (6,070)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 6,552 12,867
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities (27,232) 8,797
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payments on long-term debt (26,454) (30,142)
Payments on finance lease obligations (3,077) —
Dividends paid (800,000) (700,000)
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (829,531) (730,142)
Change In Cash (411,751) 196,870
Cash — Beginning Of Year 1,292,269 1,095,399
Cash — End Of Year $ 880,518 $ 1,292 269

Supplemental Disclosure Of Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paid $ 280,416 $ 220,198
Interest paid $ 2,921 $ 2,287
Supplemental Disclosure Of Noncash Investing
And Financing Transactions
Equipment acquired through noncash financing $ 49,497 3 —
Equipment acquired through finance lease $ 13,093 3 —

See the accompanying notes to financial statements



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature Of Business And Significant Accounting Policies

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation (Panchero’s or the Company) was formed as a franchisor
for the purpose of developing and selling national franchises of Panchero’s Mexican Girill.
The Company is primarily engaged in the marketing and selling of franchise license
agreements and marketing and support services to existing franchises.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies follows:

Use Of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

The Company’s most significant estimate relates to the determination of estimated breakage
revenue on gift card balances. Due to inherent uncertainties in estimating gift card usage by
customers, it is reasonably possible that the estimates will charge in the near term.

Cash

The Company places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. At times, such
amounts may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are primarily derived from weekly billings for royalties and advertising
fees from franchisees, amounts to be deposited by third-party vendors for rebates earned
and amounts to be deposited by third-party service providers for gift cards purchased by
customers. At each balance sheet date, the Company recognizes an expected allowance for
credit losses. In addition, also at each reporting date, this estimate is updated to reflect any
changes in credit risk since the receivable was initially recorded. This estimate is calculated
on a pooled basis where similar risk characteristics exist. Accounts receivable are evaluated
individually when they do not share similar risks.

The allowance estimate is derived from a review of the Company'’s historical losses based
on the aging of accounts receivable. This estimate is adjusted for management’s
assessment of current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts regarding future
events and any other factors deemed relevant by the Company. The Company believes
historical loss information is a reasonable starting point in which to calculate the expected
allowance for credit losses as the Company’s portfolio segment has remained constant
since the Company’s inception. As economic statistics change, the Company anticipates
changes in the expected credit losses from those that have been incurred in the past. As a
result, management modified those factors in its allowance for credit losses. The Company
has determined that no allowance is required as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.




PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

The Company writes off receivables when there is information that indicates the debtor is
facing significant financial difficulty and there is no possibility of recovery. If any recoveries
are made from any accounts previously written off, they will be recognized as an offset to
credit loss expense in the year of recovery.

Accounts receivable totaled $483,624, $407,584 and $443,256 at December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022, respectively. Of these amounts $196,798, $173,894 and $185,133 related to gift
card deposits not yet received at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Property And Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Major expenditures for improvements and those which substantially increase useful lives are
capitalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. When assets
are retired or otherwise disposed of, their costs and related accumulated depreciation or
amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are included in
income.

Property and equipment are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over
the assets’ estimated useful lives or the life of the lease, if shorter. For any lease
agreements between entities under common control, the Company depreciates leasehold
improvements that it owns over the leasehold improvements' useful life to the common
control group, regardless of lease term. The unamortized balance of leasehold
improvements as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $134,454 and $148,385,
respectively. The remaining useful life ranged from 9 to 36 years. The remaining term of the
lease is 9 years.

Leases

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception by considering whether
a contract explicitly or implicitly identifies assets deployed in the arrangement and whether
the Company has obtained substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
underlying assets and directs how and for what purpose the assets are used during the term
of the contract.

The Company made the following policy elections related to ongoing lease accounting:
e The Company excluded leases with original terms of 12 months or less from lease

assets and lease liabilities;

o The Company elected to account for lease and nonlease components separately.
Only lease components are included in the lease payment determination and

o For any lease agreements that do not contain an implicit interest rate, the Company
elected to use the risk-free rate in lieu of determining an incremental borrowing rate
appropriate for the lease term to determine the present value of lease payments.




PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Operating lease assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the
lease term and operating lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease
payments arising from the lease. Operating lease assets and liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As
the lease agreements typically do not provide an implicit rate, the Company uses the risk-
free rate at the lease commencement date in determining the present value of lease
payments. Certain of the Company’s lease agreements include options to extend or
terminate the lease. The lease term takes into account these options to extend or terminate
the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option.

Operating leases are included in operating lease asset, current maturities of operating lease
liability and long-term operating lease liability on the balance sheets. Lease expense is
included in general and administrative expenses on the statements of income and is
recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease term. Information regarding the
Company’s operating leases can be found in Note 3.

Equipment under finance lease is capitalized and amortized over the lesser of the useful life
of the asset or the term of the lease agreement. This equipment is reflected within property
and equipment on the balance sheets. Future finance lease payments are recorded at their
present value and reflected within current maturities of finance lease liability due in the next
12 months and presented as long-term finance lease liability for obligations due thereafter.
Information regarding the Company’s finance leases can be found in Note 6.

Investments

Investments in marketable equity securities are classified as available for sale and carried at
fair value as determined by quotations on publicly traded markets. Investment income
includes interest and dividend income and realized and unrealized gains and losses and is
included in other income on the statements of income.

Gift Card Liability

When a franchisee sells a gift card to a customer, the cash received is remitted to the
Company. When a franchisee’s customer uses the gift card at any location, the Company
reimburses the franchise store where the gift card was used. Gift cards do not carry an
expiration date; however, gift cards are generally redeemed within 12 months. A certain
number of gift cards will not be fully redeemed, referred to as breakage. Management
estimates unredeemed balances and recognizes breakage from these amounts within sales
on the statements of income. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Company recognized breakage revenue of $152,084 and $41,925, respectively. The gift
card liability balance is a function of gift cards for which the gift card has been issued and
cash received by the Company, but for which reimbursement has not been provided by the
Company to the franchise store in which the gift card was redeemed, less estimated
breakage.
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Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000 shares of no-par value common stock and
100,000 shares of Class A no-par value, non-voting preferred stock. As of December 31,
2024 and 2023, there were 18,302 shares of common stock issued and outstanding and no
shares of Class A preferred stock issued and outstanding.

Revenue Recognition

The Company licenses intellectual property and trademarks to franchisees through franchise
agreements. These franchise agreements also provide for training and consulting provided
by the Company. As part of the franchise agreements, the Company receives an upfront
payment from the franchisee, which the Company recognizes on a straight-line basis over
the term of the franchise agreement, which is generally 10 years. The Company records a
contract liability for the unearned portion of the upfront franchise payments.

The Company also receives royalties and advertising fees from franchisees on the
franchisees’ respective sales. These revenues are recognized as the underlying sales occur
and are received weekly.

Management fees for company-managed stores are recognized over time as the supporting
services are provided based on the agreed upon price. Payment for management fees are
received weekly.

The Company earns marketing rebates on Coca-Cola products sold by the franchisees. The
Company allocates these rebates to the advertising fund for the benefit of franchise stores.
The revenue is recognized at a point in time when the franchises purchase gallons of syrup
from the supplier.

Revenue is measured based on consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The
Company groups similar contracts or similar performance obligations together into portfolios
of contracts as doing so does not result in a significant difference from applying the revenue
standard to individual contracts.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method whereby
deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, operating losses
and other carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases. A valuation allowance is provided against net
deferred tax assets when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. No valuation allowance was recorded by
the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties relating to income taxes in income tax
expense.
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Advertising

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $4,004,817 and $2,122,641, respectively.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 12, 2025, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Property And Equipment

Property and equipment consists of:

2024 2023
Leasehold improvements $ 227,792 $ 227,792
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 291,542 291,437
Vehicles 286,826 279,548
806,160 798,777

Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization 537,554 547 504

$ 268,606 $ 251,273

The Company entered into a finance lease for office equipment during the year ended
December 31, 2024. The cost of equipment under finance lease is $13,093. Accumulated
amortization and amortization expense on equipment under finance lease was $3,273 as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2024.

3. Operating Lease Commitments And Related-Party Transactions

The Company leases office space from a related party under a non-cancellable lease
agreement that expires in January 2029 with a five-year renewal option that requires
escalating monthly rental payments starting at $7,815, plus the payment of common area
maintenance, taxes and other fees. The exercise of lease renewal options is at the
Company’s sole discretion, and the Company considers these renewal options in
determining the lease term used to establish the operating lease asset and liability.
Commitments under the lease agreement are guaranteed by other related parties. Lease
expense in relation to this related-party lease was $96,009 for the years ended December
31, 2024 and 2023. The Company’s lease agreement does not contain any material residual
value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

10
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The Company determines that a contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. In
evaluating whether the Company has the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses wWhether or not it has the right to control the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit from the use of the identified asset.

Other information:

2024 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement
of operating lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 96,969 $ 93,785
Weighted-average remaining lease term —

operating leases 9. 08 years 10.08 years
Weighted-average discount rate —

operating leases 1.52% 1.52%

The following is a maturity analysis of the annual undiscounted cash flows of the operating
lease liability as of December 31, 2024:

Year Amount

2025 $ 97,258
2026 97,258
2027 97,258
2028 97,258
2029 106,173
Thereafter 436,851
932,056

Less: Imputed interest (62,305)
$ 869,751

Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are $55,988 and
$44,222, respectively, for royalties and other fees from licensees that are related parties
through common ownership.

Sales for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 included $3,136,534 and
$2,387,883, respectively, from licensees that are related parties through common
ownership.

Expenses other than rent for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 included
$947,660 and $868,859, respectively, paid to licensees that are related parties through
common ownership.

11
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4. Fair Value Measurements And Disclosures

The Company reports certain assets at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under
current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk.

Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are
inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information
available.

A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
can be accessed at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of
a particular input to the entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors
specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability within the hierarchy
is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset or liability and does not necessarily
correspond to management’s assessment of the quality, risk or liquidity profile of the asset
or liability.

The Company’s investments are open-ended mutual funds with readily determinable fair
values based on daily redemption values and are categorized as Level 1 investments.

12



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

The following table presents the Company’s investments at cost basis and fair market value
as of December 31:

2024 2023
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Mutual funds $ 574,957 $ 1,250,934 $ 559,507 $ 1,000,991

The Company’s investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate,
market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities,
it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will
occur in the near-term and that such a change could materially affect the amounts reported
on the balance sheet and unrealized gain or loss on investments in the statements of
income.

5. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of:

2024 2023

Notes payable - finance company, due in monthly
installments totaling $957, including interest at 5.90%.
Unpaid principal and interest are due in June 2029.
These notes are collateralized by the assets financed. $ 45,267 $ —

Note payable - finance company, due in monthly
installments of $793, including interest at 2.99%. Unpaid
principal and interest are due in February 2027. This
note is collateralized by the asset financed. 14,387 25,783

Note payable - finance company, due in monthly
installments of $634, including interest at 4.49%. Unpaid
principal and interest are due in May 2025. This note is
collateralized by the asset financed. 3,087 10,418

Notes payable - finance company, due in monthly

installments totaling $888, including interest at 6.99%.

Notes were paid in full during the current year. — 3,497
62,741 39,698

Less: Current maturities 15,662 22,169

$ 47,079 $ 17,529

13
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The future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Amount
2025 15,662
2026 18,914
2027 11,772
2028 10,802
2029 5,591
62,741

6. Finance Lease Obligations

The Company leases office equipment under a non-cancellable 48-month finance lease.
Installments of $295 are due monthly and include interest at an imputed rate of 4.06%
through December 2027. The equipment is recorded within property and equipment on the
balance sheets. Amortization of equipment under finance leases is included in general and

administrative expenses on the statements of income.

Future maturities of the finance lease liability are as follows:

Year Amount
2025 3,540
2026 3,540
2027 3,540
10,620
Less: Amount representing interest (604)
10,016

14
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7. Revenue Recognition

Disaggregation Of Revenue
Revenue is disaggregated by the timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations as

follows:
2024 2023
Performance obligations satisfied over time $ 9,744,210 $ 7525476
Performance obligations satisfied at a
point in time 449,898 283,395

$ 10,194,108 $ 7,808,871

Contract Liabilities
Contract liabilities consist of:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Contract liabilities $ 455,256 $ 503,111 $ 457,068

8. Income Taxes

The federal and state income tax expense is summarized as follows for the years ended:

2024 2023
Current $ 235,182 $ 274,548
Deferred 80,500 28,400

$ 315,682 $ 302,948

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes. The major temporary differences that give rise to the deferred
tax assets and liabilities are depreciation and amortization of property and equipment,
unrealized gains and losses on investments, contract liabilities and prepaid commissions.

15
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The deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of:

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets $ 137,200 $ 151,100
Deferred tax liabilities (270,800) (203,200)

$ (1336000 $  (52,100)

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state
jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state
and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2021. Management
has determined that the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and associated
unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial statements or related disclosures.

9. Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering a wide range of
matters that arise in the ordinary course of its business activities. Management believes that
any liability that may result from the resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Panchero's Franchise Corporation
Coralville, lowa

Report On The Audit Of The Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Panchero's Franchise Corporation (the Company),
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the related statements of
income, retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities For The Audit Of The Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities Of Management For The Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

WWW.HONKAMP.COM



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities For The Audit Of The Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
U.S. GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

HONKAMP, P.C.

K omhonp 0.C.

Dubuque, lowa
March 12, 2024




PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2023 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 1,292,269 $ 1,095,399
Accounts receivable 407,584 443,256
Other current assets 111,568 64,516
Prepaid commissions 11,626 11,408
Total Current Assets 1,823,047 1,614,579
Property And Equipment 251,273 313,798
Operating Lease Asset 891,998 972,990
Prepaid Commissions 62,526 45,153
Investments 1,000,991 792,545
$ 4,029,835 $ 3,739,065
Liabilities And Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 22,169 $ 27,539
Current maturities of operating lease liability 83,183 78,769
Accounts payable 134,250 92,299
Accrued expenses 350,185 230,786
Contract liabilities 102,000 98,708
Gift card liability 440,034 387,393
Total Current Liabilities 1,131,821 915,494
Contract Liabilities 401,111 358,360
Long-Term Debt 17,529 42,301
Deferred Tax Liability 52,100 23,700
Long-Term Operating Lease Liability 869,751 952,933
Total Liabilities 2,472,312 2,292,788
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock 7,011 7,011
Additional paid-in capital 53,989 53,989
Retained earnings 1,496,523 1,385,277
Total Stockholders' Equity 1,557,523 1,446,277
$ 4,029,835 $ 3,739,065

See the accompanying notes to financial statements



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For The Years Ended

December 31,

2023 2022
Statements Of Income
Sales $ 7,808,871 $ 7,051,982
General And Administrative Expenses 6,914,508 6,313,135
Income From Operations 894,363 738,847
Other Income (Expense) 219,831 (179,414)
Income Before Income Tax Expense 1,114,194 559,433
Income Tax Expense 302,948 143,372
Net Income $ 811,246 $ 416,061
Statements Of Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings — Beginning Of Period $ 1,385,277 $ 1,569,216
Dividends (700,000) (600,000)
Net Income 811,246 416,061
Retained Earnings — End Of Period $ 1,496,523 $ 1,385,277

See the accompanying notes to financial statements



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended
December 31,

2023 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 811,246 $ 416,061
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 68,595 65,792
Amortization of operating lease asset 80,992 79,806
Gain on sale of property and equipmemt (12,867) —
Deferred income taxes 28,400 (66,500)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (208,446) 176,038
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 35,672 (91,447)
Other current assets (47,052) (3,992)
Prepaid commissions (17,591) 9,437
Accounts payable 41,951 (44,669)
Accrued expenses 119,399 33,891
Contract liabilities 46,043 76,333
Gift card liability 52,641 30,754
Operating lease liability (78,768) (77,581)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 920,215 603,923

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchases of property and equipment (6,070) (53,527)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 12,867 —
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Investing Activities 6,797 (53,527)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Payments on long-term debt (30,142) (31,247)
Dividends paid (700,000) (600,000)
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (730,142) (631,247)
Change In Cash 196,870 (80,851)
Cash — Beginning Of Year 1,095,399 1,176,250
Cash — End Of Year $ 1,292,269 $ 1,095,399

Supplemental Disclosure Of Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paid $ 220,198 $ 209,700
Interest paid $ 2,287 $ 4,260
Supplemental Disclosure Of Noncash Investing
And Financing Transactions
Property and equipment
acquired through noncash financing $ — $ 44,066

See the accompanying notes to financial statements



PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature Of Business And Significant Accounting Policies

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation (Panchero’s or the Company) was formed as a franchisor
for the purpose of developing and selling national franchises of Panchero’s Mexican Grill.
The Company is primarily engaged in the marketing and selling of franchise license
agreements and marketing and support services to existing franchises.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies follows:

Use Of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash

The Company places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. At times, such
amounts may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are primarily derived from weekly billings for royalties and advertising
fees from franchisees and amounts to be deposited by third-party service providers for gift
cards purchased by customers. At each balance sheet date, the Company recognizes an
expected allowance for credit losses. In addition, also at each reporting date, this estimate is
updated to reflect any changes in credit risk since the receivable was initially recorded. This
estimate is calculated on a pooled basis where similar risk characteristics exist. Accounts
receivable are evaluated individually when they do not share similar risks.

The allowance estimate is derived from a review of the Company’s historical losses based
on the aging of accounts receivable. This estimate is adjusted for management’s
assessment of current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts regarding future
events and any other factors deemed relevant by the Company. The Company believes
historical loss information is a reasonable starting point in which to calculate the expected
allowance for credit losses as the Company’s portfolio segment has remained constant
since the Company’s inception. However, due to economic statistic changes, the Company
is anticipating changes in the expected credit losses than those that have been incurred in
the past. As a result, management modified those factors in its allowance for credit losses.
The Company has determined that no allowance is required as of December 31, 2023 and
2022.




PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

The Company writes off receivables when there is information that indicates the debtor is
facing significant financial difficulty and there is no possibility of recovery. If any recoveries
are made from any accounts previously written off, they will be recognized in income or an
offset to credit loss expense in the year of recovery, in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy election.

Accounts receivable totaled $407,584, $443,256 and $351,809 at December 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021, respectively. Of these amounts $173,894, $185,133 and $170,180 related to gift
card deposits not yet received at December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Property And Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Major expenditures for improvements and those which substantially increase useful lives are
capitalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. When assets
are retired or otherwise disposed of, their costs and related accumulated depreciation or
amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are included in
income.

Property and equipment are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over
the assets’ estimated useful lives or the life of the lease, if shorter. For any lease
agreements between entities under common control, the Company depreciates leasehold
improvements that it owns over the leasehold improvements' useful life to the common
control group, regardless of lease term. The unamortized balance of leasehold
improvements as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $162,315 and $148,385,
respectively. The remaining useful life ranged from 10 to 37 years. The remaining term of
the lease is 10 years.

Leases

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception by considering whether
a contract explicitly or implicitly identifies assets deployed in the arrangement and whether
the Company has obtained substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
underlying assets and directs how and for what purpose the assets are used during the term
of the contract.

Operating lease assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the
lease term and operating lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease
payments arising from the lease. Operating lease assets and liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As
the lease agreements typically do not provide an implicit rate, the Company uses the risk-
free rate at the lease commencement date in determining the present value of lease
payments. Certain of the Company’s lease agreements include options to extend or
terminate the lease. The lease term takes into account these options to extend or terminate
the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option.
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Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

The Company made the following policy elections related to ongoing lease accounting:

e The Company excluded leases with original terms of 12 months or less from lease
assets and lease liabilities;

e The Company elected to account for lease and nonlease components separately.
Only lease components are included in the lease payment determination and

e For any lease agreements that do not contain an implicit interest rate, the Company
elected to use the risk-free rate in lieu of determining an incremental borrowing rate
appropriate for the lease term to determine the present value of lease payments.

Operating leases are included in operating lease asset, current maturities of operating lease
liability and long-term operating lease liability on the balance sheets. Lease expense is
included in general and administrative expenses on the statements of income and is
recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease term. Information regarding the
Company’s leases can be found in Note 3.

Investments

Investments in marketable equity securities are classified as available for sale and carried at
fair value as determined by quotations on publicly traded markets. Investment income
includes interest and dividend income and realized and unrealized gains and losses and is
included in other income on the statements of income.

Gift Card Liability

When a franchisee sells a gift card to a customer, the cash received is remitted to the
Company. When a franchisee’s customer uses the gift card at any location, the Company
reimburses the franchise store where the gift card was used. Gift cards do not carry an
expiration date; however, gift cards are generally redeemed within 12 months. A certain
number of gift cards will not be fully redeemed, referred to as breakage. Management
estimates unredeemed balances and recognizes breakage from these amounts within sales
on the statements of income. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
Company recognized breakage revenue of $41,925 and $48,562, respectively. The gift card
liability balance is a function of gift cards for which the gift card has been issued and cash
received by the Company, but for which reimbursement has not been provided by the
Company to the franchise store in which the gift card was redeemed, less estimated
breakage.

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000 shares of no-par value common stock and
100,000 shares of Class A no-par value, non-voting preferred stock. As of December 31,
2023 and 2022, there were 18,302 shares of common stock issued and outstanding and no
shares of Class A preferred stock issued and outstanding.




PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

The Company licenses intellectual property and trademarks to franchisees through franchise
agreements. These franchise agreements also provide for training and consulting provided
by the Company. As part of the franchise agreements, the Company receives an upfront
payment from the franchisee, which the Company recognizes on a straight-line basis over
the term of the franchise agreement, which is generally 10 years. The Company records a
contract liability for the unearned portion of the upfront franchise payments.

The Company also receives royalties and advertising fees from franchisees on the
franchisees’ respective sales. These revenues are recognized as the underlying sales occur
and are received weekly.

Management fees for company-managed stores are recognized over time as the supporting
services are provided based on the agreed upon price. Payment for management fees are
received weekly.

The Company earns marketing rebates on Coca-Cola products sold by the franchisees. The
Company allocates these rebates to the advertising fund for the benefit of franchise stores.
The revenue is recognized at a point in time when the franchises purchase gallons of syrup
from the supplier.

Revenue is measured based on consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The
Company groups similar contracts or similar performance obligations together into portfolios
of contracts as doing so does not result in a significant difference from applying the revenue
standard to individual contracts.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method whereby
deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, operating losses
and other carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases. A valuation allowance is provided against net
deferred tax assets when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. No valuation allowance was recorded by
the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties relating to income taxes in income tax
expense.

Advertising

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $2,122,641 and $1,869,636, respectively.
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Notes To Financial Statements (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 12, 2024, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standard Codification (ASC) 326, which significantly changed how entities measure credit
losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair
value through net income. The most significant change in this standard is a shift from the
incurred loss model to the expected loss model. Under the standard, disclosures are
required to provide users of the financial statements with useful information in analyzing a
company’s exposure to credit risk and the measurement of credit losses. Financial assets
held by the Company that are subject to the guidance in FASB ASC 326 were accounts
receivable.

The Company adopted the standard effective January 1, 2023. The impact of the adoption
was not considered material to the financial statements and primarily resulted in new and
enhanced disclosures only.

2. Property And Equipment

Property and equipment consists of:

2023 2022

Leasehold improvements $ 227,792 $ 227,792
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 291,437 285,367
Vehicles 279,548 305,696
798,777 818,855

Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization 547,504 505,057
$ 251,273 $ 313,798
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3. Lease Commitments And Related-Party Transactions

The Company leases office space from a related party under a non-cancellable lease
agreement that expires in January 2029 with a five-year renewal option that requires
escalating monthly rental payments starting at $7,815, plus the payment of common area
maintenance, taxes and other fees. The exercise of lease renewal options is at the
Company'’s sole discretion, and the Company considers these renewal options in
determining the lease term used to establish the operating lease asset and liability.
Commitments under the lease agreement are guaranteed by other related parties. Lease
expense in relation to this related-party lease was $96,009 for the years ended December
31, 2023 and 2022. The Company’s lease agreement does not contain any material residual
value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

The Company determines that a contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. In
evaluating whether the Company has the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether or not it has the right to control the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit from the use of the identified asset.

Other information:

2023 2022

Cash paid for amounts included in measurement

of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 93,785 $ 93,785

Weighted-average remaining lease term —

operating leases 10.08 years 11.08 years
Weighted-average discount rate —

operating leases 1.52% 1.52%

The following is a maturity analysis of the annual undiscounted cash flows of the operating
lease liability as of December 31, 2023:

Year Amount
2024 $ 96,969
2025 97,258
2026 97,258
2027 97,258
2028 97,258
Thereafter 543,024
1,029,025
Less: Imputed interest (76,091)

$ 952,934
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Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are $44,222 and
$38,269, respectively, for royalties and other fees from licensees that are related parties
through common ownership.

Sales for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 included $2,387,883 and
$2,260,776, respectively, from licensees that are related parties through common
ownership.

Expenses other than rent for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 included
$868,859 and $797,787, respectively, paid to licensees that are related parties through
common ownership.

4. Fair Value Measurements And Disclosures

The Company reports certain assets at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under
current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk.

Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are
inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information
available.

A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
can be accessed at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, inputs are
developed using the best information available in the circumstances.

12
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In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of
a particular input to the entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors
specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset or liability within the hierarchy
is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset or liability and does not necessarily
correspond to management’s assessment of the quality, risk or liquidity profile of the asset
or liability.

The Company’s investments are open-ended mutual funds with readily determinable fair
values based on daily redemption values and are categorized as Level 1 investments.

The following table presents the Company’s investments at cost basis and fair market value
as of December 31:

2023 2022
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Mutual funds $ 559,507 $ 1,000,991 $ 545,069 $ 792,545

The Company’s investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate,
market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities,
it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will
occur in the near-term and that such a change could materially affect the amounts reported
on the balance sheet and unrealized gain or loss on investments in the statements of
income.

13
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5. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of:

2023 2022

Note payable — finance company, due in monthly
installments of $793, including interest at 2.99%. Unpaid
principal and interest are due in February 2027. This
note is collateralized by the asset financed. $ 25,783 $ 36,905

Note payable — finance company, due in monthly
installments of $634, including interest at 4.49%. Unpaid
principal and interest are due in May 2025. This note is
collateralized by the asset financed. 10,418 17,379

Notes payable — finance company, due in monthly
installments totaling $888, including interest at 6.99%.
Unpaid principal and interest are due in April 2024.
These notes are collateralized by the assets financed. 3,497 13,523

Note payable — finance company, due in monthly
installments of $208, including interest at 9.00%. Note

was paid in full during the current year. — 2,033
39,698 69,840
Less: Current maturities 22,169 27,539

$ 17,529 $ 42,301

The future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Amount
2024 $ 22,169
2025 12,168
2026 5,361
$ 39,698
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Revenue Recognition

Disaggregation Of Revenue

Revenue is disaggregated by the timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations as
follows:

2023 2022

Performance obligations satisfied over time $ 7,525,476 $ 6,815,431
Performance obligations satisfied at a

point in time 283,395 236,551

$ 7,808,871 $ 7,051,982
Contract Liabilities
Contract liabilities consist of:
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 2021
Contract liabilities $ 503,111 $ 457,068 $ 380,735

Income Taxes

The federal and state income tax expense is summarized as follows for the years ended:

2023 2022
Current $ 274,548 $ 209,872
Deferred 28,400 (66,500)
$ 302,948 $ 143,372

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes. The major temporary differences that give rise to the deferred
tax assets and liabilities are depreciation and amortization of property and equipment,
unrealized gains and losses on investments, contract liabilities and prepaid commissions.
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The deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of:

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets $ 151,100 $ 137,400
Deferred tax liabilities (203,200) (161,100)

$ (52,100) $ (23,700)

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state
jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state
and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2020. Management
has determined that the Company does not have any uncertain tax positions and associated
unrecognized benefits that materially impact the financial statements or related disclosures.

8. Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering a wide range of
matters that arise in the ordinary course of its business activities. Management believes that
any liability that may result from the resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.
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LIST OF PANCHEROS FRANCHISED RESTAURANTS
As of December 31, 20232024

State Franchisee Contact Information Restaurant Address
Geo Trading, LLC .
' . The Center At Split Rock
George & Lou Kathrakis 704 Bridgeport Ave., Suite 103
19-BepedietCr
Shelton, CT 06484
Norwalk,-CT-06850
Connecticut | 203-838-0916 203-925-5880
ggﬁg:ﬁ\:giﬁ s, Inc. 893 North Colony Road
. Wallingford, CT 06492
64-Charing-Read
. 203-265-7778
Seuth-Windser-CT-06074
VIiPARTNERS ABACO, LLC*
BebJohn Robert Vipond &-Reb-ipendlV | 5440 Military Trail
Florida 203-Via-Emiha Jupiter, FL 33458
Palm- Beach-Gardens,FL-33418 561-469-7601
203-258-1884
Little Llama LLC L
. 7528 N. Grand Prairie Dr., Ste A
Thaddeus C_:hamberlam Peoria, IL 61615
5926-N-Briarwood-Lane
Peoria I 61614 309-966-2690
Ilinois *
?cl)\g:ihg: '\QAtJrlrli\lsCY LLC 3015 Broadway St.
| Quincy IL 62301
K K 1A 52 5'32 217-919-6527C
319-670-0706-
Central Coast Hospitality
Doug Ormsby & Dan Sacco 4888 Utica Ridge Rd.
) ' Davenport, IA 52807
Bettendorf, LA-52722
563-343-9804 563-359-3744
563-271-1172
Central Coast Hospitality
Doug Ormsby & Dan Sacco 4840 Asbury Rd.
5292 Taylor-Ave.
Dubuque, 1A 52002
BettendorftA-52722
563-343-0804 563-582-4999
lowa 563-271-1172
J & J Burritos, LLC
Jim Bird 30223024 5™ Ave South
2E2 B fenpue-Conih Fort Dodge, 1A 50501
ForDodap LA EOECL 515-576-0043
515-571-2026
MexiFresh |1 Inc.
Michelle & Tyson Robinson 8759 Northpark Drive
9055 Lenpham-Dr Johnston, 1A 50131
Johnston1A-50131 515-270-9100
5452507713
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 4
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State Franchisee Contact Information Restaurant Address
Mfcxr:;rleesg'fg 1 Rebinsan 165 S. Jordan Creek Parkway
; y Ste 115
: LA 50121 West Des Moines, |A 50266
- 5 515-223-5956
Central Coast Hospitality 5273 Competition Dr
Doug Ormsby & Dan Sacco Bettendort, 1A 52722
g Y 563-202-2337
Hawk,-Hay-and Bur, LLC 550 Grand Army of the Republic Hwy
HHB of Somerset, Inc Somerset, MA 02726
Massachusetts | Douglas Stack, Kevin O’Shea, Dustin 508-617-8139
DeBoer
203-747-1579
Pittsfield MeX|_can, LLC 3155 Ann Arbor Saline Road
Brad Turowski .
. . Suite C
. Ann Arbor, Ml 48103
Livonia;-M1-48154
N 734-332-4640
Michigan -
The Turowski Group, LLC
Brad Turowski 17390 Haggerty Rd
30200-Five-Mile Road Livonia, MI 48152
Livonia-M1-48152 734-432-7910
734-564-0140
*
BOLAR, LLC 5200 West 84th St.
200-N-Main-St-Ste 6 .
o Bloomington, MN 55437
Charles City; 1A-50616
952-767-6844
{641)228-3822
*
BOLAR, I.‘LC 7746 OlsenOlson Memorial Hwy
200-N-Main-St-Ste 6 Y
. ' Golden Valley, MN 55427
641 Y 763-544-3474
e e oy | 0y s
21851 Calmar Avenue Rochester, MN 55901
. 507-281-32803478
PriorakeMN-55372 E—
Minnesota
Mars Restaurant Group, LLC*
Steve Majkrzak 803 Belsly Blvd.
3521-SPolk-St- Moorhead, MN 56560
Fargo-ND-58104 218-477-1990
701-261-4251
*
BOLAR, I.‘LC 284 57" Avenue NE
200-N-Main-St-Ste 6 .
Lo Fridley, MN 55432
Charles City1A-50616
763-208-6681
{641)228-3822
BOLAR, LLC* 14750 Cedar Ave Suite 15150
200-N-Main-St-Ste-6 Apple Valley, MN 55124
Charles-City,+A-50616 952-388-1807
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 5
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State Franchisee Contact Information Restaurant Address
{641)-228-3822
*
BOLAR, I.‘LC 9610 Colorado Ln-9610 Colerade-Ln- N..
200 N-Main-St-Ste 6
Lo Brooklyn Park, MN 55445
Charles City, 1A-50616
763-205-2208951-3467
{641)228-3822 _—
*
BOLAR, I.‘LC 3845 Lexington Ave. North
200-N-Main-St-Ste 6 .
. ’ Arden Hills, MN 55126
(641) 208 ;E,EE 651-330-1513
BOLAR, LLC* 1820 Market Dr C
200-N-Main-St-Ste 6 Stillwater, MN 55082
Charles-City1A-50616 651-342-2156
{641)228-3822
BOLAR, LLC* 7855 EIm Creek Blvd North
200-N-Main-St-Ste-6 Maple Grove, MN 55369
Charles-City1A-50616 763-270-0301
{641)228-3822
Davis Fresh Mex LLC
Dick Davis 421 N. Stadium Blvd, Unit 101
838-EvergreenDr Columbia, MO 65203
Folion MO EEOET 573-445-3096
573-220-0287
Davis Fresh Mex LLC
Dick Davis 2900 Trimble Road, Suite 109
838-Evergreen-Dr Columbia, MO 65201
FultonMO-685251 573-447-2900
] ) 573-220-9287
Missouri -
Davis Fresh Mex LLC
Dick Davis 1101 Grindstone Parkway, Suite 101
838-Evergreen-Dr Columbia, MO 65201
FultonMO-685251 573-445-5633
573-220-9287
Davis Fresh Mex LLC
Dick Davis 2208 Missouri Blvd Ste. 100
S08-Everarop D Jefferson City, MO 65109
Fulton,-MO-65251 573-616-2893
573-220-9287
Knightsbridge Estates, LLC The Hills Village Center
Shabbir Bhalloo
Z.0akJ 402 Route 206 North
Bedminster, NJ 07921
Greenbrook;-NJ-08812
' 908-719-3100
New Jersey 908-334-5673
VARMLLC
Ravi-Senjaha-&-Vrjesh-Patel .
Bridgewater,-NJ-08807
4-Danberry-Lane
; #32-560-5500
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 6
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State Franchisee Contact Information Restaurant Address

908-698-1161
Flemington Fresh Mex, LLC
Kirit & Jagruti Patel 100 Reaville Rd, Ste 4
15-Manor-Drive Flemington, NJ 08822
Hillshorough,-NJ-08844 908-284-0026
908-359-7610
DMP FreshMex, LLC
Bilip-Naik-Mahul Patel;-and-Pranav-Besat | 691 Route 130 N, Suite F
727-Apple Ct. Hamilton, NJ 08691
Flemington,-NJ-08822 609-981-7200
609-799-4757
PT & MB, LLC
Phil Bruno & Theresa Bruno Evesboro Plaza

221 Greentree Road, Suite E
6-Jeannette Court
Manalapan_NJ-07726 Marlton, NJ 08053
7325672832 856-267-5357
'\Kﬂatiazas;iélF;r?Zhul\:ﬁ:}Dz; f Village at Cambridge Crossings

. 4325 Dearborn Cr.

4008-B—Saxeny-Drive

Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054
9563040585 856-787-1006
My Restaurant Franchise Group, LLC*
Mike Yurcho
6594‘%%6" - -

' 910 Haddonfield Berlin Rd

Santa-Barbara-GA-93109

Voorhees, NJ 08043
6.99_2@6-}9}2 856-784-7701
Jim Kolzow
112 Kraml-DrBurrRidge 160527
661-406-4992
Glassboro Freshmex, LLC
Katan Patel & Usha Patel 1058 N Delsea Drive
102 Oakmoent-Drive Glassboro, NJ 08028
Moeoorestown,-NJ-08057 856-956-3467
856-304-9585
Mry—PestorrantFranehice—Crous MREG
SICK LLC=
Mike Yurcho
650 Juanita-Ave; 115 N. Route 73
Santa-Barbara-CA-93109 West Berlin, NJ 08091
609-206-1017 856-335-4193
Jim Kolzow
2 raml DrBun-Ridge 60527
661-406-4992
JIN Foods, LLC
Phil Bruno & Theresa Bruno 1919 Route 35, Unit #303
6-Jeannette Court Wall Township, NJ 07719
Manalapan,-NJ-07726 (848)469-8960
732-567-2832

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 7
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State

Franchisee Contact Information

Restaurant Address

MREG TPC LLC

501 NJ-73, Suite A

Mike Yurcho Marlton, NJ 08053
Jim Kolzow 609-922-9566
MyeRestonrant Franchise Crann MIRFG 1871 Marlton Pike East
CHILL LLC=® Cherry Hill, NJ 08003
_Mike Yurcho 856-520-8342

650 Juanita-Ave;

Santa-Barbara-CA-93109

609-206-1017

Jim Kolzow

112 Kraml-DrBurr Ridge, 1160527

661-406-4992

North Dakota

Mars Restaurant Group, LLC*
Steve Majkrzak
3521 S-Polk-St.

gl Lelos
FOL e 0EL

1225 W. Century Ave.
Bismarck, ND 58503
701-751-2021

Mars Restaurant Group, LLC*
Steve Majkrzak

4360 13th Ave S,

3521 SPolk-St: Fargo, ND 58103

Farge-NDB-58104 (701) 478-8090

701-261-4251

e LisE Lsale O
Bismarck, ND 58503

1;.§;.§ AR 701-751-3255

Mars Restaurant Group, LLC*

Pennsylvania

. 711 S 3rd St

Sg tgeg"]e EMaFJklrlzagk Bismarck, ND 58504
F 'F E 58]@ | 701-751-2578
701-261-4251
Panna Fresh Mex LLC 2011 Shoppes Blvd.
Kirit Patel & Jagruti Patel Building2000
15-Manor-Drive Building 2000
=llsborene i 0884 Moosic, PA 18507
908-359-7610 570-348-9300
Panch-PA;AB Foods Spring House LLC*
Alex-and-Marla-Dergahis
1087-Mount Eyre-Road .

. ) Phil 1105 N Bethlehem Pike Ste. F
Washington—Crossing;—PA—18977Phil .
B Spring House, PA 19477
Ajay Ahluwalia 215-628-8226

PanchMedia;AB Foods Media LLC

Fhomas-Gillespie
1111 Marlkress-Rd-Ste-102

GCherry-Hil-NJ-08003Phil Bruno

503 E Baltimore Ave
Media, PA 19063
484-442-8076

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 8
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State Franchisee Contact Information

Restaurant Address

Ajay Ahluwalia

Grilles LLC
Paul Mosey
PO Box-8391

605-431-8207

Two Lefties' and Pancho's Mexican

1221 W. Omaha St.
Rapid City, SD 57701
605-718-2251

South Dakota | 2003 Heliday \Way
712-330-1650

Burrito Brothers, Inc.*
Patrick, Justin and Benjamin Miller

; Eebeii! Iguu& 51355

4824 S. Louise Avenue
Sioux Falls, SD 57106
605-271-2544

Patrick—Miler,
Benjamin Miller

2003-Holiday-Way
712-330-1650

Burrito Brothers, Inc.*
MiHer—and

; Eebeii! Iguu& 51355

1503 W. 415t Street
Sioux Falls, SD 57105
605-271-3141

Mitch Price

319-631-1328

Madtown Investment Group, LLC

Wisconsin 940 FamarackTra
lowa CitytA-52245

6309 McKee Rd, Ste 100
Fitchburg, W1 53719
608-298-9800

* Area Developer

Franchisees with Signed Franchise Agreements but Restaurant Not Open
As of December 31, 20232024

State Franchisee Contact-lrformatiorName

Contact Information

PJH Franchises, LLC

lowa Phil HemmingCentral-Coast-Hospitality

5292 Taylor753 182" Ave
BettendorfPella, 1A 52722563-209-

317750219
641-780-5459

Mexifresh |11, Inc

Michelle & Tyson Robinson R34

753182 Ave
Pela9055 Lenham Dr.
Johnston, 1A 5021950131

eonehices LLO
.y T 515-250-7713641-780-5459
838 Evergreen Dr
Fulton, MO 65251
573-220-9287Mike-Yurcho
MREGTFRCLLC 650 Juanita-Ave;
New Mike-Yurcho-& JamesKolzow Santa-Barbara-CA-93109
JerseyMissour | Dick Davis 609-206-1017
i
Jeale zey
112 Kraml-DrBurr Ridge 160527
661-406-4992

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation
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State Franchisee Contact-lnrformatiorName Contact Information

List of Former Franchisees as of December 31, 20232024

Franchisees who have had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or
involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during the most recently completed fiscal
year, December 31, 20232024, or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the date of this
disclosure document:

Franchisee Name Contact Information Additional Information
AK ManagementVIRJI, LLC Bridgewater, NJ 421 N—Stadium—Blvd—Unit
Adam—KaufmanRavi Senjalia & Vrijesh w 101 )
3408 Saint Charles Rd Columbia—MO 65203
Patel . o :
ColumbiaMO-65201 Outletstill-operational;
319-270-0189 transferred-to-new-ownerNot
Renewed
2000 Trimbl “sul
3408 Saint Charles Rd 100
Ak-ManagementPanch PA, LLC Celumbia-MO-65201 Columbia. MO 65201
AdamKaufmanAlex Dergalis & Thomas | 3¥9-270-6389Spring House, | gutlet—stil—operationak:
Gillespie PA transferred— to— new
215-628-8226 ownerTransferred  to New
Owner
1101-Grindstone-Parkway
3408 Saint Charles Rd Suite 101
AK-ManagementPanchMedia, LLC Columbia-MO-65201 Columbia_MO65201
Adam—KaufmanThomas Gillespie, Alex | 3+9-270-0189Media, PA Outlet—still—operationak:
Dergalis, Marla Dergalis 484-442-8076 transferred to new
ownerTransferred to  New
Owner
319-270-6189 transferred to new owner

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
franchise system.

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 10 Exhibit G
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GENERAL RELEASE LANGUAGE
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PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
GRANT OF FRANCHISOR CONSENT AND FRANCHISEE RELEASE

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION (“we,” “us,” or “our”) and the undersigned,
(“you” or “your”), currently are parties to a
certain [Franchise or Area Development Agreement] (the “Agreement”) dated
, 20___. You have asked us to take the following action or to agree to the following
request: [insert as appropriate for renewal or transfer situation]

We have the right under the Agreement to obtain a general release from you (and, if applicable, your owners)
as a condition of taking this action or agreeing to this request. Therefore, we are willing to take the action or agree to
the request specified above if you (and, if applicable, your owners) give us the release and covenant not to sue provided
below in this document. You (and, if applicable, your owners) are willing to give us the release and covenant not to
sue provided below as partial consideration for our willingness to take the action or agree to the request described
above.

Consistent with the previous introduction, you, on your own behalf and on behalf of your successors, heirs,
executors, administrators, personal representatives, agents, assigns, partners, shareholders, members, directors,
officers, principals, employees, and affiliated entities (collectively, the “Releasing Parties”), hereby forever release
and discharge us and our current and former officers, directors, shareholders, principals, employees, agents,
representatives, affiliated entities, successors, and assigns (collectively, the “Panchero’s Parties”) from any and all
claims, damages (known and unknown), demands, causes of action, suits, duties, liabilities, and agreements of any
nature and kind (collectively, “Claims”) that you and any of the other Releasing Parties now has, ever had, or, but for
this document, hereafter would or could have against any of the Panchero’s Parties (1) arising out of or related to the
Panchero’s Parties' obligations under the Agreement or (2) otherwise arising from or related to your and the other
Releasing Parties' relationship, from the beginning of time to the date of your signature below, with any of the
Panchero’s Parties. You, on your own behalf and on behalf of the other Releasing Parties, further covenant not to sue
any of the Panchero’s Parties on any of the Claims released by this paragraph and represent that you have not assigned
any of the Claims released by this paragraph to any individual or entity who is not bound by this paragraph.

We also are entitled to a release and covenant not to sue from your owners. By his, her, or their separate
signatures below, your owners likewise grant to us the release and covenant not to sue provided above.

The following language applies only to transactions governed by the
Maryland Franchise Reqgistration and Disclosure Law

The release provided above will not apply to the extent prohibited by the Maryland Franchise Registration
and Disclosure Law. You may commence a lawsuit against us in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION

[Name of Franchisee/ or Area Developer]

By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

[Name of Owner]

[Signature]
Date:

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 1 Exhibit H
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EXHIBIT I
TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE ADDENDA AND AGREEMENT RIDERS
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NASAA REQUIRED MODIFICATIONS TO ITEM 22 OF THE FDD -

IN ADDITION TO CERTAIN STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA THAT FOLLOW, THE
FOLLOWING LANGAUGE SHALL BE APPLICABLE IN CALIFORNIA, HAWAII, ILLINOIS,
INDIANA, MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, NEW YORK, NORTH DAKOTA,
RHODE ISLAND, SOUTH DAKOTA, VIRGINIA, WASHINGTON, OR WISCONSIN.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise.
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR USE IN ILLINOIS

THIS RIDER is made this __ day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement

dated , 20__ that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this

Rider (the “Franchise Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise Agreement.
This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer or sale of the franchise for the Franchised Restaurant that
Franchisee will operate under the Franchise Agreement was made in the State of Illinois and the Franchised
Restaurant will be operated in Illinois, and/or (b) Franchisee is a resident of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Attorney General's Office requires that certain provisions contained in
franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Illinois law, including the Franchise Disclosure Act
of 1987 (“Act”), 815 ILCS 705/1-44. To the extent that this Franchise Agreement contains provisions that
are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

a. Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act paragraphs 705/19 and 705/20 provide rights to you
concerning nonrenewal and termination of this Franchise Agreement. If this Franchise
Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.

b. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Act, any condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with
the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

C. Any provision that designates jurisdiction or venue or requires Franchisee to agree to
jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any cause of
action which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois. Therefore to the extent that the Franchise
Agreement is inconsistent with Illinois law, lllinois law will control.

d. Any release of claims or acknowledgment of fact contained in this Franchise Agreement
that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or
action that would violate the Act, or a rule or order under the Act shall be void and is hereby
deleted with respect to claims under the Act.

3. Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any
franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Act, or any law of the State of Illinois is void.
However, this provision shall not prevent any person from entering into a settlement agreement or executing
a general release regarding a potential or actual lawsuit filed under any of the provisions of the Act, nor
shall it prevent the arbitration of any claim pursuant to the provisions of Title 9 of the United States Code.

4. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise,

5. All other provisions of this Franchise Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed.
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[The Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, intending to be legally bound, have duly executed and
delivered this Rider on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:
Title:
Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:
By:
Name:
Title:

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation Exhibit |
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR USE IN ILLINOIS

THIS RIDER is made this __day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20_ that has been signed concurrently with the signing
of this Rider (the “Area Development Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) Developer is a resident of Illinois and/or
(b) the Franchised Restaurant(s) will be located or operated in the State of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Attorney General's Office requires that certain provisions contained in
franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Illinois law, including the Franchise Disclosure Act
of 1987 (“Act”), 815 ILCS 705/1-44. To the extent that this Area Development Agreement contains
provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

a. Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act paragraphs 705/19 and 705/20 provide rights to you
concerning nonrenewal and termination of this Area Development Agreement. If this Area
Development Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will
control.

b. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

C. Any provision that designates jurisdiction or venue or requires Developer to agree to
jurisdiction or venue in a forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any cause of
action which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois. Therefore, to the extent that the Area
Development Agreement is inconsistent with Illinois law, Illinois law will control.

d. Any release of claims or acknowledgment of fact contained in this Area Development
Agreement that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement,
misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule or order under the Act shall
be void and is hereby deleted with respect to claims under the Act.

e. If this Area Development Agreement requires a jury trial waiver, to the extent that such
provision conflicts with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, the Act will control.

3. Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any
franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Act, or any law of the State of Illinois is void.
However, this provision shall not prevent any person from entering into a settlement agreement or executing
a general release regarding a potential or actual lawsuit filed under any of the provisions of the Act, nor
shall it prevent the arbitration of any claim pursuant to the provisions of Title 9 of the United States Code.

4. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise,

5. All other provisions of this Area Development Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, intending to be legally bound, have duly executed and
delivered this Rider on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:
Title:
Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER:

Print Name:
By:
Name:
Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR USE IN MARYLAND

THIS RIDER is made this __day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor™), and

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20___that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider
(the “Franchise Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise Agreement. This
Rider is being signed because (a) Franchisee is a resident of the State of Maryland and/or (b) Franchisee’s
Franchised Restaurant will be located or operated in Maryland.

2. WITNESSETH. The following language is added to the end of the sixth paragraph: Such
representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel, or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. Releases. The following language is added to the end of Section 2.B.11. of the Franchise
Agreement, entitted TERM AND RENEWAL, and Section 16.D.6. of the Franchise Agreement, entitled
TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST:

“, provided, however, that the general release will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

4. Bankruptcy. The following language is added to the end of Section 14.B.10. of the
Franchise Agreement, entitled DEFAULT AND TERMINATION:

“Termination upon Franchisee’s insolvency might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law
(11 U.S.C. Sections 101 et seq.).”

5. Applicable Law. Section 26.A. of the Franchise Agreement is supplemented with the
following language:

A. This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor.
This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall
prevail in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15, U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq.). Despite anything to the contrary stated above,
Maryland law will apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

B. Franchisee agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be
brought exclusively in a state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains its principal place
of business as the time the action is initiated; however nothing in this section affects Franchisee’s right
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law to sue in Maryland for claims arising under
that law. The parties do hereby waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of
carrying out this provision.

6. Limitation of Claims. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Franchise
Agreement, any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be
brought within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise.

7. Acknowledgments. SeetionSections 24.D, 25.B, 29.A and 30 of the Franchise Agreement
shall be deleted in itstheir entirety-and-replaced-with. For the avoidance of doubt, the following language
shall be added to the end of the Franchise Agreement:
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“ No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise. Such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel, or waiver of
any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in duplicate the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MARYLAND

THIS RIDER is made this day of , by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20___ that has been signed concurrently with the
signing of this Rider (the “Area Development Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the
Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) Developer is a resident of Maryland
and/or (b) the Franchised Restaurant(s) will be located or operated in the State of Maryland.

2. WITNESSETH. The following language is added at the end of Section 20.(g):

“Such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel, or waiver of any
liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

3. Releases. The following language is added to the end of Section 8.(d) of the Area
Development Agreement, entitled TRANSFERABILITY:

“, provided, however, that the general release will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

4, Bankruptcy. The following language is added to the end of Section 7.(b) of the Area
Development Agreement, entitled DEFAULT AND TERMINATION:

“Termination upon Developer’s insolvency might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law
(11 U.S.C. Sections 101 et seq.).”

5. Applicable Law. Section 17.(a) and Section 17.(b) of the Area Development Agreement
are supplemented with the following language:

6) This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor.
This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall
prevail in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq.). Despite anything to the contrary stated above,
Maryland law will apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

(b) Developer agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be
brought and maintained exclusively in the state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains
its principal place of business at the time the action is initiated, and the parties do hereby waive all questions
of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of carrying out this provision and the parties, further,
agree to waive trial by jury; however nothing in this section affects Developer’s right under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law to sue in Maryland for claims arising under that law.

6. Limitation of Claims. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Area
Development Agreement, any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise.

7. Acknowledgments.
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“No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. Such
representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel, or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law-2. Accordingly, the following language
shall be deleted from the Area Development Agreement in its entirety:

a)

The last recital on the first page that reads:

b)

“WHEREAS, Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of and Developer acknowledges that
it has not received nor relied upon any warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to the
revenues, profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement.
Developer acknowledges that it has read this Agreement and Franchisor's franchise disclosure
document and that it has no knowledge of any representations by Franchisor, or its officers,
directors, shareholders, employees or agents that are contrary to the statements made in
Franchisor's franchise disclosure document or to the terms herein.”

Section 3(f) that reads:

C)

Developer acknowledges and agrees that it has conducted an independent investigation of
the business contemplated under this Agreement, that Developer fully understands its
obligations under this Agreement, and that Developer recognizes and assumes all associated
risks. In addition, Developer acknowledges that Franchisor makes no representation: (i) that
the Development Area contains a sufficient number of acceptable locations to meet the number
of Restaurants to be developed under the Development Schedule; nor (ii) that the Development
Area is sufficient to economically support the number of Restaurants to be developed under
the Development Schedule. Developer further acknowledges that it has performed all related
and necessary due diligence before its execution of this Agreement and that, accordingly,
Developer assumes the risk of identifying a sufficient number of acceptable locations within
the Territory and the economic risk of developing the number of Restaurants set forth in the
Development Schedule.

Section 19 that reads:

d)

CAVEAT

THE SUCCESS OF THE BUSINESS VENTURE CONTEMPLATED TO BE
UNDERTAKEN BY DEVELOPER BY VIRTUE OF THIS AGREEMENT 1S
SPECULATIVE AND DEPENDS, TO A LARGE EXTENT, UPON THE ABILITY OF
DEVELOPER AS AN INDEPENDENT BUSINESSPERSON, AND HIS/HER ACTIVE
PARTICIPATION IN THE DAILY AFFAIRS OF THE BUSINESS AS WELL AS OTHER
FACTORS. FRANCHISOR DOES NOT MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR
WARRANTY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED AS TO THE POTENTIAL SUCCESS OF THE
BUSINESS VENTURE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

Section20 that reads:

21. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
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(a) Developer represents and acknowledges that it has received, read and understood
this Agreement and Franchisor's franchise disclosure document; and that Franchisor has fully
and adequately explained the provisions of each to Developer's satisfaction; and that Franchisor
has accorded Developer ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of its own
choosing about the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.

(b) Developer has been advised to consult with its own advisors with respect to the
legal, financial and other aspects of this Agreement, the business franchised hereby and the
prospects for that business. Developer has either consulted with such advisors or has
deliberately declined to do so.

(c) The covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement are fair and reasonable
and will not impose any undue hardship on Developer, since Developer has other considerable
skills, experience and education which afford Developer the opportunity to derive income from
other endeavors.

(d) Developer affirms that all information set forth in any and all applications,
financial statements and submissions to Franchisor is true, complete and accurate in all
respects, with Developer expressly acknowledging that Franchisor is relying upon the
truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of such information.

(e) Developer has conducted an independent investigation of the business
contemplated by this Agreement and recognizes that, like any other business, an investment in
a PANCHEROS Franchised Restaurant involves business risks and that the success of the
venture is primarily dependent upon the business abilities and efforts of Developer.

(f)_Developer further acknowledges that Franchisor makes no representation: (i) that
Developer’s Development Area contains a sufficient number of acceptable locations to meet
the number of Franchised Restaurants to be developed under the Development Schedule; or (ii)
that Developer’s Development Area is sufficient to economically support the number of
Franchised Restaurants to be developed under the Development Schedule. Developer
acknowledges that Developer has performed all related and necessary due diligence before
your _execution of this Agreement and that, accordingly, Developer assumes the risk of
identifying a sufficient number of acceptable locations within the Development Area, and the
economic risk of developing the agreed-upon number of Franchised Restaurants within the
Development Area.

(q) Developer understands and acknowledges that all representations of fact contained
herein are made solely by Franchisor. All documents, including Developer’s Area
Development Agreement and franchise disclosure document and all exhibits thereto, have been
prepared solely in reliance upon representations made and information provided by Franchisor,
its officers and its directors.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in
duplicate on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR USE IN MINNESOTA

THIS RIDER is made this __day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement
dated , 20 that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this
Rider (the “Franchise Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise Agreement.
This Rider is being signed because (a) Franchisee’s Franchised Restaurant will be located or operated in
Minnesota and/or (b) the offer or sale of the franchise for the Franchised Restaurant that Franchisee will
operate under the Franchise Agreement was made in the State of Minnesota.

2. Releases. The following language is added to the end of Section 2.B.11. of the Franchise
Agreement, entitled TERM AND RENEWAL, and Section 16.D.6. of the Franchise Agreement, entitled
TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST:

“provided, however, that such general releases will not apply to the extent prohibited by applicable
law with respect to claims which arise under Minn. Rule 2860.4400D.”

3. The following language is added to the end of SectionsSection 2.C. of the Franchise
Agreement, entitted TERM AND RENEWAL, and Article 14 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled
DEFAULT AND TERMINATION:

“WITH RESPECT TO FRANCHISES GOVERNED BY MINNESOTA LAW, FRANCHISOR
WILL COMPLY WITH MINN. STAT. §80C.14, SUBDS. 3, 4, AND 5 WHICH REQUIRE, EXCEPT IN
CERTAIN SPECIFIED CASES, THAT FRANCHISEE BE GIVEN 90 DAYS’ NOTICE OF
TERMINATION (WITH 60 DAYS TO CURE) AND 180 DAYS’ NOTICE FOR NON-RENEWAL OF
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.”

44, The following language is added to the end of Section 4.H. of the Franchise Agreement:

“NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute 604.113, which puts a cap of $30 on service
charges.”

5. The third sentence of Section 6.C. of the Franchise Agreement, entitled PROPRIETARY
MARKS, is deleted and replaced with the following:

“Upon receipt of timely notice of an action, claim or demand against Franchisee relating to the
Marks, Franchisor and/or LDIP shall, to the extent required by Minnesota Stat. 880C.12, Subd. 1(g), protect
any rights Franchisee may have to use the proprietary marks.”

56. Section 13(c)(2) shall be deleted from the Franchise Agreement in its entirety as required
by Minnesota Statutes, Section 181.991, which prohibits franchisors from restricting, restraining or
prohibiting in any way a franchisee from soliciting or hiring an employee of a franchisee of the same
franchisor or of the franchisor.

7. Applicable Law. The following language is added to the end of Sections 26.A. and 26.B.
of the Franchise Agreement:

“MINN. STAT. 8§880C.21 AND MINN. RULE 2860.4400J PROHIBIT FRANCHISOR FROM
REQUIRING LITIGATION TO BE CONDUCTED OUTSIDE MINNESOTA. IN ADDITION,
NOTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OR AGREEMENT CAN ABROGATE
OR REDUCE ANY OF FRANCHISEE’S RIGHTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN MINNESOTA STATUTES,
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CHAPTER 80C, OR FRANCHISEE’S RIGHTS TO ANY PROCEDURE, FORUM, OR REMEDIES
PROVIDED FOR BY THE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION.”

[The Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in duplicate the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR USE IN MINNESOTA

THIS RIDER is made this day of , by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20 that has been signed concurrently with the
signing of this Rider (the “Area Development Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the
Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer or sale of the franchise for
the Restaurant(s) that Developer will develop under the Area Development Agreement was made in the
State of Minnesota and/or (b) the Restaurant(s) will be located or operated in the State of Minnesota.

2. Assignment. The following language is added to the end of Section 8.(d) of the Area
Development Agreement, entitled TRANSFERABILITY:

“provided, however, that such general releases will not apply to the extent prohibited by applicable
law with respect to claims which arise under Minn. Rule 2860.4400D.”

33. Covenants. Section 9(c)(ii) shall be deleted from the Area Development Agreement in its
entirety as required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 181.991, which prohibits franchisors from restricting,
restraining or prohibiting in any way a franchisee from soliciting or hiring an employee of a franchisee of
the same franchisor or of the franchisor. In addition, the last sentence of Section (9)(d) of the Area
Development Agreement that reads: “Developer also covenants not to hire Franchisor's or Affiliate's
employees during this two (2) vear period” shall also be deleted in its entirety in accordance with the same
statutory section.

4. Applicable Law. The following language is added to the end of Section 17.(a) and Section
17.(b) of the Area Development Agreement:

“MINN. STAT. 880C.21 AND MINN. RULE 2860.4400J PROHIBIT FRANCHISOR FROM
REQUIRING LITIGATION TO BE CONDUCTED OUTSIDE MINNESOTA. IN ADDITION,
NOTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OR AGREEMENT CAN ABROGATE
OR REDUCE ANY OF DEVELOPER’S RIGHTS AS PROVIDED FOR IN MINNESOTA STATUTES,
CHAPTER 80C, OR DEVELOPER’S RIGHTS TO ANY PROCEDURE, FORUM, OR REMEDIES
PROVIDED FOR BY THE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this Rider
in duplicate on the day and year first above written.
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ATTEST:

Print Name:

ATTEST/WITNESS:

PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

DEVELOPER:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:




RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR USE IN NEW YORK

THIS RIDER is made this __day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20___that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider
(the “Franchise Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise Agreement. This
Rider is being signed because (a) the offer or sale of the franchise for the Franchised Restaurant that
Franchisee will operate under the Franchise Agreement was made in the State of New York, and/or (b)
Franchisee is a resident of New York and will operate the Franchised Restaurant in New York.

2. Releases. The following language is added to the end of Section 2.B.11. of the Franchise
Agreement, entitled TERM AND RENEWAL, and Section 16.D.6. of the Franchise Agreement, entitled
TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST:

“, provided, however, that all rights Franchisee enjoys and any causes of action arising in
Franchisee’s favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York
and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of the proviso that the non-
waiver provisions of GBL 687 and 687.5 be satisfied.”

3. Termination by Franchisee. The following language is added to the end of Section 14.A. of the
Franchise Agreement:

“Franchisee also may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the
provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.”

4, Assignment. The following language is added to the end of Section 16.A. of the Franchise
Agreement, entitled TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST:

“However, to the extent required by applicable law, no assignment will be made except to an
assignee who, in Franchisor’s good faith judgment, is willing and able to assume Franchisor’s obligations
under this Agreement.”

5. Modification of the System; Entire Agreement. The following language is added to the end of
Sections 7.B. and Article 24 of the Franchise Agreement:

“Modifications to the Confidential Operations Manual will not unreasonably affect Franchisee’s
obligations, including economic requirements, under this Agreement.”

6. Applicable Law. The following language is added to the end of Sections 26.A. and 26.B. of the
Franchise Agreement:

“: however, the governing choice of law shall not be considered a waiver of any right conferred
upon Franchisee by the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.”

[The Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in duplicate the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR USE IN NEW YORK

THIS RIDER is made this day of , by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and

(“Developer™).
1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated , 20 that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this

Rider (the “Area Development Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer or sale of the franchise for the
Franchised Restaurant(s) that Developer will develop under the Area Development Agreement was made
in the State of New York and/or (b) Developer is a resident of New York and the Franchised Restaurant(s)
will be located or operated in the State of New York.

2. Releases. The following language is added to the end of Section 8.(d) of the Area Development
Agreement, entitled TRANSFERABILITY:

“, provided, however, that all rights Developer enjoys and any causes of action arising in
Developer’s favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York
and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of the proviso that the non-
waiver provisions of GBL 687 and 687.5 be satisfied.”

3. Termination. The following language is added to the end of Article 7. of the Area Development
Agreement, entitled DEFAULT AND TERMINATION:

“Developer also may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the
provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.”

4, Assignment. The following language is added to the end of Section 8.(a) of the Area Development
Agreement, entitled TRANSFERABILITY:

; however, to the extent required by applicable law, no assignment will be made except to an
assignee who, in Franchisor’s good faith judgment, is willing and able to assume Franchisor’s obligations
under this Agreement.”

5. Applicable Law. The following language is added to the end of Sections 17.(a) and 17.(b) of the
Area Development Agreement:

‘. however, the governing choice of law shall not be considered a waiver of any right conferred
upon Developer by the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.”

[The Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this Rider
in duplicate on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

THIS RIDER is made this __day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor™), and

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20___that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider
(the “Franchise Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise Agreement. This
Rider is being signed because (a) Franchisee is a resident of the State of North Dakota and Franchisee’s
Franchised Restaurant will be located or operated in North Dakota and/or (b) the offer or sale of the
franchise for the Franchised Restaurant(s) that Franchisee will operate under the Franchise Agreement was
made in the State of North Dakota.

2. Releases. The following language is added to the end of section 2.B.11. of the Franchise
Agreement, entitled TERM AND RENEWAL, and Section 16.D.6. of the Franchise Agreement, entitled
TRANSFERABILITY OF INTEREST:

*“; however, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply
to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.”

3. Covenants Not to Compete. The following language is added to the end of Section 13.D.
of the Franchise Agreement:

“Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered unenforceable
In the State of North Dakota.”

4. Termination/Liquidated Damages. The following language is added to the end of Section
15.F. of the Franchise Agreement:

“The Commissioner has determined termination or liquidated damages to be unfair, unjust
and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.
However, Franchisor and Franchisee agree to enforce these provisions to the extent the law allows.”

5. Applicable Law. Section 26.A. and Section 26.B. of the Franchise Agreement are
supplemented with the following language:

(@ This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor. This
Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall prevail
in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of
1946 (Lanham Act, 15, U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq.); however, to the extent required by the North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law, North Dakota law will apply to this Agreement.

(b) Franchisee agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be brought and
maintained exclusively in the state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains its principal
place of business at the time the action is initiated; however, to the extent required by North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law, Franchisee may bring an action in North Dakota. The parties do hereby waive
all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of carrying out this provision.

The Commissioner has determined waiver of trial by jury and waiver of exemplary and punitive
damages to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law. However, Franchisor and Franchisee agree to enforce these provisions to the
extent the law allows.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in duplicate the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

THIS RIDER made this __ day of , by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an lIllinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475
Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and

(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development

Agreement dated , 20___ that has been signed concurrently with the

signing of this Rider (the “Area Development Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the
Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer or sale of the franchise for
the Franchised Restaurant(s) that Developer will develop under the Area Development Agreement was
made in the State of North Dakota and/or (b) Developer is a resident of North Dakota and the Franchised
Restaurant(s) will be located or operated in the State of North Dakota.

2. Releases. The following language is added to the end of Section 8.(d) of the Area
Development Agreement, entitled TRANSFERABILITY:

“ however, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply
to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.”

3. Covenants Not to Compete. The following language is added to the end of Sections 9.(c)
and 9.(d) of the Area Development Agreement:

“Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered unenforceable
in the State of North Dakota.”

4, Applicable Law. Section 17.(a) and Section 17.(b) of the Area Development Agreement
are supplemented with the following language:

(@) This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor.
This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall
prevail in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq.); however, to the extent required by the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law, North Dakota law will apply to this Agreement.

(b) Developer agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be
brought and maintained exclusively in a state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains
its principal place of business at the time the action is initiated, and the parties do hereby waive all questions
of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of carrying out this provision and the parties, further,
agree to waive trial by jury; however, to the extent required by North Dakota Franchise Investment Law,
Developer may bring an action in North Dakota.

5. Waivers. The Commissioner has determined waiver of trial by jury and waiver of
exemplary and punitive damages to be unfair, unjust and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09
of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. However, Franchisor and Developer agree to enforce these
provisions to the extent the law allows.

[The Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this Rider
in duplicate on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:

Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR USE IN RHODE ISLAND

THIS RIDER is made this __day of , 20__ by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an Illinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475 Coral
Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20___ that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider (the
“Franchise Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise Agreement. This Rider is
being signed because (a) Franchisee is a resident of the State of Rhode Island and Franchisee’s Franchised
Restaurant will be located or operated in Rhode Island and/or (b) the offer or sale of the franchise for the
Franchised Restaurant(s) that Franchisee will operate under the Franchise Agreement was made in the State of
Rhode Island.

2. Applicable Law. Sections 26.A and 26.B of the Franchise Agreement are supplemented with
the following:

“26.A  This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor. Except
as required by applicable law with respect to claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act,
this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall prevail
in the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946
(Lanham Act, 15, U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq).

26.B  Franchisee agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be brought
and maintained exclusively in a state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains its principal
place of business at the time the action is initiated, except as required by applicable law with respect to claims
arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act. The parties do hereby waive all questions of personal
jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of carrying out this provision.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in duplicate the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:
Print Name: Name:

Title:

Date:

ATTEST/WITNESS: FRANCHISEE:

Print Name:

By:

Name:

Title:
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RIDER TO THE PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE CORPORATION
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR USE IN RHODE ISLAND

THIS RIDER made this __ day of , by and between PANCHERO’S
FRANCHISE CORPORATION, an Illinois corporation, having its principal place of business at 2475 Coral
Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241 (“Franchisor”), and
(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20___ that has been signed concurrently with the signing of
this Rider (the “Area Development Agreement”). This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer or sale of the franchise for the
Franchised Restaurant(s) that Developer will develop under the Area Development Agreement was made in the
State of Rhode Island and/or (b) Developer is a resident of Rhode Island and the Franchised Restaurant(s) will
be located or operated in the State of Rhode Island.

2. Applicable Law. Subsections 17.(a) and 17.(b) of the Franchise Agreement are supplemented
with the following:

@ This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor. Except as
required by applicable law with respect to claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, this
Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of lowa, which laws shall prevail in
the event of any conflict of law, except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946
(Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. sections 1051 et seq.).

(b) Developer agrees that any action sought to be brought by either party shall be brought and
maintained exclusively in a state or federal court in the county in which Franchisor maintains its principal place
of business at the time the action is initiated, except as required by applicable law with respect to claims arising
under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, and the parties do hereby waive all questions of personal
jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of carrying out this provision and the parties, further, agree to waive trial
by jury.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this Rider in
duplicate on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: PANCHERO’S FRANCHISE
CORPORATION:

By:
Print Name: Name:
Title:
Date:
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ATTEST/WITNESS: DEVELOPER:

Print Name:
By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBITJ
PRE-CLOSING QUESTIONNAIRE
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PRE-CLOSING QUESTIONNAIRE

[To be completed by Franchisee and all Owners before signing Franchise Agreement]

DO NOT COMPLETE IF YOU ARE LOCATED, OR YOUR FRANCHISED
BUSINESS WILL BE LOCATED IN: CALIFORNIA, HAWAIIL, ILLINOIS,
INDIANA, MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, NEW YORK, NORTH
DAKOTA, RHODE ISLAND, SOUTH DAKOTA, VIRGINIA, WASHINGTON, OR
WISCONSIN.

As you know, you and Panchero’s Franchise Corporation (the “Franchisor”) are about to enter

into a franchise agreement for the development, opening and operation of a PANCHEROS®
franchised outlet (the “Outlet”). The purpose of this Questionnaire is to determine if any
improper sales practices have occurred, including, whether any statements or promises were
made to you. Franchisor has not authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading.
Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest and complete
responses to each question. The answers you provide in this Questionnaire are material to
Franchisor and Franchisor is relying on all such answers in agreeing to enter into a
franchise relationship with you.

1. Have you received and personally reviewed Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure
Document?

Yes No

2. Did you sign a receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document indicating the date

you received it?

Yes No
3. Have you received and personally reviewed the Panchero’s Franchise Corporation
Franchise Agreement and all accompanying Exhibits?

Yes No
4. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement, representation or promise concerning the revenue, profits or operating costs of a
PANCHEROS® OQutlet operated by Franchisor or any of its affiliates?

Yes No

5. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement, representation (aside from the disclosure provided in Item 19 of the FDD) or
promise concerning the revenue, profits or operating costs of a PANCHEROS® Outlet
operated by a franchisee?

Yes No

6. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement or promise concerning any PANCHEROS® Outlet that is contrary to, different
from, or in addition to, the information contained in the Disclosure Document?

Yes No

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 2 Exhibit J
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7. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement or promise regarding the amount of money you may earn or revenue you may
derive in operating a PANCHEROS® Outlet?

Yes No

8. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement or promise concerning the amount of revenue a PANCHEROS® Outlet will
generate?

Yes No

9. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement or promise regarding the costs you may incur in operating a PANCHEROS®
Outlet that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the Disclosure

Document?
Yes No
10. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any

statement or promise concerning the likelihood of success that you should or might expect
to achieve from operating a PANCHEROS® Outlet?

Yes No

11. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of Franchisor made any
statement, promise or agreement concerning the advertising, marketing, training, support
service or assistance that Franchisor will furnish to you that is contrary to, or different from,
the information contained in the Disclosure Document?

Yes No
12. Do you understand that Franchisor’s approval of a location for the Outlet does not
constitute an assurance, representation or warranty of any kind as to the successful operation
or profitability of the Outlet at the location?

Yes No

13. Do you understand that the approval of Franchisor of a financing plan for operation
of the Outlet does not constitute any assurance that such financing plan is favorable, or not
unduly burdensome, or that the Outlet will be successful if the financing plan is
implemented?

Yes No

14. Do you understand that in all dealings with you, the officers, directors, employees
and agents of Franchisor act only in a representative capacity and not in an individual
capacity and such dealings are solely between you and Franchisor?

Yes No

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 3 Exhibit J
Franchise Disclosure Document | 26242025



If you have answered "Yes" to any of questions 4 through 11, please provide a full
explanation by attaching an additional page. You understand that your answers are important

to us and that we will rely on them.

By signing this Questionnaire, you are representing that you have responded
truthfully to the above questions.

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE/APPLICANT:

By:
Print Name:
Date:

By:
Print Name:
Date:

Panchero’s Franchise Corporation 4 Exhibit J
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EXHIBIT K
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state or
be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New
York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file, or exempt from registration in the following
states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates:

State Effective Date

Hawaii

Ilinois

Indiana

Maryland
Michigan
Minnesota
New York
North Dakota
Rhode Island

South Dakota

Virginia

Wisconsin

In states that do not require a franchise registration or exemption filing, the effective date of this disclosure
document is March 20,-202417, 2025.
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EXHIBITL
RECEIPTS
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ITEM 23
RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Panchero’s Franchise Corporation offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you
14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

New York, and Rhode Island require that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you
this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other
agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If Panchero’s Franchise Corporation does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a
false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C., 20580 and the
appropriate state administrator listed in Exhibit A. Panchero’s Franchise Corporations’ agents for service
of process are also listed in Exhibit B.

Issuance Date: March 20202417, 2025

The franchise sellers for this offering are: Rodney Anderson and Joseph Gale Panchero’s Franchise
Corporation, 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241, 319-545-6565.

I received a disclosure document from Panchero’s Franchise Corporation issued March 26,-262417, 2025
(or the date reflected on the State Effective Dates page) that included the following Exhibits:

State Appendix to Disclosure Document

A. List of State Agencies
B. List of Agents for Service of Process
C. Franchise Agreement
D. Area Development Agreement
E. Financial Statements
F. Table of Contents of the Confidential Operations Manual
G. List of Franchisees and Franchisees that have Left the System
H. General Release Language
I State Addenda and Agreement Riders
J. Pre-Closing Questionnaire
K. State Effective Dates
L. Receipts
DATED: SIGNED: ,
individually and/or as an officer, member, or
partner of :
(a corporation)
(a partnership)
(a limited liability company)
NAME:
ADDRESS:
PHONE:
[Date, Sign, and Return to Panchero’s Franchise Corporation]
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation RECEIPT
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ITEM 23
RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Panchero’s Franchise Corporation offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you
14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

New York, and Rhode Island require that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you
this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other
agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If Panchero’s Franchise Corporation does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a
false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C., 20580 and the
appropriate state administrator listed in Exhibit A. Panchero’s Franchise Corporations’ agents for service
of process are also listed in Exhibit B.

Issuance Date: March 20202417, 2025.

The franchise sellers for this offering are: Rodney Anderson and Joseph Gale Panchero’s Franchise
Corporation, 2475 Coral Court, Suite B, Coralville, lowa 52241, 319-545-6565.

I received a disclosure document from Panchero’s Franchise Corporation issued March 26,-262417, 2025
(or the date reflected on the State Effective Dates page) that included the following Exhibits:

State Appendix to Disclosure Document

A. List of State Agencies
B. List of Agents for Service of Process
C. Franchise Agreement
D. Area Development Agreement
E. Financial Statements
F. Table of Contents of the Confidential Operations Manual
G. List of Franchisees and Franchisees that have Left the System
H. General Release Language
I State Addenda and Agreement Riders
J. Pre-Closing Questionnaire
K. State Effective Dates
L. Receipts
DATED: SIGNED: ,
individually and/or as an officer, member, or
partner of :
(a corporation)
(a partnership)
(a limited liability company)
NAME:
ADDRESS:
PHONE:
[Date, Sign, and Keep for Your Own Records]
Panchero’s Franchise Corporation RECEIPT
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